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SECTION I: GENERAL  

 

DEFINITIONS  AND ABBREVIATIONS  
 

Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, the following terms have the following meanings in this Draft 

Prospectus, and references to any statute or regulations or policies includes any amendments or re-enactments thereto, 

from time to time. 

 
Company related terms  
 

Term Description 

ñWeò, ñusò, ñourò, ñthe 

Companyò, and ñIssuerò 

Muthoot Finance Limited, a public limited company incorporated under the Companies 

Act, and having its registered and corporate office at Muthoot Chambers, Opposite Saritha 

Theatre Complex, 2nd Floor, Banerji Road, Kochi 682 018, Kerala, India. 

ñAOAò/ ñArticlesò / ñArticles of 

Associationò 

Articles of association of our Company. 

Board / Board of Directors The board of directors of our Company and includes any duly constituted committee 

thereof. 

Directors Unless otherwise specified, a director on the Board of Directors. 

Equity Shares Equity shares of face value of `  10 each of our Company. 

Equity Listing Agreement The listing agreement entered into by our Company with the Stock Exchanges where the 

Equity Shares are listed. 

Limited Review Financial 

Information 

Financial information of our Company in accordance with the Equity Listing Agreement 

for the three months ended June 30, 2012, subjected to limited review by our Statutory 

Auditors. 

ñMemorandumò/ ñMOAò Memorandum of association of our Company. 

NCD Public Issue Committee The committee constituted by our Board of Directors by a board resolution dated 

July 25, 2011. 

Promoters M.G. George Muthoot, George Thomas Muthoot, George Jacob Muthoot and George 

Alexander Muthoot. 

Reformatted Financial Statements Reformatted financial statements of our Company prepared in accordance with Indian 

GAAP and the Companies Act for the financial years ended March 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 

2011 and 2012. 

RoC The Registrar of Companies, Kerala and Lakshadweep. 

` / Rs./ INR/ Rupees The lawful currency of the Republic of India. 

Statutory Auditors The statutory auditors of our Company, M/s. Rangamani & Co, Chartered Accountants. 

 

Issue related terms 

 
Term Description 

Allotment/ Allotted Unless the context otherwise requires, the allotment of the NCDs pursuant to the Issue to 

the Allottees. 

Allottee The successful Applicant to whom the NCDs are being/have been allotted. 

Applicant A person who applies for the issuance and Allotment of the NCDs pursuant to the terms of 

the Prospectus and the Application Form. 

Application An application for Allotment of the NCDs. 

Application Amount The aggregate value of the NCDs applied for, as indicated in the Application Form. 

Application Form The form, physical or electronic, in terms of which the Applicant shall make an offer to 

subscribe to the NCDs and which will be considered as the Application for Allotment of 

NCDs in terms of the Prospectus. 

ñASBAò or ñApplication Supported 

by Blocked Amountò 

The Application (whether physical or electronic) used by an ASBA Applicant to make an 

Application by authorizing the SCSB to block the Application Amount in the specified 

bank account maintained with such SCSB. 

ASBA Account  An account maintained with an SCSB which will be blocked by such SCSB to the extent 

of the Application Amount of an ASBA Applicant. 

ASBA Applicant Any Applicant who applies for NCDs through the ASBA process. 

Bankers to the Issue/Escrow 

Collection Banks 

The banks which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as bankers to the issue, 

with whom the Escrow Accounts will be opened in respect of the Issue, in this case being 

[ǒ]. 

Base Issue Public issue of NCDs by our Company aggregating upto `  2,500.0 million. 

Basis of Allotment The basis on which NCDs will be allotted to successful Applicants through the Issue and 

which is described in the section titled ñIssue Procedure ï Basis of Allotmentò at page 191. 

Coupon Rate The rate of interest payable in connection with the NCDs across all Options, which will be 

specified in the Prospectus.  

CRISIL CRISIL Limited. 
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Term Description 

ñDebenturesò/ ñNCDsò Secured, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of our Company of face value of `  1,000 

each proposed to be issued by our Company in terms of the Prospectus. 

Trustee/ Debenture Trustee IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited. 

Debenture Trust Deed The trust deed dated [ǒ] executed by our Company and the Debenture Trustee for creating 

the security over the NCDs issued under the Issue. 

Debt Application Circular Circular no. CIR/IMD/DF ï 1/20/ 2012 issued by SEBI on July 27, 2012. 

Debt Listing Agreement The listing agreement entered into between our Company and the relevant stock exchanges 

in connection with the listing of the debt securities of our Company. 

Deemed Date of Allotment The date as decided by the Board or the NCD Public Issue Committee, and as mentioned 

on the Allotment Advice. 

Demographic Details The demographic details of an Applicant, such as his address, bank account details for 

printing on refund orders and occupation. 

Depositories Act The Depositories Act, 1996. 

Depository(ies) NSDL and CDSL. 

ñDepository Participantò/ñDPò A depository participant registered with the SEBI under the Depositories Act. 

Designated Branches  Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the ASBA Applications and a list of which 

is available on 

http://www.sebi.gov.in/cms/sebi_data/attachdocs/1333446433717.html or at such other 

website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time. 

Designated Date The date on which the Escrow Collection Banks transfer the funds from the Escrow 

Accounts and the Registrar to the Issue issues instruction to SCSBs for transfer of funds 

from the ASBA Accounts to the Public Issue Accounts in terms of the Prospectus and the 

Escrow Agreement.  

Designated Stock Exchange BSE Limited. 

Draft Prospectus/ Draft Offer 

Document 

This draft prospectus dated August 24, 2012 filed with the Stock Exchanges for receiving 

public comments in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act and the SEBI 

Debt Regulations. 

Escrow Agreement Agreement dated [ǒ], 2012 entered into amongst our Company, the Registrar, the Escrow 

Collection Banks, the Lead Managers, for collection of the Application Amounts and for 

remitting refunds, if any, of the amounts collected, to the applicants on the terms and 

conditions contained therein. 

Escrow Accounts Accounts opened in connection with the Issue with the Escrow Collection Banks and in 

whose favour Applicants (except for Applicants applying for the NCDs through the Online 

Stock Exchanges Mechanism and ASBA Applicants) will issue cheques or bank drafts in 

respect of the Application Amount while submitting their Applications. 

ICRA ICRA Limited. 

Insurance Companies Insurance companies registered with the IRDA. 

Issue Public issue by our Company of NCDs aggregating upto `  2,500.0 million with an option 

to retain over-subscription upto ̀  2,500.0 million for issuance of additional NCDs 

aggregating to a total of upto `  5,000.0 million. 

Issue Agreement Agreement dated August 24, 2012 entered into by our Company and the Lead Managers. 

Issue Opening Date [ǒ], 2012. 

Issue Closing Date [ǒ], 2012 or such early or extended date as may be decided by the Board or the NCD 

Public Issue Committee. 

Issue Programme The period from [ǒ], 2012 to [ǒ], 2012 during which time the Issue shall remain open for 

subscription, with an option to close earlier and/or extend upto a period as may be 

determined by the Board or the NCD Public Issue Committee 

Lead Brokers [ǒ] 

Lead Managers ICICI Securities Limited, A.K. Capital Services Limited, Edelweiss Financial Services 

Limited, Karvy Investor Services Limited, RR Investors Capital Services (P) Limited and 

SBI Capital Markets Limited. 

Market Lot One NCD. 

Members of the Syndicate The Lead Managers, the Lead Brokers and sub-brokers. 

NCD Holder(s) The holders of the NCDs, whose name appears in the database of the relevant Depository 

(in case of NCDs in the dematerialized form) and/or the register of NCD Holders 

maintained by our Company (in case of NCDs held in the physical form). 

Options An option of NCDs which are identical in all respects including, but not limited to 

terms and conditions, listing and ISIN number and as further stated to be an 

individual Option in the Prospectus. 

Prospectus/ Offer Document The Prospectus dated [ǒ], 2012 to be filed with the RoC in accordance with the SEBI Debt 

Regulations containing, inter alia the Coupon Rates, the terms of the Issue and the terms 

and conditions of the NCDs. 

Public Issue Account A bank account opened with any of the Bankers to the Issue by our Company under section 

73 of the Companies Act to receive money from the Escrow Accounts on the Designated 

Date and where the funds shall be transferred by the SCSBs from the ASBA Accounts. 
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Term Description 

Record Date The date for payment of interest in connection with the NCDs or redemption of the NCDs, 

which shall be 15 (fifteen) days prior to the date on which interest is due and payable, 

and/or the date of redemption. 

Refund Account(s) The account(s) opened by our Company with the Refund Bank(s), from which refunds of 

the whole or part of the Application Amounts (excluding for the ASBA Applicants), if any, 

shall be made. 

Refund Bank The Bankers to the Issue, with whom the Refund Account(s) will be opened, in this case 

being [ǒ]. 

Registrar to the Issue Link Intime India Private Limited. 

SEBI Debt Regulations The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008. 

ñSelf Certified Syndicate Banksò or 

ñSCSBsò 

The banks which are registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Bankers to an Issue) Regulations, 1994 and offer services in relation to ASBA, 

including blocking of an ASBA Account, a list of which is available on 

http://www.sebi.gov.in/cms/sebi_data/attachdocs/1333446433717.html or at such other 

website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time. 

Stock Exchanges BSE and NSE. 

Syndicate ASBA Application 

Locations 

Application centres at Mumbai, Chennai, Kolkata, Delhi, Ahmedabad, Rajkot, Jaipur, 

Bengaluru, Hyderabad, Pune, Vadodara and Surat where the members of the Syndicate 

shall accept ASBA Applications. 

Syndicate SCSB Branches In relation to ASBA Applications submitted to a member of the Syndicate, such branches 

of the SCSBs at the Syndicate ASBA Application Locations named by the SCSBs to 

receive deposits of the Application Forms from the members of the Syndicate, and a list of 

which is available on 

http://www.sebi.gov.in/cms/sebi_data/attachdocs/1343901524048.html or at such other 

website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.  

Tier I capital Tier I capital means, owned fund as reduced by investment in shares of other NBFCs and 

in shares, debentures, bonds, outstanding loans and advances including hire purchase and 

lease finance made to and deposits with subsidiaries and companies in the same group 

exceeding, in aggregate, ten percent of the owned fund.  

ñTransaction Registration Slipò or 

ñTRSò 

The slip or document issued by any of the Members of the Syndicate, the SCSBs, or the 

Trading Members as the case may be, to an Applicant upon demand as proof of registration 

of his Application. 

Tenor The tenor of the NCDs. 

Trading Members Individuals or companies registered with SEBI as ñtrading membersò who hold the right to 

trade in stocks listed on the Stock Exchanges, through whom investors can buy or sell 

securities listed on the Stock Exchanges, a list of which are available on 

www.bseindia.com/memberdir/members.asp (for Trading Members of BSE) and 

www.nseindia.com/members (for Trading Members of NSE). 

Working Day All  days  excluding  Saturdays,  Sundays  or  a  public  holiday  in  India  or  at  any other 

payment centre notified in terms of the Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881. 

 

Industry related terms 

 
Term Description 

ALCO Asset Liability Committee. 

ALM  Asset Liability Management. 

CRAR Capital to Risk Adjusted Ratio. 

Gold Loans Personal and business loans secured by gold jewellery and ornaments. 

IBPC Inter Bank Participation Certificate. 

IMaCS ICRA Management Consulting Services Limited. 

IMaCS Industry Report 2009 IMaCS Research & Analytics Industry Reports, Gold Loans Market in India, 2009. 

IMaCS Industry Report (2010 

Update) 

The update for the calendar year 2009-2010 to the IMaCS Industry Report 2009. 

KYC Know Your Customer. 

NBFC Non Banking Financial Company. 

NBFC-ND Non Banking Financial Company- Non Deposit Taking. 

NBFC-ND-SI Non Banking Financial Company- Non Deposit Taking-Systemically Important. 

NPA Non Performing Asset. 

NSSO National Sample Survey Organisation. 

PPP Purchasing Power Parity. 

RRB Regional Rural Bank. 

SCB Scheduled Commercial Banks. 
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Conventional and general terms and abbreviations 

 
Term Description 

AGM Annual General Meeting. 

AS Accounting Standard. 

BSE BSE Limited. 

CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rate. 

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited. 

Companies Act Companies Act, 1956. 

DRR Debenture Redemption Reserve. 

EGM Extraordinary General Meeting. 

EPS Earnings Per Share. 

FDI Policy The Government policy and the regulations (including the applicable provisions of the 

Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue of Security by a Person Resident 

Outside India) Regulations, 2000) issued by the Government of India prevailing on that 

date in relation to foreign investments in our Company 's sector of business as amended 

from time to time. 

FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999. 

FII/FIIs Foreign Institutional Investor(s). 

FY Financial Year. 

GDP Gross Domestic Product. 

GoI Government of India. 

HUF Hindu Undivided Family. 

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards. 

IFSC Indian Financial System Code. 

Indian GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India. 

IRDA Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority. 

IT Act The Income Tax Act, 1961. 

MCA Ministry of Corporate Affairs, GoI. 

MICR Magnetic Ink Character Recognition. 

NECS National Electronic Clearing Services. 

NEFT National Electronic Funds Transfer. 

NRI Non Resident Indian. 

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited. 

NSE  National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 

PAN Permanent Account Number. 

RBI The Reserve Bank of India. 

RBI Act The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement. 

SCRA Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956. 

SCRR The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957. 

SEBI The Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992. 

SEBI Act The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992. 

TDS Tax Deducted at Source. 

WDM Wholesale Debt Market. 

 

Notwithstanding anything contained herein, capitalised terms that have been defined in the sections titled ñRisk 

Factorsò, ñCapital Structureò, ñRegulations and Policiesò, ñHistory and Main Objectsò, ñStatement of Tax Benefitsò, 

ñOur Managementò, ñDisclosures on Existing Financial Indebtednessò, ñPending Proceedings and Statutory Defaultsò  

and ñIssue Procedureò on pages 9, 48, 206, 80, 54, 83, 142, 151, and 173 respectively will have the meanings ascribed 

to them in such sections. 
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS  

 

This Draft Prospectus contains certain ñforward-looking statementsò. These forward looking statements generally can 

be identified by words or phrases such as ñaimò, ñanticipateò, ñbelieveò, ñexpectò, ñestimateò, ñintendò, ñobjectiveò, 

ñfutureò, ñgoalò, ñplanò, ñcontemplateò, ñproposeò ñseek toò ñprojectò, ñshouldò, ñwillò, ñwill continueò, ñwill pursueò, 

ñwill likely resultò or other words or phrases of similar import. All forward-looking statements are based on our current 

plans and expectations and are subject to a number of uncertainties and risks and assumptions that could significantly 

and materially affect our current plans and expectations and our future financial condition and results of operations. 

Important factors that could cause actual results, including our financial conditions and results of operations to differ 

from our expectations include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 

Á General economic and business conditions in India and globally; 

Á Our ability to successfully sustain our growth strategy; 

Á Our ability to compete effectively and access funds at competitive cost; 

Á Unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, equity prices or other rates or prices; the performance of 

the financial and capital markets in India and globally; 

Á The outcome of any legal or regulatory proceedings we are or may become a party to; 

Á Any disruption or downturn in the economy of southern India; 

Á Our ability to control or reduce the level of non-performing assets in our portfolio; 

Á general political and economic conditions in India; 

Á Change in government regulations; 

Á Competition from our existing as well as new competitors; and 

Á Our ability to compete with and adapt to technological advances. 

Á Occurrence of natural calamities or natural disasters affecting the areas in which our Company has 

operations; 

 

For further discussion of factors that could cause our actual results to differ, see the section titled ñRisk Factorsò at page 

9. 

 

All forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions about our Company that could cause 

actual results and valuations to differ materially from those contemplated by the relevant statement.  Additional factors 

that could cause actual results, performance or achievements to differ materially include, but are not limited to, those 

discussed under the sections titled ñAbout the Issuer and Industry Overviewò and ñOur Businessò at pages 59 and 66, 

respectively. The forward-looking statements contained in this Draft Prospectus are based on the beliefs of 

management, as well as the assumptions made by and information currently available to management. Although our 

Company believes that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable at this time, it 

cannot assure investors that such expectations will prove to be correct or will hold good at all times. Given these 

uncertainties, investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. If any of these 

risks and uncertainties materialise, or if any of our Companyôs underlying assumptions prove to be incorrect, our 

Companyôs actual results of operations or financial condition could differ materially from that described herein as 

anticipated, believed, estimated or expected. All subsequent forward-looking statements attributable to our Company 

are expressly qualified in their entirety by reference to these cautionary statements. 

 

Neither our Company, its Directors and officers, nor any of their respective affiliates or associates have any obligation 

to update or otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date hereof or to reflect the 

occurrence of underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come to fruition. In accordance with the 

SEBI Debt Regulations, our Company and the Lead Managers will ensure that investors in India are informed of 

material developments between the date of filing the Prospectus with the RoC and the date of Allotment. 
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION  

 

General 

 

In this Draft Prospectus, unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, references to ñyou,ò ñofferee,ò ñpurchaser,ò 

ñsubscriber,ò ñrecipient,ò ñinvestorsò and ñpotential investorò are to the prospective investors in the Issue, references to 

our ñCompanyò, the ñCompanyò or the ñIssuerò are to Muthoot Finance Limited.  

 

In this Draft Prospectus, references to ñUS$ò is to the legal currency of the United States and references to ñRs.ò, ñ̀ò 

and ñRupeesò are to the legal currency of India. All references herein to the ñU.S.ò or the ñUnited Statesò are to the 

United States of America and its territories and possessions and all references to ñIndiaò are to the Republic of India and 

its territories and possessions, and the "Government", the "Central Government" or the "State Government" are to the 

Government of India, central or state, as applicable. 

 

Unless otherwise stated, references in this Draft Prospectus to a particular year are to the calendar year ended on 

December 31 and to a particular ñfiscalò or ñfiscal yearò are to the financial year ended on March 31 of that particularly 

year. 

 

Presentation of financial information  

 

Our Company publishes its financial statements in ` . Our Companyôs financial statements are prepared in accordance 

with Indian GAAP and the Companies Act.  

 

Unless stated otherwise, the financial data in this Draft Prospectus is derived from the Reformatted Financial 

Statements and the Limited Review Financial Information. The examination reports on the Reformatted Financial 

Statements, as issued by our Companyôs Statutory Auditors are included in this Draft Prospectus in the section titled 

ñFinancial Informationò at page 102. 

 

Any discrepancies in the tables included herein between the amounts listed and the totals thereof are due to rounding 

off.  

 

Unless stated otherwise, all industry and market data used throughout this Draft Prospectus have been obtained from 

industry publications and certain public sources. Industry publications generally state that the information contained in 

those publications have been obtained from sources believed to be reliable, but that their accuracy and completeness are 

not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured. Although our Company believes that the industry and market data 

used in this Draft Prospectus is reliable, it has not been verified by us or any independent sources. Further, the extent to 

which the market and industry data presented in this Draft Prospectus is meaningful depends on the readersô familiarity 

with and understanding of methodologies used in compiling such data. 

 

Exchange rates  
 

The exchange rates (in ` ) of the USD and Euro as for last 5 years and three months ended June 30, 2012 are provided 

below: 

 

Currency March 31, 2008 March 31, 2009 March 31, 2010 March 31, 2011 March 31, 2012 June 30, 2012 

USD 39.97 50.95 45.14 44.65 51.1565 56.3090 
EURO 63.09 67.48 60.56 63.24 68.3403 70.9080 
Source: www.rbi.org.in 
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SECTION II: RISK FACTORS  

 

Prospective investors should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described below, in addition to the 

other information contained in this Draft Prospectus including the sections titled ñOur Businessò and 

ñFinancial Informationò at pages 66 and 102, respectively, before making any investment decision relating to 

the NCDs. If any of the following risks or other risks that are not currently known or are now deemed 

immaterial, actually occur, our business, financial condition and result of operation could suffer, the trading 

price of the NCDs could decline and you may lose all or part of your interest and / or redemption amounts. The 

risks and uncertainties described in this section are not the only risks that we currently face. Additional risks 

and uncertainties not known to us or that we currently believe to be immaterial may also have an adverse effect 

on our business, results of operations and financial condition.  

 

Unless otherwise stated in the relevant risk factors set forth below, we are not in a position to specify or 

quantify the financial or other implications of any of the risks mentioned herein. The ordering of the risk factors 

is intended to facilitate ease of reading and reference and does not in any manner indicate the importance of 

one risk factor over another.  

 

This Draft Prospectus contains forward looking statements that involve risk and uncertainties. Our Companyôs 

actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward looking statements as a result of 

several factors, including the considerations described below and elsewhere in this Draft Prospectus. 

 

Unless otherwise stated, financial information used in this section is derived from the Reformatted Financial 

Statements as of and for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 prepared under the 

Indian GAAP. 

 

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS  

 

Risks relating to our Business and our Company 

 

1. We and our Directors are involved in certain legal and other proceedings (including criminal 

proceedings) that if determined against us, could have a material adverse effect on our business, 

financial condition and results of operations. 

 

Our Company and our Directors are involved in certain legal proceedings, including criminal proceedings, in 

relation to inter alia civil suits, eviction suits and tax claims. These legal proceedings are pending at different 

levels of adjudication before various courts and tribunals. For further details in relation to material legal 

proceedings, see the section titled ñPending proceedings and statutory defaultsò at page 151.  

 

We cannot provide any assurance in relation to the outcome of these proceedings. Any adverse decision may 

have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Further, there is no 

assurance that similar proceedings will not be initiated against us in the future. 

 

2. The ñMuthootò logo and other combination marks are proposed to be registered in the name of our 

Promoters. If we are unable to use the trademarks and logos, our results of operations may be 

adversely affected. Further, any loss of rights to use the trademarks may adversely affect our 

reputation, goodwill, business and our results of operations. 

 

The brand and trademark ñMuthootò, and also related marks and associated logos (ñMuthoot Trademarksò) 

are currently registered in the name of our Company. We believe that the Muthoot Trademarks are important for 

our business. 

 

Our Company proposes to register the Muthoot Trademarks jointly in the name of our Promoters through a 

rectification process or irrevocably grant ownership rights by alternate legally compliant means. Pursuant to 

applications filed on September 20, 2010 by our Company and our Promoters before the Trade Marks Registry, 

Chennai, our Promoters have stated that their father, Late M. George Muthoot, had adopted and had been using 

the Muthoot Trademarks since 1939 and that our Promoters had, since the demise of Late M. George Muthoot, 

been continuing his business and using the Muthoot Trademarks as its joint proprietors. Our Company has 

confirmed that our Company has, since incorporation, been using the Muthoot Trademarks as per an implied 

user permission granted by our Promoters and that the application for registration of the Muthoot Trademarks in 

the name of our Company was filed through inadvertence. Consequently, an application has been made to Trade 
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Marks Registry, Chennai, to effect a rectification in the Register of Trademarks. Since a rectification process (by 

application before the Trade Marks Registry, Chennai as mentioned above) is underway, and not an assignment 

of the Muthoot Trademarks, no independent valuation of the Muthoot Trademarks has been conducted. 

 

It is proposed that consequent to such rectification, the Promoters will grant our Company a non-exclusive 

licence to use the Muthoot Trademarks for an annual royalty equivalent to 1.00% of the gross income of our 

Company, subject to a maximum of 3.00% of profit before tax (after charging the royalty) and managerial 

remuneration payable by our Company each financial year. Subject to certain other conditions, it is proposed 

that this licence would continue until such time that our Promoters, together with the Promoter Group, jointly 

cease to hold at least 50.01% of the paid-up equity share capital of our Company. 

 

Since the rectification is yet to be effected and consequently, no licence has been granted to us as of date, we 

cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain a licence to use the Muthoot Trademarks, when registered, from 

our Promoters on commercially acceptable terms, or at all. In addition, loss of the rights to use the Muthoot 

Trademarks may adversely affect our reputation, goodwill, business and our results of operations. 

 

3. Our business requires substantial capital, and any disruption in funding sources would have a 

material adverse effect on our liquidity and financial condition. 

 

Our liquidity and ongoing profitability are, in large part, dependent upon our timely access to, and the costs 

associated with, raising capital. Our funding requirements historically have been met from a combination of 

borrowings such as working capital limits from banks and selling of our loan portfolio to other lenders such as 

banks, and issuance of commercial paper, non-convertible debentures and equity. Thus, our business depends 

and will continue to depend on our ability to access diversified low-cost funding sources. 

 

The crisis in the global credit market that began in mid 2007 destabilised the prevailing lending model by banks 

and financial institutions. These adverse conditions reached unprecedented levels through 2008. The capital and 

lending markets remained highly volatile and access to liquidity had been significantly reduced. These 

conditions had resulted in increased borrowing costs and difficulty in accessing debt in a cost-effective manner. 

In addition, it became more difficult to renew loans and facilities as many potential lenders and counterparties 

also faced liquidity and capital concerns as a result of the stress in the financial markets. Moreover, we are a 

ñsystemically important non-deposit acceptingò NBFC, and do not have access to public deposits. We are also 

restricted from inviting interest in our secured non-convertible debentures which are issued on a private 

placement basis, by advertising to the public. 

 

Further, RBI has introduced revisions to the guidelines on securitisation transactions on May 7, 2012 and 

August 21, 2012. Pursuant to the revised guidelines, assets with bullet repayment of both principal and interest 

are excluded from the eligibility norms for asset securitisation. Since our Gold Loans are currently structured as 

loans with bullet repayment of principal and interest, such Gold Loans are outside the purview of asset 

securitisation. Consequently, we may not be able to raise funds through securitisation including bilateral 

assignment of such Gold Loans. However, our outstanding amounts of gold portfolio sold under bilateral 

assignments were `  4,341.0 million, `  8,130.2 million, ̀  20,083.2 million, `  41,863.9 million and ̀  33,352.1 

million for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively. 

 

We also face significant maturities of our debt each year. Out of our total outstanding debt of ` 193,833.0 

million, an amount of ̀ 131,416.1 million will mature during the fiscal year 2013. In order to retire these 

instruments, we either will need to refinance this debt, which could be difficult in the event of volatility in the 

credit markets, or raise equity capital or generate sufficient cash to retire the debt. 

 

4. Our financial performance is particularly vulnerable to interest rate risk. If we fail to adequately 

manage our interest rate risk in the future it could have an adverse effect on our net interest margin, 

thereby adversely affecting our business and financial condition. 

 

Over the last several years, the Government of India has substantially deregulated the financial sector. As a 

result, interest rates are now primarily determined by the market, which has increased the interest rate risk 

exposure of all banks and financial intermediaries in India, including us.  

 

Our results of operations are substantially dependent upon the level of our net interest margins. Interest rates are 

sensitive to many factors beyond our control, including the RBIôs monetary policies, domestic and international 

economic and political conditions and other factors. Rise in inflation, and consequent changes in bank rates, 



 

 

 
11 

repo rates and reverse repo rates by the RBI has led to an increase in interest rates on loans provided by banks 

and financial institutions, and market interest rates in India have been volatile in recent periods. 

 

Our policy is to attempt to balance the proportion of our interest-earning assets, which bear fixed interest rates, 

with interest-bearing liabilities. A majority of our liabilities, such as our secured non-convertible debentures, 

subordinated debt and short term loans carry fixed rates of interest and the remaining are linked to the respective 

banks' benchmark prime lending rate/base rate. As of March 31, 2012, 52.37% of our borrowings were at fixed 

rates of interest, comprising primarily of our privately placed secured non-convertible redeemable debentures, 

which constituted 34.10% of our total indebtedness. We cannot assure you that we will be able to adequately 

manage our interest rate risk in the future and be able to effectively balance the proportion of our fixed rate loan 

assets and liabilities in the future. Further, despite this balancing, changes in interest rates could affect the 

interest rates charged on interest-earning assets and the interest rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities in 

different ways. Thus, our results of operations could be affected by changes in interest rates and the timing of 

any repricing of our liabilities compared with the re-pricing of our assets. 

 

Furthermore, we are exposed to greater interest rate risk than banks or deposit-taking NBFCs. In a rising interest 

rate environment, if the yield on our interest-earning assets does not increase at the same time or to the same 

extent as our cost of funds, or, in a declining interest rate environment, if our cost of funds does not decline at 

the same time or to the same extent as the yield on our interest-earning assets, our net interest income and net 

interest margin would be adversely impacted. 

 

Additional risks arising from increasing interest rates include: 

 

Á reductions in the volume of loans as a result of customersô inability to service high interest rate 

payments; and 

 

Á reductions in the value of fixed income securities held in our investment portfolio. 

 

There can be no assurance that we will be able to adequately manage our interest rate risk. If we are unable to 

address the interest rate risk, it could have an adverse effect on our net interest margin, thereby adversely 

affecting our business and financial condition. 

 

5. We may not be able to recover the full loan amount, and the value of the collateral may not be 

sufficient to cover the outstanding amounts due under defaulted loans. Failure to recover the value 

of the collateral could expose us to a potential loss, thereby adversely affect our financial condition 

and results of operations. 

 

We extend loans secured by gold jewellery provided as collateral by the customer. An economic downturn or 

sharp downward movement in the price of gold could result in a fall in collateral value. In the event of any 

decrease in the price of gold, customers may not repay their loans and the value of collateral gold jewellery 

securing the loans may have decreased significantly in value, resulting in losses which we may not be able to 

support. Although we use a technology-based risk management system and follow strict internal risk 

management guidelines on portfolio monitoring, which include periodic assessment of loan to security value on 

the basis of conservative market price levels, limits on the amount of margin, ageing analysis and pre-

determined loan closure call thresholds, no assurance can be given that if the price of gold decreases 

significantly, our financial condition and results of operations would not be adversely affected. The impact on 

our financial position and results of operations of a hypothetical decrease in gold values cannot be reasonably 

estimated because the market and competitive response to changes in gold values is not pre-determinable. 

 

Additionally, we may not be able to realise the full value of our collateral, due to, among other things, defects in 

the quality of gold or wastage on melting gold jewellery into gold bars. In the case of a default, we typically sell 

the collateral gold jewellery through auctions primarily to local jewellers and there can be no assurance that we 

will be able to sell such gold jewellery at prices sufficient to cover the amounts under default.  

 

We may also be affected by failure of employees to comply with internal procedures and inaccurate appraisal of 

credit or financial worth of our clients. Failure by our employees to properly appraise the value of the collateral 

provides us with no recourse against the borrower and the loan sanction may eventually result in a bad debt on 

our books of accounts. In the event we are unable to check the risks arising out of such lapses, our business and 

results of operations may be adversely affected. 
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Moreover, there may be delays associated with such auction process. A failure to recover the expected value of 

collateral security could expose us to a potential loss. Any such losses could adversely affect our financial 

condition and results of operations. 

 

6. We face increasing competition in our business which may result in declining margins if we are 

unable to compete effectively. Increasing competition may have an adverse effect on our net interest 

margin, and, if we are unable to compete successfully, our market share may decline.  

 

Our principal business is the provision of personal loans to retail customers in India secured by gold jewellery as 

collateral. Historically, the Gold Loan industry in India has been largely unorganised and dominated by local 

jewellery pawn shops and money lenders, with very few public sector and old generation private sector banks 

focusing on this sector. Attractive interest rates relative to risk together with increased demand for access to 

capital from middle income group, previously availed predominantly by lower income group customers with 

limited access to other forms of borrowings, have increased our exposure to competition. The demand for Gold 

Loans has also increased due to relatively lower and affordable interest rates, increased need for urgent 

borrowing or bridge financing requirements and the need for liquidity for assets held in gold and also due to 

increased awareness among customers of Gold Loans as a source of quick access to funds.  

 

All of these factors have resulted in us facing increased competition from other lenders in the Gold Loan 

industry, including commercial banks and other NBFCs. Unlike commercial banks or deposit-taking NBFCs, we 

do not have access to funding from savings and current deposits of customers. Instead, we are reliant on higher-

cost term loans and debentures for our funding requirements, which may reduce our margins compared to 

competitors. Our ability to compete effectively with commercial banks or deposit-taking NBFCs will depend, to 

some extent, on our ability to raise low-cost funding in the future. If we are unable to compete effectively with 

other participants in the Gold Loan industry, our business and future financial performance may be adversely 

affected. 

 

Furthermore, as a result of increased competition in the Gold Loan industry, Gold Loans are becoming 

increasingly standardised and variable interest rate and payment terms and waiver of processing fees are 

becoming increasingly common in the Gold Loan industry in India. There can be no assurance that we will be 

able to react effectively to these or other market developments or compete effectively with new and existing 

players in the increasingly competitive Gold Loans industry. Increasing competition may have an adverse effect 

on our net interest margin and other income, and, if we are unable to compete successfully, our market share 

may decline as the origination of new loans declines. 

 

7. We have certain contingent liabilities; in the event any of these contingent liabilities materialise, our 

financial condition may be adversely affected. 

 

For the year ended March 31, 2012, we had certain contingent liabilities not provided for, amounting to 

`  4,679.1 million. The contingent liability amounts disclosed in our Reformatted Financial Statements represent 

estimates and assumptions of our management based on advice received.  

 

The following are the details of the contingent liabilities of our Company as at March 31, 2012: 
(`  in millions) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2012 

Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debts 

i)        Service Tax demand for the period-2003-2008, pending in appeal with CESTAT 

49.92 

Commissioner of Central Excise, Customs and Service Tax, Cochin has raised a demand of `  

52,007,698.00 as Service tax liability and penalty. During the course of the proceedings Company 

paid ̀  20,86,391.00. The Appellate Authority admitted the Appeal preferred by the company and 

granted stay of recovery, on pre-deposit of ̀  83,00,000.00 . Pending disposal of appeal, no 

provision has been made by the company during the year. 

ii)        Income tax demand for Assessment Year 2004-05, pending in appeal with ITAT 

NIL 

Assistant Commissioner of Income Tax, Circle 1(3), Ernakulam has filed an appeal before ITAT 

against the order of Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) ï II, Cochin demanding ̀ 52.37 

Lakhs . The Company has already paid the demand by way of Advance Tax, Tax Deducted at 

Source and adjustment against refund due. No additional income tax liability is expected. Hence 

no provision is required to be made by the company during the year. 
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Particulars As at March 31, 2012 

iii)     Income tax demand for Assessment Year 2006-07, pending in appeal with ITAT 

NIL 

Company has filed an appeal before ITAT against the order of Commissioner of Income Tax 

(Appeals) ï II, Cochin demanding `  15.21 Lakhs . The Company has already paid the demand by 

way of Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at Source. No additional income tax liability is expected. 

Hence no provision  is required to be made by the company during the year. 

iv) Income tax demand for Assessment Year 2009-10, pending in appeal with Commissioner of 

Income Tax (Appeals), Kochi  13.78 

Additional Commissioner of Income Tax, Range - 1, Kochi has passed an order demanding `  

13,782,470.00 towards income tax due for the Assessment Year 2009-10. The Commissioner of 

Income Tax (Appeals) admitted the appeal preferred by the Company. Pending disposal of appeal, 

no provision has been made by the company during the year.   

 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital accounts and not provided for   189.8 

 Other money for which company is contingently liable:  

 i)        Counter Guarantee provided to Banks  218.49 

 ii)        Cash collateral provided as credit enhancement for bilateral assignment of receivables  2,610.70 

 iii)      Over collateral provided as credit enhancement for bilateral assignment of receivables  25 

 iv)     Corporate guarantee provided as credit enhancement for bilateral assignment of 

receivables  1,571.43 

Total 4,679.1 

 

In the event that any of these contingent liabilities materialise, our financial condition may be adversely 

affected. 

 

8. We may not be able to successfully sustain our growth strategy. Inability to effectively manage any 

our growth and related issues could materially and adversely affect our business and impact our 

future financial performance. 
 

In recent periods, we have experienced substantial growth. Our net profit, for the year ended March 31, 2008, 

2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 was ̀  630.7 million, `  978.7 million, ̀  2,285.2 million, `  4,941.7 million, and ̀  

8,920.2 million, respectively. Our gross retail loans outstanding grew year on year by 120.78% to `  74,381.5 

million as of March 31, 2010, by 113.34% to ̀  158,684.5 million as of March 31, 2011 and by 55.48% to `  

246,736.0 million as of March 31, 2012.  

 

Our growth strategy includes growing our loan book and expanding the range of products and services offered 

to our customers and expanding our branch network. There can be no assurance that we will be able to sustain 

our growth strategy successfully, or continue to achieve or grow the levels of net profit earned in recent years, or 

that we will be able to expand further or diversify our loan book. Furthermore, there may not be sufficient 

demand for such products, or they may not generate sufficient revenues relative to the costs associated with 

offering such products and services. Even if we were able to introduce new products and services successfully, 

there can be no assurance that we will be able to achieve our intended return on such investments. If we grow 

our loan book too rapidly or fail to make proper assessments of credit risks associated with borrowers, a higher 

percentage of our loans may become non-performing, which would have a negative impact on the quality of our 

assets and our financial condition. 

 

We also face a number of operational risks in executing our growth strategy. We have experienced rapid growth 

in our Gold Loan business and our branch network also has expanded significantly, and we are entering into 

new, smaller towns and cities within India as part of our growth strategy. Our rapid growth exposes us to a wide 

range of increased risks within India, including business risks, such as the possibility that our number of 

impaired loans may grow faster than anticipated, and operational risks, fraud risks and regulatory and legal 

risks. Moreover, our ability to sustain our rate of growth depends significantly upon our ability to manage key 

issues such as selecting and retaining key managerial personnel, maintaining effective risk management policies, 

continuing to offer products which are relevant to our target base of customers, developing managerial 

experience to address emerging challenges and ensuring a high standard of customer service. We will need to 

recruit, train and integrate new employees, as well as provide continuing training to existing employees on 
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internal controls and risk management procedures. Failure to train and integrate employees may increase 

employee attrition rates, require additional hiring, erode the quality of customer service, divert management 

resources, increase our exposure to high-risk credit and impose significant costs on us.  

 

We also plan to expand our Gold Loan business in new geographies outside India. We have limited or no 

operating experience in these new geographies, and we may encounter difficulties in entering into these new 

geographies. This will require significant capital investments and commitment of time from our senior 

management, and there often is limited or no prospect of earnings in the initial years. Moreover, there is no 

assurance that we will be able to commence operations in accordance with our timelines, if at all, which could 

result in additional costs and time commitments from our senior management. There also can be no assurance 

that our management will be able to develop the skills necessary to successfully manage this geographical 

expansion. Our inability to effectively manage any of the above issues could materially and adversely affect our 

business and impact our future financial performance. 

 

Furthermore, we are entering new businesses as part of our growth strategy. For example, we recently have 

entered into the business of distributing pension schemes as part of the New Pension Scheme of Pension Fund 

Regulatory & Development Authority. We have little or no operating experience with these businesses, and you 

should consider the risks and difficulties we may encounter by entering into new lines of business. New 

businesses will require significant capital investments and commitments of time from our senior management, 

and there often is little or no prospect of earnings in a new business for several years. Moreover, there is no 

assurance any new business we develop or enter will commence in accordance with our timelines, if at all, 

which could result in additional costs and time commitments from our senior management. There also can be no 

assurance that our management will be able to develop the skills necessary to successfully manage these new 

business areas. Our inability to effectively manage any of the above issues could materially and adversely affect 

our business and impact our future financial performance. 

 

9. We may not be in compliance with relevant state money lending laws, which could adversely affect 

our business. In the event that any state government requires us to comply with the provisions of 

their respective state money lending laws, or imposes any penalty, including for prior non-

compliance, our business, results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected. 

 

There is ambiguity on whether or not NBFCs are required to comply with the provisions of state money lending 

laws that establish ceilings on interest rates. As of September 20, 2009, our Company has been specifically 

exempted from the provisions of the money lending laws applicable in Karnataka, Andhra Pradesh and there is a 

blanket exemption for all NBFCs in Rajasthan. Further, we have also received show cause notices from certain 

Government authorities in relation to compliance with relevant money lending laws in relation to our operations 

in the states of Gujarat, Kerala, Karnataka and Andhra Pradesh. We also carry out operations in other states such 

as Tamil Nadu, Madhya Pradesh, and Maharashtra, where there are money lending laws in operation. In 

addition, in the event the provisions of any state specific regulations are extended to NBFCs in the Gold Loan 

business such as our Company, we could have increased costs of compliance and our business and operations 

could be adversely affected. For further details, see ñPending proceedings and Statutory Defaultsò beginning on 

page 151. There are civil and criminal penalties for non-compliance with the relevant money lending laws. In 

the event that any state government requires us to comply with the provisions of their respective state money 

lending laws, or imposes any penalty against us, our Directors or our officers, including for prior non-

compliance, our business, results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected.  

 

10. A major part of our branch network is concentrated in southern India and any disruption or 

downturn in the economy of the region would adversely affect our operations. 

 

As of June 30, 2012, 2,435 out of our 3,780 branches are located in the south Indian states of Tamil Nadu (819 

branches), Kerala (712 branches), Andhra Pradesh (542 branches), Karnataka (354 branches) and Union 

Territory of Pondicherry (eight branches). Any disruption, disturbance or breakdown in the economy of 

southern India could adversely affect the result of our business and operations. As of March 31, 2012, the south 

Indian states of Tamil Nadu, Kerala, Andhra Pradesh, Karnataka and the Union Territory of Pondicherry 

constituted 68.40% of our total Gold Loan portfolio. Our concentration in southern India exposes us to adverse 

economic or political circumstances that may arise in that region as compared to other NBFCs and commercial 

banks that have diversified national presence. If there is a sustained downturn in the economy of southern India, 

our financial position may be adversely affected. 
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11. Our indebtedness and the conditions and restrictions imposed by our financing agreements could 

restrict our ability to conduct our business and operations in the manner we desire. 

 
As of March 31, 2012, we had an outstanding debt of ̀ 193,832.5 million. We may incur additional 

indebtedness in the future. Our indebtedness could have several important consequences, including but not 

limited to the following: 

 
Á a portion of our cash flow may be used towards repayment of our existing debt, which will reduce the 

availability of our cash flow to fund our capital adequacy requirements, working capital, capital 

expenditures, acquisitions and other general corporate requirements; 

 

Á our ability to obtain additional financing in the future at reasonable terms may be restricted or our cost 

of borrowings may increase due to sudden adverse market conditions, including decreased availability 

of credit or fluctuations in interest rates, particularly because a significant proportion of our financing 

arrangements are in the form of borrowings from banks; 

 

Á fluctuations in market interest rates may adversely affect the cost of our borrowings, as some of our 

indebtedness are at variable interest rates; 

 

Á there could be a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations if 

we are unable to service our indebtedness or otherwise comply with financial and other covenants 

specified in the financing agreements; and 

 

Á we may be more vulnerable to economic downturns, which may limit our ability to withstand 

competitive pressures and may reduce our flexibility in responding to changing business, regulatory 

and economic conditions. 

 

Moreover, certain of our loans may be recalled by our lenders at any time. If any of these lenders recall their 

loans, our cash position, business and operations may be adversely affected. 

 

12. Our financing arrangements contain restrictive covenants that may adversely affect our business 

and operations, some of which we are currently in breach of or have breached in the past. 

 

The financing arrangements that we have entered into with certain banks and financial institutions and terms and 

conditions for issue of non-convertible debentures issued by us contain restrictive covenants, which among other 

things require us to obtain prior permission of such banks, financial institutions or debenture trustee or to inform 

them with respect to various activities, including, alteration of our capital structure, changes in management, 

raising of fresh capital or debt, payment of dividend, revaluation or sale of our assets, undertaking new projects, 

creating new subsidiaries, change in accounting policies, or undertaking any merger or amalgamation, invest by 

way of share capital or lend to other companies, undertaking guarantee obligations on behalf of other 

companies, and creation of further charge on fixed assets. Additionally, certain loan agreements require us to 

meet and maintain prescribed financial ratios. Further, under these loan agreements during the subsistence of the 

facility, the lender has a right to appoint a nominee director on our Board from time to time. Furthermore, some 

of our financing arrangements contain cross default provisions which could automatically trigger defaults under 

other financing arrangements, in turn magnifying the effect of an individual default. Although we attempt to 

maintain compliance with our covenants or obtain prospective waivers where possible, we cannot assure you 

that we will be continuously compliant. 

 

We have breached in the past, and are currently in breach of, certain covenants under these loan agreements and 

other financing arrangements. For example, with respect to the execution of certain equity investments 

agreements and the consequent alteration of our capital structure, we did not obtain a prior written permission 

from certain banks and financial institutions. Although no bank or financial institution has issued a notice of 

default to us, if we are held to be in breach of any financial or other covenants contained in any of our financing 

arrangements, we may be required to immediately repay our borrowings either in whole or in part, together with 

any related costs, and because of such defaults we may be unable to find additional sources of financing. If any 

of these events were to occur, it would likely result in a material adverse effect on our financial condition and 

results of operations or even our ability to continue as a going concern. 

 

13. Our Gold Loans are due within one year of disbursement, and a failure to disburse new loans may 

result in a reduction of our loan portfolio and a corresponding decrease in our interest income. 
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The Gold Loans we offer are due within one year of disbursement. The relatively short-term nature of our loans 

means that our long-term interest income stream is less certain compared to a portion of our loans offered for a 

longer term. In addition, our existing customers may not obtain new loans from us upon maturity of their 

existing loans, particularly if competition increases. The potential instability of our interest income could 

materially and adversely affect our results of operations and financial position. 

 

14. We have entered into assignment agreements to sell certain loans from our outstanding loan 

portfolio. If such assignment of loans is held to be unenforceable under applicable law, it could have 

a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

 

From time to time we sell and assign a group of similar loans from our outstanding loan portfolio to financial 

institutions in return for an upfront fixed consideration. For the year ended March 31, 2012 the outstanding 

portfolio of assigned loans was `  33,352.1 million, constituting 13.52% of the gross retail loan portfolio. As a 

part of such transactions, we provide credit enhancement through fixed deposits with banks or issue corporate 

guarantees to the purchaser for an amount equal to a negotiated percentage of the value of the loans being 

assigned. The loan assignment agreements contain certain representations and warranties made by us regarding 

the assigned loans, which, if breached could result in additional costs and expenses to us. In the event that one or 

more of the asset assignment agreements entered into by us are held by a court of law or declared by a statute as 

unenforceable, we may be required to terminate these assignment agreements and may suffer losses. Such 

events may adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of our operations and our ability to 

assign our loans.  
 

15. I f we are not able to control or reduce the level of non-performing assets in our portfolio, the overall 

quality of our loan portfolio may deteriorate and our results of operations may be adversely affected. 
 

We may not be successful in our efforts to improve collections and/or enforce the security interest on the gold 

collateral on existing as well as future non-performing assets. Moreover, as our loan portfolio matures, we may 

experience greater defaults in principal and/or interest repayments. Thus, if we are not able to control or reduce 

our level of non-performing assets, the overall quality of our loan portfolio may deteriorate and our results of 

operations may be adversely affected. Our gross NPAs as of year ended March 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 

2012 were ̀ 92.6 million, `  161.1 million ̀  343.6 million, ̀  460.1 million and ̀ 1,389.5 million, respectively. 

For further details on our non-performing assets, see the section titled ñOur Business - Non-performing Assetsò 

at page 74. The following table discloses the quantum of our non-performing assets in the preceding three 

financial years: 

 
(` in millions, except those expressed in percentage terms)  

  As of March 31, 

2012  2008 2009 2010 2011 

      

Gross NPAs 92.6 161.1 343.6 460.1 1389.5 

Provisions  9.3 16.1 37.1 69.6 181.3 

Net NPAs  83.3 145.0 306.4 390.5 1208.2 

Net Retail loans  1,7921.8 25,559.8 54,298.3 116,820.6 213,383.9 

Net NPAs/Net Retail loans (%) 0.46% 0.57% 0.56% 0.33% 0.57% 

Gross Retail Loans  22,262.8 33,690.1 74,381.5 158,684.5 246,736.0 

Gross NPAs/Gross Retail Loans (%) 0.42% 0.48% 0.46% 0.29% 0.56% 

Amounts Written-off  - - 6.2 18.3 69.2 

 

The Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) 

Directions, 2007 prescribe the provisioning required in respect of our outstanding loan portfolio. Should the 

overall credit quality of our loan portfolio deteriorate, the current level of our provisions may not be adequate to 

cover further increases in the amount of our non-performing assets. Furthermore, although we believe that our 

total provision will be adequate to cover all known losses in our asset portfolio, our current provisions may not 

be adequate when compared to the loan portfolios of other financial institutions. Moreover, there also can be no 

assurance that there will be no further deterioration in our provisioning coverage as a percentage of gross non-

performing assets or otherwise, or that the percentage of non-performing assets that we will be able to recover 

will be similar to our past experience of recoveries of non-performing assets. In the event of any further increase 

in our non-performing asset portfolio, there could be an even greater, adverse impact on our results of 

operations. 
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16. We face difficulties in carrying out credit risk analyses on our customers, most of whom are 

individual borrowers, which could have a material and adverse effect on our results of operations 

and financial condition. 

 
Unlike several developed economies, a nationwide credit bureau has only recently become operational in India, 

so there is less financial information available about individuals, particularly our focus customer segment from 

the low to middle income group who typically have limited access to other financing sources. It is therefore 

difficult to carry out precise credit risk analyses on our customers. Although we follow certain know-your-

customer procedures at the time of sanctioning a loan, we generally rely on the quality of the gold jewellery 

provided as collateral rather than on a stringent analysis of the credit profile of our customers. Although we 

believe that our risk management controls are sufficient, we cannot be certain that they will continue to be 

sufficient or that additional risk management policies for individual borrowers will not be required. Failure to 

maintain sufficient credit assessment policies, particularly for individual borrowers, could adversely affect our 

credit portfolio which could have a material and adverse effect on our results of operations and financial 

condition. 

 

17. Our customer base comprises mostly individual borrowers, who generally are more likely to be 

affected by declining economic conditions than large corporate borrowers. Any decline in the 

repayment capabilities of our borrowers, may result in increase in defaults, thereby adversely 

affecting our business and financial condition. 

 

Individual borrowers generally are less financially resilient than large corporate borrowers, and, as a result, they 

can be more adversely affected by declining economic conditions. In addition, a significant majority of our 

customer base belongs to the low to middle income group, who may be more likely to be affected by declining 

economic conditions than large corporate borrowers. 

 

Any decline in the economic conditions may impact the repayment capabilities of our borrowers, which may 

result in increase in defaults, thereby adversely affecting our business and financial condition. 

 

18. Because we handle high volume of cash and gold jewellery in a dispersed network of branches, we 

are exposed to operational risks, including employee negligence, fraud, petty theft, burglary and 

embezzlement, which could harm our results of operations and financial position. 
 

As of March 31, 2012, we held cash balance of `  2272.3 million and gold jewellery of 137.1 tons. Our business 

involves carrying out cash and gold jewellery transactions that expose us to the risk of fraud by employees, 

agents, customers or third parties, theft, burglary, and misappropriation or unauthorised transactions by our 

employees. Our insurance policies, security systems and measures undertaken to detect and prevent these risks 

may not be sufficient to prevent or detect such activities in all cases, which may adversely affect our operations 

and profitability. For example, (i) in 2011, we encountered two instances of staff fraud at our Jangareddygudem 

branch and Madhugiri branch, where ` 3,612,352 and `  1,130,178, respectively were misappropriated  by our 

employees, (ii) in fiscal year 2011, gold ornaments pledged by two of our customers at our Porur branch, and 

Kamarajasalai branch, against loan amounts of `  3,022,000 and `  1,260,520, respectively, were reported to be 

stolen goods and seized by the police, and (iii) in 2011 in the Patamate branch of our Company,  3,178.7 grams 

of spurious gold was pledged, against loan amounts of `  4,951,200. 

 

Further, we may be subject to regulatory or other proceedings in connection with any unauthorised transaction, 

fraud or misappropriation by our representatives and employees, which could adversely affect our goodwill. The 

nature and size of the items provided as collateral allow these items to be misplaced or mis-delivered, which 

may have a negative impact on our operations and result in losses.  

 

19. A decline in our capital adequacy ratio could restrict our future business growth.  

 

As per the RBI norms, from March 31, 2011, we are required to maintain a capital adequacy ratio of at least 

15.00% of our risk-weighted assets. Further, RBI has introduced minimum Tier I capital requirement of 12.00% 

to be effective from April 1, 2014 for NBFCs primarily engaged in lending against gold, including us. Our 

capital adequacy ratio was 18.29% as of March 31, 2012, with Tier I capital comprising of 12.84%. If we 

continue to grow our loan portfolio and asset base, we will be required to raise additional Tier I and Tier II 

capital in order to continue to meet applicable capital adequacy ratios and Tier I capital requirements with 

respect to our business of Gold Loans. There can be no assurance that we will be able to maintain adequate 

capital adequacy ratio or Tier I capital by raising additional capital in the future on terms favourable to us, or at 
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all. Failure to maintain adequate capital adequacy ratio or Tier I capital may adversely affect the growth of our 

business.  

 

20. If we fail to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting in the future, the accuracy 

and timing of our financial reporting may be adversely affected.  
 

We have taken steps intended to enhance our internal controls commensurate to the size of our business, 

primarily through the formation of a designated internal audit team with additional technical accounting and 

financial reporting experience. However, certain matters such as fraud and embezzlement cannot be eliminated 

entirely given the cash nature of our business. While we expect to remedy any such issues, we cannot assure you 

that we will be able to do so in a timely manner, which could impair our ability to accurately and timely report 

our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

 

21. We may experience difficulties in expanding our business into additional geographical markets in 

India, which may adversely affect our business prospects, financial conditions and results of 

operations. 
 

While the Gold Loans markets in the south Indian states of Kerala Tamil Nadu, Andhra Pradesh and Karnataka 

remains and is expected to remain our primary strategic focus, we also evaluate attractive growth opportunities 

in other regions in India and have expanded our operations in the northern, western and eastern states of India. 

We may not be able to leverage our experience in southern India to expand our operations in other regions, 

should we decide to further expand our operations. Factors such as competition, culture, regulatory regimes, 

business practices and customs, customer attitude, behavior and preferences in these cities where we may plan 

to expand our operations may differ from those in south Indian states of Kerala, Tamil Nadu, Andhra Pradesh 

and Karnataka and our experience in the states of Kerala, Tamil Nadu, Andhra Pradesh and Karnataka may not 

be applicable to these geographies. In addition, as we enter new markets and geographical areas, we are likely to 

compete not only with other large banks and financial institutions in the Gold Loan business, but also the local 

unorganised or semi-organised lenders, who are more familiar with local conditions, business practices and 

customs, have stronger relationships with customers and may have a more established brand name.  

 

If we plan to expand our geographical footprint, our business may be exposed to various additional challenges, 

including obtaining necessary governmental approvals, identifying and collaborating with local business 

partners with whom we may have no previous working relationship; successfully gauging market conditions in 

local markets with which we have no previous familiarity; attracting potential customers in a market in which 

we do not have significant experience or visibility; being susceptible to local taxation in additional geographical 

areas of India; and adapting our marketing strategy and operations to different regions of India in which other 

languages are spoken. Our inability to expand our current operations in additional geographical markets may 

adversely affect our business prospects, financial conditions and results of operations. 

 

22. System failures or inadequacy and security breaches in computer systems may adversely affect our 

operations and result in financial loss, disruption of our businesses, regulatory intervention or 

damage to our reputation. 

 

Our business is increasingly dependent on our ability to process, on a daily basis, a large number of transactions. 

Our financial, accounting or other data processing systems may fail to operate adequately or become disabled as 

a result of events that are wholly or partially beyond our control, including a disruption of electrical or 

communications services. 

 

If any of these systems do not operate properly or are disabled or if there are other shortcomings or failures in 

our internal processes or systems, it could adversely affect our operations and result in financial loss, disruption 

of our businesses, regulatory intervention or damage to our reputation. In addition, our ability to conduct 

business may be adversely impacted by a disruption in the infrastructure that supports our businesses and the 

localities in which we are located. 

 

Our operations also rely on the secure processing, storage and transmission of confidential and other 

information in our computer systems and networks. Our computer systems, software and networks may be 

vulnerable to unauthorised access, computer viruses or other malicious code and other events that could 

compromise data integrity and security. 
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23. We may not be able to maintain our current levels of profitability due to increased costs or reduced 

spreads. 

 

Our business involves a large volume of small-ticket size loans and requires manual operational support. Hence, 

we require dedicated staff for providing our services. In order to grow our portfolio, our expanded operations 

will also increase our manpower requirements and push up operational costs. Our growth will also require a 

relatively higher gross spread, or margin, on the lending products we offer in order to maintain profitability. If 

the gross spread on our lending products were to reduce, there can be no assurance that we will be able to 

maintain our current levels of profitability which could adversely affect our results of operations. 

 

24. Our ability to access capital also depends on our credit ratings. Any downgrade in our credit ratings 

would increase borrowing costs and constrain our access to capital and lending markets and, as a 

result, would negatively affect our net interest margin and our business. 

 

The cost and availability of capital is also dependent on our short-term and long-term credit ratings. We have 

been assigned an ñ[ICRA] A1+ò rating by ICRA for commercial paper and for short-term non-convertible 

debentures of ̀ 2,000.0 million, and a ñCRISIL A1+ò rating by CRISIL for short term debt instruments of 

`  40,000.0 million. We have been assigned a ñCRISIL AA-/Stableò rating by CRISIL for our `  4,000.0 million 

and `  1,000.0 million non-convertible debentures and our `  1,000.0 million subordinated debt. ICRA has 

assigned an ñ[ICRA] AA-/Stableò rating for our `  2,000.0 million non-convertible debentures and our `  1,000.0 

million subordinated debt. We have been assigned a long-term rating of ñ[ICRA] AA-/Stableò and a short-term 

rating of ñ[ICRA] A1+ò by ICRA for our `  10,428.0 million line of credit. Ratings reflect a rating agencyôs 

opinion of our financial strength, operating performance, strategic position, and ability to meet our obligations. 

While our recent credit ratings have been positive, any downgrade of our credit ratings would increase 

borrowing costs and constrain our access to capital and lending markets and, as a result, would adversely affect 

our business. In addition, downgrades of our credit ratings could increase the possibility of additional terms and 

conditions being added to any new or replacement financing arrangements.  

 

25. We may be subject to regulations in respect of provisioning for non-performing assets that are less 

stringent than in some other countries. If such provisions are not sufficient to provide adequate 

cover for loan losses that may occur, this could have an adverse effect on our financial condition, 

liquidity and results of operations. 

 

RBI guidelines prescribe the provisioning required in respect of our outstanding loan portfolio. These 

provisioning requirements may require us to reserve lower amounts than the provisioning requirements 

applicable to financial institutions and banks in other countries. The provisioning requirements may also require 

the exercise of subjective judgments of management. 

 

The level of our provisions may not be adequate to cover further increases in the amount of our non-performing 

assets or a decrease in the value of the underlying gold collateral. If such provisions are not sufficient to provide 

adequate cover for loan losses that may occur, or if we are required to increase our provisions, this could have 

an adverse effect on our financial condition, liquidity and results of operations and may require us to raise 

additional capital. For further details, see ñOur Business - Non-performing Assets (NPAs) - Provisioning policyò 

at page 74, as also in the section titled ñRegulations and Policies in India - Systemically Important ND-NBFCs - 

Prudential Norms - Provisioning Requirementsò at page 207. 

 

26. We are subject to supervision and regulation by the RBI as a non-deposit-taking systemically 

important NBFC. In case of any adverse change in the regulations, we may have to comply with 

stricter regulations and guidelines issued by regulatory authorities in India which may adversely 

affect our business, results of operation and financial condition.  
 

We are regulated principally by and have reporting obligations to the RBI. We are also subject to the corporate, 

taxation and other laws in effect in India. The regulatory and legal framework governing us may continue to 

change as Indiaôs economy and commercial and financial markets evolve. In recent years, existing rules and 

regulations have been modified, new rules and regulations have been enacted and reforms have been 

implemented which are intended to provide tighter control and more transparency in Indiaôs Gold Loan industry. 

Moreover, new regulations may be passed that restrict our ability to do business. For example, RBI has 

introduced revisions to the guidelines on securitisation transactions pursuant to which, assets with bullet 

repayment of both principal and interest are excluded from the eligibility norms for asset securitisation. Further, 

RBI has restricted our loan-to-value ratio for Gold Loan to 60.00%, prohibited grant of any advance against 
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primary gold and gold coins and imposed minimum Tier I capital requirement effective from April 1, 2014 upon 

us.  

 

Compliance with many of the regulations applicable to our operations may involve significant costs and 

otherwise may impose restrictions on our operations. We cannot assure you that we will not be subject to any 

adverse regulatory action in the future. Further, these regulations are subject to frequent amendments and 

depend upon government policy. Our present operations may not meet all regulatory requirements or subsequent 

regulatory amendments. If the interpretation of the regulators and authorities varies from our interpretation, we 

may be subject to penalties and the business of our Company could be adversely affected. There can be no 

assurance that changes in these regulations and the enforcement of existing and future rules by governmental 

and regulatory authorities will not adversely affect our business, results of operation and financial condition. 

 

27. Our loan portfolio is not classified as priority sector advances by the RBI. Failure to raise capital by 

selling down our Gold Loan portfolio in a timely manner or at all can adversely affect our financial 

condition and results of operations. 
 

The RBI currently mandates domestic commercial banks operating in India to maintain an aggregate 40.00% 

(currently, 32.00% for foreign banks) of their adjusted net bank credit or credit equivalent amount of off-balance 

sheet exposure, whichever is higher as ñpriority sector advancesò. These include advances to agriculture, small 

enterprises, exports and similar sectors where the Government seeks to encourage flow of credit for 

developmental reasons. Banks in India that have traditionally been constrained or unable to meet these 

requirements organically, have relied on specialised institutions like our Company that are better positioned to 

or focus on originating such assets through on-lending or purchase of assets or securitised pools to comply with 

these targets.  

 

In the past, we have sold our gold portfolio under the bilateral assignments. The entire portfolio sold under 

bilateral assignments were categorised as a priority sector advance for the years ended March 31, 2009 and 

2010. Further, ̀  33,737.0 million for the year ended March 31, 2011 and `  31,000.8 million for the year ended 

March 31, 2012 were categorized as priority sector advances. However, in accordance with the revised 

guidelines on priority sector lending issued by the RBI dated July 20, 2012, investments made by banks in 

securitised assets originated by NBFCs for loans against gold jewellery are not be eligible for priority sector 

lending. Accordingly, we will not be able to raise capital by selling down our Gold Loan portfolio under 

bilateral assignments to banks for meeting their priority sector lending norms.  

 

Failure to raise capital by selling down our Gold Loan portfolio in a timely manner or at all can adversely affect 

our financial condition and results of operations. 

 

28. Our ability to assess, monitor and manage risks inherent in our business differs from the standards 

of some of our counterparts in India and in some developed countries. Inability to effectively 

manage our risk management systems can adversely affect our business, financial condition and 

results of operation. 
 

We are exposed to a variety of risks, including liquidity risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, operational risk and 

legal risk. The effectiveness of our risk management is limited by the quality and timeliness of available data. 

 

Our hedging strategies and other risk management techniques may not be fully effective in mitigating our risks 

in all market environments or against all types of risk, including risks that are unidentified or unanticipated. 

Some methods of managing risks are based upon observed historical market behaviour. As a result, these 

methods may not predict future risk exposures, which could be greater than the historical measures indicated. 

Other risk management methods depend upon an evaluation of information regarding markets, customers or 

other matters. This information may not in all cases be accurate, complete, up-to-date or properly evaluated. 

Management of operational, legal or regulatory risk requires, among other things, policies and procedures to 

properly record and verify a number of transactions and events. Although we have established these policies and 

procedures, they may not be fully effective. Our future success will depend, in part, on our ability to respond to 

new technological advances and emerging financing institution and Gold Loan industry standards and practices 

on a cost-effective and timely basis. The development and implementation of such technology entails significant 

technical and business risks. There can be no assurance that we will successfully implement new technologies or 

adapt our transaction-processing systems to customer requirements or emerging market standards and any 

failure to do so can adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operation. 
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29. Any failure by us to identify, manage, complete and integrate acquisitions, divestitures and other 

significant transactions successfully could adversely affect our results of operations, business and 

prospects.  
 

As part of our business strategy, we may acquire complementary companies or businesses, divest non-core 

businesses or assets, enter into strategic alliances and joint ventures and make investments to further expand our 

business. In order to pursue this strategy successfully, we must identify suitable candidates for and successfully 

complete such transactions, some of which may be large and complex, and manage the integration of acquired 

companies or employees. We may not fully realise all of the anticipated benefits of any such transaction within 

the anticipated timeframe or at all. Any increased or unexpected costs, unanticipated delays or failure to achieve 

contractual obligations could make such transactions less profitable or unprofitable. Managing business 

combination and investment transactions requires varying levels of management resources, which may divert 

our attention from other business operations, may result in significant costs and expenses and charges to 

earnings. The challenges involved in integration include: 

 

Á combining product offerings and entering into new markets in which we are not experienced; 

 

Á consolidating and maintaining relationships with customers; 

  

Á consolidating and rationalising transaction processes and corporate and IT infrastructure;  

Á  

Á integrating employees and managing employee issues;  

Á  

Á coordinating and combining administrative and other operations and relationships with third parties in 

accordance with applicable laws and other obligations while maintaining adequate standards, controls 

and procedures;  

Á  

Á achieving savings from infrastructure integration; and  

Á  

Á managing other business, infrastructure and operational integration issues.  

 

Any such acquisition may also result in earnings dilution, the amortisation of goodwill and other intangible 

assets or other charges to operations, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, 

financial condition or results of operations. These acquisitions may give rise to unforeseen contingent risks or 

latent liabilities relating to these businesses that may only become apparent after the merger or the acquisition is 

finalised. Such acquisitions could involve numerous additional risks, including, without limitation, difficulties in 

the assimilation of the operations, products, services and personnel of any acquired company and could disrupt 

our ongoing business, distract our management and employees and increase our expenses. 

 

In addition, in order to finance an acquisition, we may be required to make additional borrowings or may issue 

additional Equity Shares, potentially leading to dilution of existing shareholders. 

 

30. In order to be successful, we must attract, retain and motivate key employees, and failure to do so 

could adversely affect our business. Failure to hire key executives or employees or the loss of key 

executives or employees could have a significant impact on our operations. 

 

In order to be successful, we must attract, train, motivate and retain highly skilled employees, especially branch 

managers and gold assessment technical personnel. If we cannot hire additional personnel or retain existing 

qualified personnel, our ability to expand our business will be impaired and our revenue could decline. Hiring 

and retaining qualified and skilled managers and sales representatives are critical to our future, and competition 

for experienced employees in the Gold Loan industry can be intense. In addition, we may not be able to hire and 

retain enough skilled and experienced employees to replace those who leave, or may not be able to re-deploy 

and retain our employees to keep pace with continuing changes in technology, evolving standards and changing 

customer preferences. The failure to hire key executives or employees or the loss of executives and key 

employees could have a significant impact on our operations. 

 

31. Our insurance coverage may not be adequate to protect us against all potential losses to which we 

may be subject. Any liability in excess of our insurance claim could have a material adverse effect 

on our results of operations and financial position.  
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We maintain insurance cover for our free hold real estate and tangible properties and infrastructure at all owned 

and leased premises which provide insurance cover against loss or damage by fire, earthquake, lightning, riot, 

strike, storm, flood, explosion, aircraft damage, rock slide and missile testing. Further we maintain insurance 

cover for employee fidelity, cash and gold in the office premises and in transit which provides insurance cover 

against loss or damage by employee theft, burglary, house breaking and hold up. The aggregate insured value 

covered by the various insurance policies we have subscribed may be less than the replacement cost of all 

covered property and may not be sufficient to cover all financial losses that we may suffer should a risk 

materialise. Further, there are many events that could significantly impact our operations, or expose us to third-

party liabilities, for which we may not be adequately insured. If we were to incur a significant liability for which 

we were not fully insured, it could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial 

position. 

 

32. Our results of operations could be adversely affected by any disputes with our employees. 

 
As of June 30, 2012, we employed 25,103 persons in our operations. Currently our employees do not belong to 

any labour union. We do not engage any long term contract employees. While we believe that we maintain good 

relationships with our employees, there can be no assurance that we will not experience future disruptions to our 

operations due to disputes or other problems with our work force, which may adversely affect our business and 

results of operations. 

 

33. Our inability to obtain, renew or maintain our statutory and regulatory permits and approvals 

required to operate our business may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial 

condition and results of operations. 
 

NBFCs in India are subject to strict regulations and supervision by the RBI. In addition to the numerous 

conditions required for the registration as a NBFC with the RBI, we are required to maintain certain statutory 

and regulatory permits and approvals for our business. In the future, we will be required to renew such permits 

and approvals and obtain new permits and approvals for any proposed operations. There can be no assurance 

that the relevant authorities will issue any of such permits or approvals in the time-frame anticipated by us or at 

all. Failure by us to renew, maintain or obtain the required permits or approvals may result in the interruption of 

our operations and may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of 

operations. 

 

In addition, our branches are required to be registered under the relevant shops and establishments laws of the 

states in which they are located. The shops and establishment laws regulate various employment conditions, 

including working hours, holidays and leave and overtime compensation. Some of our branches have not 

applied for such registration while other branches still have applications for registration pending. If we fail to 

obtain or retain any of these approvals or licenses, or renewals thereof, in a timely manner, or at all, our business 

may be adversely affected. If we fail to comply, or a regulator claims we have not complied, with any of these 

conditions, our certificate of registration may be suspended or cancelled and we shall not be able to carry on 

such activities. 

 

34. We are subject to legal and regulatory risk which may adversely affect our business. 
 

As a non-deposit taking NBFC, we are subject to a wide variety of financial services laws and regulations and 

are supervised by a large number of regulatory and enforcement authorities in India, including the RBI. The 

laws and regulations governing the banking and financial services industry in India have become increasingly 

complex and cover a wide variety of issues, such as capital adequacy, exposure and other prudential norms, 

interest rates, liquidity, securitisation, investments, ethical issues, know-your-customer guidelines, money 

laundering and privacy, with sometimes overlapping enforcement authorities. For instance, a number of states in 

India have enacted laws to regulate money lending transactions. These state laws establish maximum rates of 

interest that can be charged by a person lending money. The RBI, however, has not established a ceiling on the 

rate of interest that can be charged by a NBFC in our sector of operations. Currently, the RBI requires that the 

board of all NBFCs adopt an interest rate policy taking into account relevant factors such as the cost of funds, 

margin and risk premium. The rate of interest and the approach for gradation of risk and the rationale for 

charging different rates of interest for different categories of borrowers are required to be disclosed to the 

borrowers in the application form and expressly communicated in the sanction letter. 

 

Additionally, we are required to make various filings with the RBI, the ROC and other relevant authorities 

pursuant to the provisions of RBI regulations, Companies Act and other regulations. If we fail to comply with 
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these requirements, or a regulator claims we have not complied, in meeting these requirements, we may be 

subject to penalties and compounding proceedings. For instance, in the past, we had to approach the Company 

Law Board for condoning offences and had to pay certain penalties.  

 

In addition, there may be changes in the regulatory system or in the enforcement of the laws and regulations 

which may require us to restructure our activities and incur additional expenses in complying with such laws 

and regulations, which could materially and adversely affect our business. Failure to comply with applicable 

Indian regulations, including unauthorised actions by employees, representatives, agents and third parties, 

suspected or perceived failures and media reports, and ensuing inquiries or investigations by regulatory and 

enforcement authorities, could result in regulatory action, including financial penalties and restrictions on or 

suspension of our business operations. 

 

35. Major lapses of control, system failures or calamities could adversely impact our business. 

 

We are vulnerable to risks arising from the failure of employees to adhere to approved procedures, failures of 

security system, information system disruptions, communication systems failure and data interception during 

transmission through external communication channels and networks. Failure to detect these breaches in 

security may adversely affect our operations.  

 
36. Our ability to borrow from various banks may be restricted on account of guidelines issued by the 

RBI imposing restrictions on banks in relation to their exposure to NBFCs. Any limitation on our 

ability to borrow from such banks may increase our cost of borrowing, which could adversely impact 

our growth, business and financial condition. 

 
Under RBI Master Circular on bank finance to NBFCs issued on July 2, 2012, the exposure (both lending and 

investment, including off balance sheet exposures) of a bank to a single NBFC engaged in lending against 

collateral of gold jewellery (i.e. such loans comprising 50 per cent or more of its financial assets) should not 

exceed 7.50%, of the bank's capital funds. Banks may, however, assume exposures on a single NBFC up to 

12.50%, of their capital funds provided the exposure in excess of 7.50% is on account of funds on-lent by the 

NBFC to the infrastructure sector. Further, banks may also consider fixing internal limits for their aggregate 

exposure to all NBFCs put together and should include internal sub-limit to all NBFCs providing Gold Loans 

(i.e. such loans comprising 50 per cent or more of their financial assets), including us.  

 

This limits the exposure that banks may have on NBFCs such as us, which may restrict our ability to borrow 

from such banks and may increase our cost of borrowing, which could adversely impact our growth, business 

and financial condition. 

 

37. We have entered into certain transactions with related parties. Any transaction with related parties 

may involve conflicts of interest. 

 

We have entered into transactions with several related parties, including our Promoters, Directors and Group 

Entities. We can give no assurance that we could not have achieved more favourable terms had such 

transactions not been entered into with related parties. Furthermore, it is likely that we will enter into related 

party transactions in the future. There can be no assurance that such transactions, individually or in the 

aggregate, will not have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. The transactions 

we have entered into and any future transactions with our related parties have involved or could potentially 

involve conflicts of interest. 

 

For details regarding our related party transactions entered into by us as on March 31, 2012, see the section 

titled ñFinancial Informationò beginning at page 102. 

 

38. We have not entered into any definitive agreements to utilise a substantial portion of the net 

proceeds of the Issue.  

 

We intend to use the Net Proceeds for the purposes described in the ñObjects of the Issueò on page 53. We 

currently intend to use the Net Proceeds from the Issue to fund our growth. Our management will have broad 

discretion to use the Net Proceeds and you will be relying on the judgment of our management regarding the 

application of these Net Proceeds. Our funding requirements are based on current conditions and are subject to 

change in light of changes in external circumstances or in our financial condition, business or strategy. Our 

management, in response to the competitive and dynamic nature of the industry, will have the discretion to 
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revise its business plan from time to time. Any such change in our plans may require rescheduling of our current 

plans or discontinuing existing plans and an increase or decrease in the fund requirements for the objects, at the 

discretion of the management. Pending utilisation for the purposes described above, we intend to temporarily 

invest the funds in interest bearing liquid instruments including deposits with banks and investments in liquid 

(not equity) mutual funds. Such investments would be in accordance with the investment policies approved by 

our Board from time to time. 

 

39. We continue to be controlled by our Promoters and they will continue to have the ability to exercise 

significant control over us. We cannot assure you that exercise of control by our Promoters will 

always favour our best interest.  

 

Our Promoters along with relatives hold, 80.12% of our outstanding Equity Shares as on June 30, 2012. As a 

result, our Promoters will continue to exercise significant control over us, including being able to control the 

composition of our Board and determine matters requiring shareholder approval or approval of our Board. Our 

Promoters may take or block actions with respect to our business, which may conflict with our interests or the 

interests of our minority shareholders. By exercising their control, our Promoters could delay, defer or cause a 

change of our control or a change in our capital structure, delay, defer or cause a merger, consolidation, takeover 

or other business combination involving us, discourage or encourage a potential acquirer from making a tender 

offer or otherwise attempting to obtain control of us which may not favour our best interest. 

 

40. Our business strategy may change in the future and may be different from that which is contained 

herein. Any failure to successfully diversify into other businesses can adversely affect our financial 

condition.  

 

Our current business strategy is to expand our branch network and increase our Gold Loan portfolio. We cannot 

assure you that we will continue to follow these business strategies. In the future, we may decide to diversify 

into other businesses. We may also explore opportunities for expansion into new geographic markets outside 

India. We have stated our objectives for raising funds through the Issue and have set forth our strategy for our 

future business herein. However, depending on prevailing market conditions and other commercial 

considerations, our business model in the future may change from what is described herein. 

 

We cannot assure you that any diversification into other businesses will be beneficial to us. Further, any failure 

to successfully diversify in new businesses can adversely affect our financial condition. 

 

41. Our Promoters, Directors and related entities have interests in a number of entities, which are in 

businesses similar to ours and this may result in potential conflicts of interest with us.  
 

Certain decisions concerning our operations or financial structure may present conflicts of interest among our 

Promoters, other shareholders, Directors, executive officers and the NCD Holders. Our Promoters, Directors and 

related entities have interests in the following entities that are engaged in businesses similar to ours: 

 

Companies: 

 

1. Muthoot Vehicle & Asset Finance Limited 

2. Geo Bros Muthoot Funds (India) Limited  

3. Emgee Muthoot Benefit Fund (India) Limited 

4. Muthoot M George Permanent Fund Limited 

5. Muthoot Gold Funds Limited 

6. Muthoot Synergy Fund Limited 

7. Muthoot M George Chits (India) Limited 

8. Muthoot Finance UK Limited 

 

Partnership firms:  

 

1. Muthoot General Finance 

2. Muthoot Insurance Advisory Services  

3. Emgee Insurance Services 

4. Geo Financial Services 

5. Muthoot Bankers (Kottayam) 

6. Muthoot Bankers (Quilon) 
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7. Muthoot Bankers (Edapally) 

8. Muthoot Investments 

9. Muthoot Bankers (Alleppey) 

10. Muthoot M George Chitty Fund 

11. Muthoot M George Bankers (Trivandrum) 

12. Muthoot M George Chits (Bangalore) 

13. Muthoot Bankers (Pathanapuram) 

14. Muthoot Financiers (Pathanapuram) 

15. Muthoot M George Financiers (Faridabad) 

16. Muthoot Bankers (Faridabad) 

17. Muthoot Bankers (Pathanamthitta) 

18. Muthoot Bankers (Cochin) 

19. Muthoot Bankers (Bangalore) 

 

Commercial transactions in the future between us and related parties could result in conflicting interests. A 

conflict of interest may occur directly or indirectly between our business and the business of our Promoter 

which could have an adverse affect on our operations. Conflicts of interest may also arise out of common 

business objectives shared by us, our Promoters, Directors and their related entities. Our Promoters, Directors 

and their related entities may compete with us and have no obligation to direct any opportunities to us. There 

can be no assurance that these or other conflicts of interest will be resolved in an impartial manner. 

 

42. We are significantly dependent on our management team and our ability to attract and retain talent. 

Loss of any member from our management team can adversely affect our business and results of 

operation. 

 

We are significantly dependent upon a core management team who oversee the day-to-day operations, strategy 

and growth of our businesses. Many of the key management personnel have been with us since our inception 

and have been integral to our development. Our success is largely dependent on the management team who 

ensure the implementation of our strategy. If one or more members of our core management team were unable 

or unwilling to continue in their present positions, such persons may be difficult to replace, and our business and 

results of operation could be adversely affected. 

 

43. Our employees may be the target of theft, burglary and other crimes which may adversely affect our 

business, operations, and ability to recruit and retain employees. 

 

We handle large amount of cash and gold jewellery items in our daily operation and are exposed to risks of 

theft, burglary and other crimes. Our employees may therefore become targets of violence if they are present 

when these crimes are committed, and may sustain physical and psychological injuries as a result. We may 

encounter difficulties recruiting and retaining qualified employees due to this risk and our business and 

operations may be adversely affected. 

 

44. Our internal procedures, on which we rely for obtaining information on our customers and loan 

collateral, may be deficient and result in business losses.  
 

We rely on our internal procedures for obtaining information on our customers and loan collateral provided. In 

the event of lapses or deficiencies in our procedures or in their implementation, we may be subject to business 

or operational risk. For example, in the event that we unknowingly receive stolen goods as collateral from a 

customer, the goods can be seized by authorities. Once seized by the authorities, gold items will be stored in 

court storage facilities without a surety arrangement. No recourse will generally be available to Company in the 

event of such seizure, except the recovery of the loss from the customer.  

 

45. We do not own our branches of operation. Any termination of arrangements for lease of our 

branches or our failure to renew the same in a favourable, timely manner, or at all, could adversely 

affect our business and results of operations. 

 

Except for 14 branch offices, which are owned by us, all our branches are located on leased premises. If any of 

the owners of these premises does not renew an agreement under which we occupy the premises, attempts to 

evict us or seeks to renew an agreement on terms and conditions unfavorable to us, we may suffer a disruption 

in our operations or increased costs, or both, which may adversely affect our business and results of operations. 

For further details in relation to material eviction proceedings against us, see the section titled ñPending 
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proceedings and statutory defaultsò at page 151. 

 

46. Some of the lease agreements entered into by our Company with respect to our immovable properties 

may not be duly registered or adequately stamped, which may adversely affect our operations. 
 

Some of our lease agreements with respect to our immovable properties may not be adequately stamped or duly 

registered. Unless such documents are adequately stamped or duly registered, such documents may be rendered 

as inadmissible as evidence in a court in India or attract penalty as prescribed under applicable law, which may 

result in a material adverse effect on the continuance of the operations and business of our Company. 

 

EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS  

 

Risk factors related to India 

 

47. Political instability or changes in the Government of India could adversely affect economic 

conditions in India and consequently our business.  
 

Our Company is incorporated in India, derive its revenues in India and all of our assets are located in India. 

Consequently, our performance and the market price and liquidity of the NCDs may be affected by changes in 

exchange rates and controls, interest rates, Government policies, taxation, social and ethnic instability and other 

political and economic developments affecting India. The Government has traditionally exercised and continues 

to exercise a significant influence over many aspects of the economy. Our business and the market price and 

liquidity of the NCDs may be affected by interest rates, changes in Government policy, taxation, social and civil 

unrest and political, economic or other developments in or affecting India. Since 1991, successive governments 

have pursued policies of economic and financial sector liberalisation and deregulation and encouraged 

infrastructure projects. The new Government, which has come to power in May 2009 has announced policies 

and taken initiatives that support the economic liberalisation program pursued by previous governments. The 

policies of the new Government may change the rate of economic liberalisation, specific laws and policies 

affecting banks and financial institutions and the Gold Loan industry, foreign investment and other matters 

affecting investment in the NCDs. While the new Government is expected to continue the liberalisation of 

India's economic and financial sectors and deregulation policies, there can be no assurance that such policies 

will be continued. A significant change in the Government's policies in the future, in particular, those relating to 

NBFCs and the Gold Loan industry in India, could affect business and economic conditions in India, and could 

also adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.  

 

48. If communal disturbances or riots erupt in India, or if regional hostilities increase, this would 

adversely affect the Indian economy, and our business, financial condition and results of operations.  
 

India has experienced communal disturbances, terrorist attacks and riots during recent years. If such events 

recur, our operational and marketing activities may be adversely affected, resulting in a decline in our income. 

 

The Asian region has from time to time experienced instances of civil unrest and hostilities among neighbouring 

countries, including those between India and Pakistan. The hostilities between India and Pakistan are 

particularly threatening because both India and Pakistan are nuclear powers. Hostilities and tensions may occur 

in the future and on a wider scale. Military activity or terrorist attacks in India, such as the attacks in Mumbai in 

November 2008, as well as other acts of violence or war could influence the Indian economy by creating a 

greater perception that investments in India involve higher degrees of risk. Events of this nature in the future, as 

well as social and civil unrest within other countries in Asia, could influence the Indian economy and could have 

a material adverse effect on the market for securities of Indian companies, including the NCDs.  

 

49. A slowdown in the economic growth in India could cause our business to suffer.  
 

We derive all of our revenues from operations in India and consequently, our performance and growth is 

dependent on the state of the Indian economy. The First Quarter Review of Monetary Policy 2012-13 released 

by the RBI on July 31, 2012 (ñPolicyò) reveals that the GDP growth decelerated over four successive quarters 

from 9.2% in fourth quarter of the year 2010-11 to 5.3% in fourth quarter of the year 2011-12. Significant 

slowdown in industrial growth as well as deceleration in services sector activity pulled down the overall GDP 

growth to 6.5% for the year 2011-12, below the RBIôs baseline projection of 7%. In the Annual Policy 

Statement for the year 2012-13 released by RBI on April 17, 2012, RBI had projected GDP growth for the year 

2012-13 at 7.3% on the assumption of a normal monsoon and improvement in industrial activity. However, as 
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per the Policy, the monsoon has been deficient and uneven and the data on industrial production for April-May 

suggest that industrial activity, despite some recovery, remains weak. In addition, several risks to domestic 

growth have been highlighted in the Policy. First, global growth and trade volume are now expected to be lower 

than projected earlier. Second, given the greater integration of the Indian economy with the global economy, as 

per RBI this will have an adverse impact on growth, particularly in industry and the services sector.  Any 

slowdown in the Indian economy, and in particular in the financing requirements of our customers could 

adversely affect our business. 

 

50. A downgrade of Indiaôs sovereign debt rating may adversely affect our ability to raise additional debt 

financing. Failure to raise additional debt financing could adversely affect our business and 

financial condition. 
 

Recently, Indiaôs sovereign foreign currency long-term debt is downgraded by certain rating agencies citing 

structural challenges such as corruption, the absence, or inadequacy, of domestic reforms, and slow economic 

growth combined with elevated inflation. Such downgrading could cause a change in interest rates or other 

commercial terms and could adversely affect our ability to raise additional financing as well as our capital 

expenditure plans, business and future financial performance. This could adversely affect our business and 

financial condition.  

 

51. India is vulnerable to natural disasters that could severely disrupt the normal operation of our 

business. Prolonged spells of natural disasters could adversely affect our business, financial 

condition and results of operation. 
 

India, Bangladesh, Pakistan, Indonesia, Japan and other Asian countries have experienced natural calamities 

such as earthquakes, floods, droughts and a tsunami in recent years. Some of these countries have also 

experienced pandemics, including the outbreak of avian flu. These economies could be affected by the extent 

and severity of such natural disasters and pandemics which could, in turn adversely affect the financial services 

sector of which our Company is a part. Prolonged spells of abnormal rainfall, draught and other natural 

calamities could have an adverse impact on the economy, which could in turn adversely affect our business, 

financial condition and results of operation. 

 

52. A decline in Indiaôs foreign exchange reserves may affect liquidity and interest rates in the Indian 

economy, which could adversely impact our financial condition. 

 

According to the weekly statistical supplement released by the RBI, Indiaôs foreign exchange reserves totaled 

USD 289,152.1 million as on August 3, 2012 (Source: RBI Website as on August 15, 2012). A decline in Indiaôs 

foreign exchange reserves could impact the valuation of the Rupee and could result in reduced liquidity and 

higher interest rates which could adversely affect our financial condition. 

 

53. Companies operating in India are subject to a variety of central and state government taxes and 

surcharges. Any increases tax rates could adversely affect our business and results of operations. 
 

Tax and other levies imposed by the central and state governments in India that affect our tax liability include 

central and state taxes and other levies, income tax, value added tax, turnover tax, service tax, stamp duty and 

other special taxes and surcharges which are introduced on a temporary or permanent basis from time to time. 

Moreover, the central and state tax scheme in India is extensive and subject to change from time to time. For 

example, a new direct tax code is expected to be effective from April 1, 2013. In addition, a new goods and 

services tax regime is expected to be introduced in next fiscal year, and the scope of the service tax is proposed 

to be enlarged. The statutory corporate income tax in India, which includes a surcharge on the tax and an 

education cess on the tax and the surcharge, is currently 32.44%. The central or state government may in the 

future increase the corporate income tax it imposes. Any such future increases or amendments may affect the 

overall tax efficiency of companies operating in India and may result in significant additional taxes becoming 

payable. Additional tax exposure could adversely affect our business and results of operations. 

 

Risks relating to the Issue and the NCDs 
 

54. We cannot guarantee the accuracy or completeness of facts and other statistics with respect to India, 

the Indian economy and the NBFC and Gold Loan industries contained in this Draft Prospectus.  

 



 

 

 
28 

While facts and other statistics in this Draft Prospectus relating to India, the Indian economy as well as the Gold 

Loan industry has been based on various publications and reports from agencies that we believe are reliable, we 

cannot guarantee the quality or reliability of such materials, particularly since there is limited publicly available 

information specific to the Gold Loan industry. While we have taken reasonable care in the reproduction of such 

information, industry facts and other statistics have not been prepared or independently verified by us or any of 

our respective affiliates or advisers and, therefore we make no representation as to their accuracy or 

completeness. These facts and other statistics include the facts and statistics included in the section titled ñAbout 

the Issuer and Industry Overviewò at page 59. Due to possibly flawed or ineffective data collection methods or 

discrepancies between published information and market practice and other problems, the statistics herein may 

be inaccurate or may not be comparable to statistics produced elsewhere and should not be unduly relied upon. 

Further, there is no assurance that they are stated or compiled on the same basis or with the same degree of 

accuracy, as the case may be, elsewhere. 

 

55. There are other lenders and debenture trustees who have pari passu charge over the security 

provided for the Issue and we have applied for obtaining consent from them. 

 

There are other lenders and debenture trustees of our Company who have pari passu charge over the security 

provided for the Issue. While we are required to maintain an asset cover of 1 (one) time the outstanding amount 

of the NCDs, upon our Companyôs bankruptcy, winding-up or liquidation, the other lenders and debenture 

trustees will rank pari passu with the NCD holders and to that extent, may reduce the amounts recoverable by 

the NCD holders. As per Regulation 17(2) read with Schedule I of the SEBI Debt Regulations, we are required 

to obtain permissions / consents from the prior creditors in favour of the debenture trustee for creation of such 

pari passu charge and the same is required to be disclosed.  Accordingly, we have applied for obtaining consent 

from all other lenders and debenture trustees for creation of a first pari passu charge over the security.   

 

56. Changes in interest rate may affect the price of our NCD. Any increase in rate of interest, which 

frequently accompany inflation and/or a growing economy, are likely to have a negative effect on 

the price of our NCDs. 

 

All securities where a fixed rate of interest is offered, such as our NCDs, are subject to price risk. The price of 

such securities will vary inversely with changes in prevailing interest rates, i.e. when interest rates rise, prices of 

fixed income securities fall and when interest rates drop, the prices increase. The extent of fall or rise in the 

prices is a function of the existing coupon, days to maturity and the increase or decrease in the level of 

prevailing interest rates. Increased rates of interest, which frequently accompany inflation and/or a growing 

economy, are likely to have a negative effect on the price of our NCDs. 
 

57. You may not be able to recover, on a timely basis or at all, the full value of the outstanding amounts 

and/or the interest accrued thereon in connection with the NCDs. Failure or delay to recover the 

expected value from a sale or disposition of the assets charged as security in connection with the 

NCDs could expose you to a potential loss. 

 

Our ability to pay interest accrued on the NCDs and/or the principal amount outstanding from time to time in 

connection therewith would be subject to various factors inter-alia including our financial condition, 

profitability and the general economic conditions in India and in the global financial markets. We cannot assure 

you that we would be able to repay the principal amount outstanding from time to time on the NCDs and/or the 

interest accrued thereon in a timely manner or at all. Although our Company will create appropriate security in 

favour of the Debenture Trustee for the NCD holders on the assets adequate to ensure 100.00% asset cover for 

the NCDs, which shall be free from any encumbrances, the realisable value of the assets charged as security, 

when liquidated, may be lower than the outstanding principal and/or interest accrued thereon in connection with 

the NCDs. A failure or delay to recover the expected value from a sale or disposition of the assets charged as 

security in connection with the NCDs could expose you to a potential loss. 

 

58. If we do not generate adequate profits, we may not be able to maintain an adequate DRR for the 

NCDs issued pursuant to this Draft Prospectus, which may have a bearing on the timely redemption 

of the NCDs by our Company. 
 

Section 117C of the Act states that any company that intends to issue debentures must create a DRR to which 

adequate amounts shall be credited out of the profits of the company until the debentures are redeemed. The 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has, through its circular dated April 18, 2002, (the ñDRR Circularò), specified 

that the quantum of DRR to be created before the redemption liability actually arises in normal circumstances 
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should be óadequateô to pay the value of the debentures plus accrued interest, (if not already paid), till the 

debentures are redeemed and cancelled. The Circular however further specifies that, for NBFCs like our 

Company, (NBFCs which are registered with the RBI under section 45-IA of the RBI Act), the adequacy of the 

DRR will be 50.00% of the value of debentures issued through the public issue. Accordingly our Company is 

required to create a DRR of 50.00% of the value of debentures issued through the public issue. As further 

clarified by the DRR Circular, the amount to be credited as DRR will be carved out of the profits of the 

company only and there is no obligation on the part of the company to create DRR if there is no profit for the 

particular year. Accordingly, if we are unable to generate adequate profits, the DRR created by us may not be 

adequate to meet the 50.00% of the value of the NCDs. This may have a bearing on the timely redemption of the 

NCDs by our Company. 

 

59. There may be no active market for the NCDs on the retail debt market/capital market segment of the 

BSE and NSE. As a result the liquidity and market prices of the NCDs may fail to develop and may 

accordingly be adversely affected. 

 

There can be no assurance that an active market for the NCDs will develop. If an active market for the NCDs 

fails to develop or be sustained, the liquidity and market prices of the NCDs may be adversely affected. The 

market price of the NCDs would depend on various factors inter alia including (i) the interest rate on similar 

securities available in the market and the general interest rate scenario in the country, (ii) the market price of our 

Equity Shares, (iii) the market for listed debt securities, (iv) general economic conditions, and, (v) our financial 

performance, growth prospects and results of operations. The aforementioned factors may adversely affect the 

liquidity and market price of the NCDs, which may trade at a discount to the price at which you purchase the 

NCDs and/or be relatively illiquid. 

 

60. There may be a delay in making refund to Applicants. 

 

We cannot assure you that the monies refundable to you, on account of (i) withdrawal of your applications, (ii) 

our failure to receive minimum subscription in connection with the Base Issue, (ii) withdrawal of the Issue, or 

(iii) failure to obtain the final approval from the BSE and NSE for listing of the NCDs, will be refunded to you 

in a timely manner. We however, shall refund such monies, with the interest due and payable thereon as 

prescribed under applicable statutory and/or regulatory provisions. 

 

61. Any downgrading in credit rating of our NCDs may adversely affect the value of NCDs and thus our 

ability to raise further debts. 
 

The NCDs proposed to be issued under the Issue have been rated ó[ICRA] AA -(Stable)ô by ICRA for an amount 

of upto ̀  5,000.0 million vide its letter dated August 23, 2012 and óCRISIL AA-/Stableô by CRISIL for an 

amount of upto ̀ 5,000.0 million vide its letter dated August 14, 2012. The rating of the NCDs by ICRA and by 

CRISIL indicates a high degree of safety regarding timely servicing of financial obligations. The ratings 

provided by ICRA and CRISIL may be suspended, withdrawn or revised at any time by the assigning rating 

agency and should be evaluated independently of any other rating. These ratings are not a recommendation to 

buy, sell or hold securities and investors should take their own decisions. Please refer to page 276 to 280 for 

rating letters and rationale for the above rating.  

 

62. Securities on our NCDs rank as pari passu with our Companyôs secured indebtedness.  
 

Substantially all of our Companyôs current assets represented mainly by the Gold Loan receivables are being 

used to secure our Companyôs debt. As of June 30, 2012, our Companyôs secured debt was ̀  174,528.4 million. 

Securities on our NCDs will rank pari passu with any of our Companyôs secured obligations with respect to the 

assets that secure such obligations. The terms of the NCDs do not prevent our Company from incurring 

additional debt. In addition, the NCDs will rank pari passu to the existing and future indebtedness and other 

secured liabilities and obligations of our Company. 

 

63. Security provided for the Issue may not be enforceable if the security provided for the Issue is 

classified as óAssetsô under the IT Act and will be void as against any claim in respect of any tax or 

any other sum payable by our Company. 
 

We have certain proceedings pending under the IT Act before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal. Under 

section 281 of the IT Act and circular bearing number 04/2011 dated July 19, 2011, our Company is required to 

obtain prior consent of the assessing officer to create the security provided for the Issue to the extent classified 
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as assets under section 281 of the IT Act, during the pendency of such proceedings.  We have made an 

application to the relevant assessing officer seeking such prior consent on August 22, 2012. In the event that 

such consent is not granted, the security provided for the Issue to the extent classified as óAssetsô under section 

281 of the IT Act will be void as against any claim in respect of any tax or any other sum payable by our 

Company, including as a result of the completion of these proceedings. 

 

64. Payments to be made on the NCDs will be subordinated to certain tax and other liabilities preferred 

by law. In the event of bankruptcy, liquidation or winding-up, there may not be sufficient assets 

remaining to pay amounts due on the NCDs. 

 

The NCDs will be subordinated to certain liabilities preferred by law such as the claims of the Government on 

account of taxes, and certain liabilities incurred in the ordinary course of our business. In particular, in the event 

of bankruptcy, liquidation or winding-up, our Companyôs assets will be available to pay obligations on the 

NCDs only after all of those liabilities that rank senior to these NCDs have been paid as per section 530 of the 

Companies Act. In the event of bankruptcy, liquidation or winding-up, there may not be sufficient assets 

remaining to pay amounts due on the NCDs. 

 

65. The fund requirement and deployment mentioned in the Objects of the Issue have not been 

appraised by any bank or financial institution 

 

We intend to use the proceeds of the Issue, after meeting the expenditures of and related to the Issue, for our 

various financing activities including lending and investments, subject to applicable statutory and/or regulatory 

requirements, to repay our existing loans and our business operations including for our capital expenditure and 

working capital requirements. For further details, see the section titled ñObjects of the Issueò at page 53. The 

fund requirement and deployment is based on internal management estimates and has not been appraised by any 

bank or financial institution. The management will have significant flexibility in applying the proceeds received 

by us from the Issue. Further, as per the provisions of the Debt Regulations, we are not required to appoint a 

monitoring agency and therefore no monitoring agency has been appointed for the Issue. 

 

Prominent Notes: 

 

Á This is a public issue of NCDs aggregating upto `  2,500.0 million with an option to retain over-

subscription upto ̀ 2,500.0 million for issuance of additional NCDs aggregating to a total of upto 

`  5,000.0 million. 

 

Á For details on the interest of our Company's Directors, see the sections titled "Our Management" and 

"Capital Structure" beginning at pages 83 and 48, respectively. 

 

Á Our Company has entered into certain related party transactions, within the meaning of AS 18 as 

notified by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as disclosed in the section titled 

"Financial Information" beginning on page 102. 

 

Á Any clarification or information relating to the Issue shall be made available by the Lead Managers and 

our Company to the investors at large and no selective or additional information would be available for 

a section of investors in any manner whatsoever. 

 

Á Investors may contact the Registrar to the Issue, Compliance Officer, the Lead Managers for any 

complaints pertaining to the Issue. In case of any specific queries on allotment/refund, Investor may 

contact the Registrar to the Issue. 

 

Á In the event of oversubscription to the Issue, allocation of NCDs will be as per the "Basis of Allotment" 

set out on page 191.  

 

Á Our Equity Shares are listed on the NSE and BSE. Our non-convertible debentures issued pursuant to 

three public issues in the past are listed on NSE and/or BSE.  

 

Á As of March 31, 2012, we had certain contingent liabilities not provided for, amounting to `  4,679.1 

million. For further information on such contingent liabilities, see ñFinancial Informationò on page 

102. 
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Á For further information relating to certain significant legal proceedings that we are involved in, see 

"Pending Proceedings and Statutory Defaults" beginning on page 151. 
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SECTION III: INTRODUCTION  
 

GENERAL INFORMATION  
 

Our Company was originally incorporated as a private limited company on March 14, 1997 under the Companies Act, 

as ñThe Muthoot Finance Private Limitedò. Subsequently, by a fresh certificate of incorporation dated May 16, 2007, 

our name was changed to ñMuthoot Finance Private Limitedò. Our Company was converted into a public limited 

company on November 18, 2008 with the name ñMuthoot Finance Limitedò and received a fresh certificate of 

incorporation consequent to change in status on December 02, 2008 from the Registrar of Companies, Kerala and 

Lakshadweep. 

 

Registered and Corporate Office 

 

Muthoot Chambers 

Opposite Saritha Theatre Complex 

2
nd

 Floor, Banerji Road 

Kochi 682 018 

Kerala, India 

Telephone: (+91 484) 239 4712 

Facsimile: (+91 484) 239 6506 

Website: www.muthootfinance.com 

Email: cs@muthootgroup.com 

 

For details of change in our registered office, see the section titled ñHistory and Main Objectsò at page 80. 

 

Registration  
 

Details  Registration/Identification number  

Company registration number 011300 

CIN L65910KL1997PLC011300 

Registration number from the RBI for carrying on the business of an NBFC- ND- SI N.16.00167 

 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

 

Rajesh A. 

Muthoot Chambers 

Opposite Saritha Theatre Complex 

2
nd

 Floor, Banerji Road 

Kochi 682 018 

Kerala, India 

Tel: (+91 484) 353 5533 

Fax: (+91 484) 2396506 

E-mail: cs@muthootgroup.com 

 

Investors can contact the Compliance Officer or the Registrar to the Issue in case of any pre-Issue or post-Issue 

related problems, such as non-receipt of Allotment Advice, credit of Allotted NCDs in beneficiary accounts, 

NCD Certificates (for Applicants who have applied for Allotment in physical form), refund orders and interest 

on the Application Amounts. 

 

All grievances relating to the Issue may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue, giving full details such as name, 

Application Form number, address of the Applicant, number of NCDs applied for, amount paid on application, 

Depository Participant and the collection centre of the Members of the Syndicate where the Application was submitted. 

 

All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue with a copy to the relevant 

SCSB, giving full details such as name, address of Applicant, Application Form number, number of NCDs applied for, 

amount blocked on Application and the Designated Branch or the collection centre of the SCSB where the Application 

Form was submitted by the ASBA Applicant. 

 

All grievances arising out of Applications for the NCDs made through the Online Stock Exchanges Mechanism or 

through Trading Members may be addressed directly to the respective Stock Exchanges. 
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Lead Managers 

 

ICICI Securities Limited  

ICICI Centre, H.T. Parekh Marg, Churchgate  

Mumbai 400 020, India 

Telephone: (+91 22) 2288 2460 

Facsimile: (+91 22) 2282 6580 

Email: muthootfin.ncd@icicisecurities.com 

Investor Grievance Email: customercare@icicisecurities.com 

Website: www.icicisecurities.com 

Contact person: Payal Kulkarni/ Amit Joshi 

Compliance Officer: Subir Saha 

SEBI Registration number: INM000011179 

 

A. K. Capital Services Limited 

30-39, Free Press House, Free Press Journal Marg  

215, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021 

Maharashtra, India 

Telephone: (+91 22) 6754 6500 

Facsimile: (+91 22) 6610 0594 

Email: mflncd2012@akgroup.co.in 

Website: http://www.akcapindia.com 

Investor Grievance Email: investor.grievance@akgroup.co.in 

Contact Person : Akshata Tambe/ Lokesh Singhi 

Compliance Officer: Vikas Agarwal 

SEBI Registration No.: INM000010411 

 

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 

Edelweiss House, 14th Floor 

Off CST Road, Kalina 

Mumbai 400 098, Maharashtra, India 

Telephone: (+91 22) 4086 3535 

Facsimile: (+91 22) 4086 3610 

Email: muthootfin.ncd@edelcap.com 

Website: www.edelweissfin.com 

Investor Grievance Email: customerservice.mb@edelcap.com 

Contact Person : Sumeet Lath / Viral Shah 

Compliance Officer: Mr. B. Renganathan 

SEBI Registration No.: INM0000010650 

 

Karvy Investor Services Limited 

701, Hallmark Business Plaza 

Sant Dnyaneshwar Marg 

Off Bandra Kurla Complex 

Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051 

Maharashtra, India 

Telephone: (+91 22) 6149 1500  

Facsimile: (+91 22) - 6149 1515 

Email: muthootncd@karvy.com 

Website: www.karvy.com 

Investor Grievance Email: cmg@karvy.com 

Contact Person: Omkar Barve/ Sumit Singh 

Compliance Officer: V Madhusudhan Rao 

SEBI Registration No.: INM000008365 

 

RR Investors Capital Services (P) Limited 

133A, Mittal Tower, A Wing, Nariman Point  

Mumbai - 400 021  

Maharashtra, India 
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Telephone: (+ 91 22) 2288 6627 

Facsimile: (+91 22) 2285 1925 

Email: muthootncd@rrfcl.com 

Website: www.rrfinance.com/rrfcl.com 

Investor Grievance Email: investors@rrfcl 

Contact Person:  Brahmdutta Singh 

Compliance Officer: Sandeep Mahajan 

SEBI Registration No.: INM000007508 

 

SBI Capital Markets Limited  

202, Maker Tower E, Cuffe Parade 

Mumbai 400 005, Maharashtra, India 

Telephone: (+91 22) 2217 8300 

Facsimile: (+91 22) 2218 8332 

Email: mflncd2012@sbicaps.com 

Website: www.sbicaps.com 

Investor Grievance Email: investor.relations@sbicaps.com 

Contact Person : Apeksha A Munwanee / Anshika Malaviya 

Compliance Officer: Bhaskar Chakraborty 

SEBI Registration No.: INM 000003531 

 

Lead Brokers 

 

[ǒ] 

 

Debenture Trustee 
 

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited 

Asian Building, Ground Floor,  

17 R. Kamani Marg, Ballard Estate,  

Mumbai 400 001, India 

Telephone: (+91 22) 4080 7000 

Facsimile: (+91 477) 6631 1776 

Email: sarita.iyer@idbitrustee.com 

Website: www.idbitrustee.co.in 

Contact Person: Sarita Iyer 

SEBI Registration No.: IND000000460 

 

Registrar to the Issue 
 

Link Intime India Private Limited  

C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound 

L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup (West) 

Mumbai 400 078, India 

Telephone: (+91 22) 2596 7878 

Facsimile: (+91 22) 2596 0329 

Email: mfl4.ncd@linkintime.co.in 

Investor Grievance Email: mfl4.ncd@linkintime.co.in 

Website: www.linkintime.co.in 

Contact Person:  Dinesh Yadav 

SEBI Registration No.: INR000004058 

 

Statutory Auditors  

 

M/s. Rangamani & Co 
Chartered Accountants 

17/598, 2nd Floor, Card Bank Building 

West of YMCA Bridge 

VCSB Road 

Allepey 688 001 
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Kerala, India 

Telephone: (+91 477) 2251915 

Email: sreenavasan2121@gmail.com 

Firm Registration number: 003050S 

 

Credit Rating Agencies 

 

ICRA Limited  

1105, Kailash Building 

11
th
 Floor, Kasturba Gandhi Marg 

New Delhi ï 110001, India 

Telephone: (+9111) 23357940-50 

Facsimile: (+9111) 23357014 

Website: www.icra.in 

SEBI Registration Number: IN/CRA/003/1999 

 

CRISIL Limited  

CRISIL House, Central Avenue 

Hiranandani Business Park, Powai 

Mumbai 400 076, India. 

Telephone: (+91 22) 3342 3000 

Facsimile: (+91 22) 3342 3050 

Website: www.crisil.com  

SEBI Registration Number: IN/CRA/001/1999 

 

Disclaimer clause of ICRA  

 

ñThis rating is specific to the terms and conditions of the proposed issue as was indicated to us by you and any 

change in the terms or size of the issue would require the rating to be reviewed by us. If there is any change in the 

terms and conditions or size of the instrument rated, as above, the same must be brought to our notice before the 

issue of the instrument. If there is any such change after the rating is assigned by us and confirmed to use by you, it 

would be subject to our review and may result in change in the rating assigned. 

 

ICRA reserves its right to suspend, withdraw or revise the above at any time on the basis of new information or 

unavailability of information or such other circumstances, which ICRA believes, may have an impact on the rating 

assigned to you. 

 

The rating, as aforesaid, however, should not be treated as a recommendation to buy, sell or hold the bonds to be 

issued by you. If the instrument rated, as above, is not issued by you within a period of 3 months from the date of 

this letter communicating this rating, the same would stand withdrawn unless revalidated before the expiry of 3 

months.ò 

 

Disclaimer clause of CRISIL 
 

ñA CRISIL rating reflects CRISILôs current opinion on the likelihood of timely payment of obligations under the 

rated instrument and does not constitute an audit of the rated entity by CRISIL. CRISIL ratings are based on 

information provided by the issuer or obtained by CRISIL from sources it considers reliable. CRISIL does not 

guarantee the completeness and accuracy of the information on which the rating is based. A CRISIL rating is not a 

recommendation to buy/ sell or hold the rated instrument; it does not comment on the market price or suitability 

for a particular investor. 

 

CRISIL has a practise of keeping all its ratings under surveillance and ratings are revised as and when 

circumstances so warrant. CRISIL is not responsible for any error and especially states that it has no financial 

liability whatsoever to the subscribers/ users/ transmitters/ distributors of its ratings. For the latest rating 

information of any company rated by CRISIL please contact CRISIL RATING DESK, at 

CRISILratingdesk@crisil.com or at (+91 22) 3342 3001 ï 09.ò 

 

Legal counsel to the Issue  

 

Luthra & Luthra Law Offices  
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103, Ashoka Estate 

24, Barakhamba Road 

New Delhi 110 001, India. 

Telephone: (+ 91 11) 4121 5100 

Facsimile: (+ 91 11) 2372 3909 

 

Escrow Collection Banks/ Bankers to the Issue 

 

[ǒ]   

 

Refund Banks 

 

[ǒ] 

 

Self Certified Syndicate Banks 

 

The banks which are registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Bankers to an 

Issue) Regulations, 1994 and offer services in relation to ASBA, including blocking of an ASBA Account, a list 

of which is available on http://www.sebi.gov.in/cms/sebi_data/attachdocs/1333446433717.html or at such other 

website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time. 

 

Trading Members 

 

Individuals or companies registered with SEBI as ñtrading membersò who hold the right to trade in stocks listed 

on the Stock Exchanges, through whom investors can buy or sell securities listed on the Stock Exchanges, a list 

of which are available on www.bseindia.com/memberdir/members.asp (for Trading Members of BSE) and 

www.nseindia.com/members (for Trading Members of NSE). 

 

Bankers to the Company  

 

Axis Bank Limited  

Ground Floor 

Chicago Plaza, Rajaji Road 

Kochi 682 035 

Telephone: (+91 484) 441 1008 

Facsimile: (+91 484) 238 4273 

Email: suraj.das@axisbank.com/ 

kochi.operationshead@axisbank.com/ 

venkitachalam.anand@axisbank.com 

Website www.axisbank.com 

Contact Person: Suraj Das/ Venkitachalam Anand/ G. 

Vancheeswaran 

 

HDFC Bank Limited  

Corporate Banking 

9
th
 Floor, No. 115 

Dr. Radhakrishnan Salai 

Mylapore 

Chennai 600 004, India 

Telephone: (+91 44) 2847 7243 

Facsimile: (+91 44) 2847 7250 

Email: Rajesh.KumarM@hdfcbank.com 

Website: www.hdfcbank.com 

Contact Person: Rajesh Kumar M 

ICICI Bank Limited  

2
nd

 Floor, Andonai Towers 

SA Road, Kadavanthra 

Kochi 682 016, India 

Tel: (+91 484) 401 1365 

Fax (+91 484) 401 1359 

Email: letha.nair@icicibank.com 

Website: www.icicibank.com 

Contact Person: Letha T. Nair 

IDBI Bank Limited  

Specialised Corporate Branch 

Panampilly Nagar, P.B. No. 4253 

Kochi 682 036, India 

Tel: (+91 484) 231 0390/ 231 8889/ 329 0300 

Fax: (+91 484) 231 9042 

Email: pm.suresh@idbi.co.in 

Website: www.idbi.com 

Contact Person: P.M. Suresh 

 

Credit Rating and Rationale 

 

The NCDs proposed to be issued under the Issue have been rated ñ[ICRA] AA-/ Stableò by ICRA for an amount of 

upto ̀  5,000.0 million vide its letter dated August 23, 2012, and ñCRISIL AA-/Stableò by CRISIL for an amount of 

upto ̀  5,000.0 million vide its letter dated August 14, 2012. The rating of the NCDs by ICRA indicates a high degree of 

safety regarding timely servicing of financial obligations.The rating of NCDs by CRISIL indicates a high degree of 
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safety regarding timely servicing of financial obligations. For the rationale for these ratings, see Annexure B of this 

Draft Prospectus at page 276.  

 

Expert Opinion 

 

Our Company has not obtained any expert opinions in relation to the Issue. 

 

Minimum subscription 

 

If our Company does not receive the minimum subscription of 75.00% of the Base Issue i.e. `  1,875.0 million, prior to 

or on the Issue Closing Date, the entire subscription amount shall be refunded to the Applicants within the time period 

prescribed under applicable regulatory/ statutory requirements. If there is delay in the refund of subscription by more 

than eight days after our Company becomes liable to refund the subscription amount, our Company will pay interest for 

the delayed period, at rates prescribed under sub-sections (2) and (2A) of section 73 of the Companies Act. 

 

Utilisation of the proceeds of the Issue  

 

Our Board of Directors undertakes that:  

 

 all monies received out of the Issue shall be credited/transferred to a separate bank account other than the bank 

account referred to in sub-section (3) of section 73 of the Companies Act; 

 

 details of all monies utilised out of the Issue referred above shall be disclosed under an appropriate separate 

head in our balance sheet indicating the purpose for which such monies have been utilised; 

 

 details of all unutilised monies out of the Issue, if any, shall be disclosed under an appropriate head in our 

balance sheet indicating the form in which such unutilised monies have been invested; and 

 

 our Company shall utilise the proceeds of the Issue only upon creation of the security as stated in this 

Draft Prospectus and as will be stated in the Prospectus. 

 

Issue Programme 
 

The Issue shall remain open for subscription during banking hours for the period indicated above, except that the Issue 

may close on such earlier date or extended date as may be decided by the Board or the NCD Public Issue Committee, 

subject to necessary approvals. In the event of an early closure or extension of the Issue, our Company shall ensure that 

notice of the same is provided to the prospective investors through an advertisement in a reputed daily national 

newspaper on or before such earlier or extended date of Issue closure. 

 
ISSUE OPENS ON  [·], 2012 

ISSUE CLOSES ON  [·], 2012 
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SUMMARY OF BUSINESS, STRENGTH & STRATEGY  

 

Overview 

 

We are the largest gold financing company in India in terms of loan portfolio, according to the 2010 update to 

the IMaCS Research & Analytics Industry Reports, Gold Loans Market in India, 2009 (ñIMaCS Industry 

Report (2010 Update)ò). We provide personal and business loans secured by gold jewellery, or Gold Loans, 

primarily to individuals who possess gold jewellery but could not access formal credit within a reasonable time, 

or to whom credit may not be available at all, to meet unanticipated or other short-term liquidity requirements. 

According to the IMaCS Industry Report (2010 update), as of March 31, 2010 our branch network was the 

largest among gold loan NBFCs in India. Our Gold Loan portfolio as of March 31, 2012 comprised 

approximately six million loan accounts in India that we serviced through 3,678 branches across 20 states, the 

national capital territory of Delhi and four union territories in India. We have since increased our branch 

network to 3,780 branches as of June 30, 2012. As of June 30, 2012, we employed 25,103 persons in our 

operations. 

 

We are a ñSystemically Important Non-deposit taking NBFCò headquartered in the south Indian state of Kerala. 

Our operating history has evolved over a period of 73 years since M George Muthoot (the father of our 

Promoters) founded a gold loan business in 1939 under the heritage of a trading business established by his 

father, Ninan Mathai Muthoot, in 1887. Since our formation, we have broadened the scale and geographic scope 

of our retail lending operations so that, as of March 31, 2010, we were Indiaôs largest provider of Gold Loans. 

For the years ended March 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, revenues from our Gold Loan business 

constituted 95.97%, 96.71%, 98.08%, 98.75% and 99.12%, respectively, of our total income. In addition to our 

Gold Loans business, we provide money transfer services through our branches as sub-agents of various 

registered money transfer agencies, and recently have commenced providing collection agency services. We 

also operate three windmills in the state of Tamil Nadu.  

 

We issue secured non-convertible debentures called ñMuthoot Gold Bondsò on a private placement basis. 

Proceeds from our issuance of Muthoot Gold Bonds form a significant source of funds for our Gold Loan 

business. We also rely on bank loans and subordinated debt instruments as our sources of funds. As of March 

31, 2012 we had `  66,102.0 million in outstanding Muthoot Gold Bonds and `  127,730.0 million in other 

borrowings. We also raise capital by issuing commercial paper and listed and credit rated non-convertible 

debentures under private placement mode to various institutional investors. 

 

Our customers are typically small businessmen, vendors, traders, farmers and salaried individuals, who for 

reasons of convenience, accessibility or necessity, avail of our credit facilities by pledging their gold jewellery 

with us rather than by taking loans from banks and other financial institutions. We provide retail loan products, 

primarily comprising Gold Loans. We also disburse other loans, including those secured by Muthoot Gold 

Bonds. Our Gold Loans have a maximum 12 month term. Our average disbursed Gold Loan amount outstanding 

was ̀  40,611 per loan account as of March 31, 2012. For the year ended March 31, 2012, our retail loan 

portfolio earned, on an average, interest of 1.86% per month, or 22.34% per annum. 

 

As of March 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, our portfolio of outstanding gross Gold Loans under 

management was `  21,790.1 million, ̀  33,000.7 million,̀  73,417.3 million, ̀  157,280.7 million and `  244173.0 

million, respectively, and approximately 30.1 tons, 38.9 tons, 65.5 tons, 112.0 tons and 137.1 tons, respectively, 

of gold jewellery was held by us as security for our Gold Loans. Gross non-performing assets ("NPAs") were at 

0.42%, 0.48%, 0.46%, 0.29% and 0.56% of our gross retail loan portfolio under management as of March 31, 

2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively.  

 

For the years ended March 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, our total income was ̀  3,686.4 million, 

`  6,204.0 million, ̀  10,893.8 million, ̀  23,158.7 million and `  45,490.6 million, respectively, demonstrating an 

annual growth rate of 57.56%, 68.29%, 75.59%, 112.59% and 96.42%, respectively. For the years ended March 

31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 our profit after tax was `  630.6 million, ̀  978.7 million, ̀  2,285.2 million, 

`  4,941.8 million and ̀ 8,920.2 million, respectively, demonstrating an annual growth rate of 43.80%, 55.20%, 

133.49%, 116.25% and 80.51%, respectively. As of March 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, our net worth 

was `  2,223.6 million, `  3,702.3 million, `  5,845.5 million, `  13,344.1 million, and ̀  29,257.3 million, 

respectively. 

 

Competitive Strengths 
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We believe that the following competitive strengths position us well for continued growth:  

 

Market leading position in the Gold Loan business with a strong presence in under-served rural and semi-

urban markets 
 

Gold loans are the core products in our asset portfolio. We believe that our experience, through our Promoters, 

has enabled us to have a leading position in the Gold Loan business in India. Highlights of our market leading 

position include the following:  

 

 We are the largest gold financing company in India in terms of loan portfolio, according to the IMaCS 

Industry Report (2010 Update). Our loan portfolio as of March 31, 2012 comprised approximately six 

million loan accounts, in India with Gold Loans outstanding of `  244,173.0 million. 

 

 We have the largest branch network among gold loan NBFCs, according to the IMaCS Industry Report 

(2010 update). Our branch network has expanded significantly in recent years from 373 branches as of 

March 31, 2005 to 3,780 branches as of June 30, 2012, comprising 657 branches in northern India, 2,435 

branches in southern India, 500 branches in western India and 188 branches in eastern India covering 20 

states, the national capital territory of Delhi and four union territories in India. 

 

 We believe that due to our early entry we have built a recognizable brand in the rural and semi-urban 

markets of India, particularly in the south Indian states of Tamil Nadu, Kerala, Andhra Pradesh and 

Karnataka. As of March 31, 2012, the south Indian states of Tamil Nadu, Kerala, Andhra Pradesh, 

Karnataka and the Union Territory of Pondicherry constituted 68.40% of our total Gold Loan portfolio.  

 

 We have a strong presence in under-served rural and semi-urban markets. A large portion of the rural 

population has limited access to credit either because of their inability to meet the eligibility requirements 

of banks and financial institutions because credit is not available in a timely manner, or at all. We have 

positioned ourselves to provide loans targeted at this market. 

 

 We offer products with varying loan amounts, advance rates (per gram of gold) and interest rates. The 

principal loan amounts we disburse usually range from `  2,000.0 to ̀  200,000.0 while interest rates on our 

Gold Loans usually range between 12.00% and 26.00% per annum. 

 

Strong brand name, track record, management expertise and Promoter support 

 

Our operating history has evolved over a period of 73 years since M George Muthoot (the father of our 

Promoters) founded a gold loan business in 1939. We believe that the experience, skills and goodwill acquired 

by our Promoters over these years cannot be easily replicated by competitors. We have a highly experienced and 

motivated management team that capitalizes on this heritage at both the corporate and operational levels. Our 

senior management team has extensive experience in the Gold Loan industry and has demonstrated the ability to 

grow our business through their operational leadership, strategic vision and ability to raise capital. Under the 

current management team, our retail loan portfolio has grown from `  22,262.8 million as of March 31, 2008 to ̀  

246,736.0 million as of March 31, 2012. Our business is also well supported by our high net-worth Promoters, 

who are members of the Muthoot family. We believe that our track record, management expertise and Promoter 

support have established a strong brand name for us in the markets we serve. A strong brand name has 

contributed to our ability to earn the trust of individuals who entrust us with their gold jewellery, and will be a 

key in allowing us to expand our growth and consolidate this fragmented industry across India.  

 

High-quality customer service and short response time 
 

We adhere to a strict set of market survey and location guidelines when selecting branch sites to ensure that our 

branches are set up close to our customers. We believe that our customers appreciate this convenience, as well 

as extended operating hours that we typically offer, which are often more compatible with our customersô work 

schedules. We provide our customers a clean, attractive and secure environment to transact their business with 

us. In addition to the physical environment, it is equally important to have professional and attentive staff at 

both the branch level and at our centralized customer support centers. Each of our branches across India is 

staffed with persons who possess local knowledge and understanding of customers' needs and who are 

adequately trained to appraise collateral and disburse loans within a few minutes. Although disbursement time 

may vary depending on the loan ticket size and the number of items pledged, we can generally disburse an 

average loan ticket size of `  20,000.0 within five minutes from the time the gold is tendered to the appraiser, 
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except in case of first time customer where it may take upto half an hour for carrying out one-time-compliance 

with the KYC norms. Furthermore, since our loans are all over-collateralized by gold jewellery, there are 

minimal documentary and credit assessment requirements, thereby shortening our turnaround time. We believe 

our high quality customer service and short response time are significant competitive strengths that differentiate 

our services and products from those provided by commercial banks. 

 

Strong capital raising ability  

 

We have a track record of successfully raising capital from various sources. We regularly issue secured 

redeemable non-convertible debentures to retail investors on a private placement basis as a means to access 

capital for our Gold Loan business. We have also issued Equity Shares in three tranches to institutional investors 

and completed an initial public offer of our Equity Shares in the month of May 2011 and made three public 

issue of secured non-convertible debentures in September 2011 raising ̀  6,932.8 million, in January 2012 

raising ̀  4,593.1 million and in April 2012 raising ̀ 2,597.5 million. For further information, see the sections 

titled ñHistory and Main Objectsò and ñCapital Structureò at pages 80 and 48, respectively. As of 

March 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, aggregate outstanding amount of our Muthoot Gold Bonds 

portfolio was ̀  12,403.3 million, ̀  19,019.8 million, ̀  27,192.5 million, ̀  39,832.3 million and ̀ 66,102.4 

million, respectively. We have diversified our resource pool by supplementing our proceeds from the issuance 

of Muthoot Gold Bonds with borrowings from banks and other financial institutions. As of March 31, 2008, 

2009, 2010 2011 and 2012, our outstanding borrowings from banks were ̀ 5,884.9 million, ̀  11,067.6 million, 

`  21,278.7 million ̀  60,529.1 million and ̀ 86,470.1 million, respectively. We also issue subordinated debt 

which is considered as Tier II capital of our Company under private placement mode to mainly retail investors 

through our branch network. For details in relation to our credit rating of our debt instruments, see sub-section 

titled ñOur Strategies - Access low-cost and diversified sources of fundsò at page 41. 

 

In-house training capabilities to meet our branch expansion requirements 

 

Our ability to timely appraise the quality of the gold jewellery collateral is critical to the business. We do not 

engage third parties to assess the collateral for our Gold Loans, but instead employ in-house staff for this 

purpose. Assessing gold jewellery quickly is a specialized skill that requires assessing jewellery for gold content 

and quality manually without damaging the jewellery. We have two staff training colleges, one each in Kochi 

and in New Delhi, and regional training centers at each of our regional offices. We use our staff training 

colleges and regional training centers to train new employees in appraisal skills, customer relations and 

communication skills. We believe that our in-house training has built up a talent pool that enables us to staff 

new branches with qualified and skilled personnel as we seek to grow our branch network. Our in-house training 

capabilities also enable us to improve the skill sets of our existing personnel.  

 

Our Strategies 
 

Our business strategy is designed to capitalize on our competitive strengths and enhance our leading market 

position. Key elements of our strategy include:  

 

Expand branch network and visibility to maintain our market leadership position  
 

We intend to continue to grow our loan portfolio by expanding our network through the addition of new 

branches. In order to optimize our expansion, we carefully assess potential markets by analyzing demographic, 

competitive and regulatory factors, site selection and availability, and growth potential. We have a long-standing 

presence in southern India, and are among the first organized Gold Loan providers in northern and western 

India. Our strategy for branch expansion includes further strengthening our market leading position in south 

Indian states by providing higher accessibility to customers as well as leveraging our expertise and presence in 

southern India to enhance our presence in other regions of India, particularly in northern India, where we intend 

to open branches in most states. We have added 945 branches in the last fiscal year and 102 branches between 

April  1, 2012 and June 30, 2012, and expect this growth trend to continue in the future. At the core of our 

branch expansion strategy, we expect to penetrate new markets and expand our customer base to include 

customers who otherwise would rely on the unorganized sector. Moreover, our ethics, values and goodwill, 

which have established our strong brand, will continue to be important factors in our expansion. In addition to 

increasing the visibility of our brand by sponsoring events and publicity, we will continue to build trust among 

our customers and enhance our brand with quality services and safety and security of our customers' collateral. 

 

Target new customer segments 
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The market for our loan products was traditionally confined to lower and middle income groups, who viewed 

Gold Loans as an option of the last resort in case of emergency. We intend to undertake sustained marketing 

efforts to diminish the stigma attached to pledging gold jewellery in India. We plan to work to position Gold 

Loans as a ñlifestyle productò and expand our customer base to include upper-middle income and upper income 

groups. We intend to emphasize our Gold Loan products' key advantages of expediency and minimal 

documentation, and alter the image of Gold Loans from an option of the last resort to an option of convenience. 

 

Access low-cost and diversified sources of funds 

 

We source our funds for our Gold Loan business primarily from the proceeds of private placements of 

debentures in India and from secured and unsecured credit facilities from banks and other financial institutions. 

We have been assigned a long-term rating of ñAA-/Stableò and a short-term rating of ñ[ICRA] A1+ò by ICRA 

for our ̀  10,428.0 million line of credit. We intend to increase our efforts to access low-cost funds through rated 

debt instruments. In this regard, we have been assigned an ñ[ICRA] A1+ò rating by ICRA for commercial paper 

and for short-term non-convertible debentures of `  2,000.0 million and an ñA1+ò rating by CRISIL for short 

term debt instruments of `  40,000 million. As of March 31, 2012, the outstanding amount issued under 

commercial paper and rated short-term non-convertible debentures was `  7,694.5 million. We also intend to 

raise long-term institutional funding through long-term debt instruments. We have been assigned an ñCRISIL 

AA-/Stableò rating by CRISIL for our `  4,000.0 million and ̀ 1,000.0 million non-convertible debentures and 

our `  1,000.0 million subordinated debt. ICRA has assigned ñ[ICRA] AA-/Stableò rating for our `  2,000.0 

million non-convertible debentures and our `  1,000.0 million subordinated debt. We intend to increase the levels 

of our capital adequacy ratios in excess of regulatory requirements and strengthen our balance sheet with a view 

to have access to other sources of low-cost funds. Furthermore, we also intend to seek strong investments in our 

Company as another source of funding to expand our business.  

 

Strengthen our operating processes and risk management systems 

 
Risk management forms an integral part of our business as we are exposed to various risks relating to the Gold 

Loan business. The objective of our risk management systems is to measure and monitor the various risks we 

are subject to and to implement policies and procedures to address such risks. We intend to continue to improve 

our operating processes and risk management systems that will further enhance our ability to manage the risks 

inherent to our business. For example, we have commenced installing offsite surveillance cameras in our 

branches, and intend to implement this across our branch network. As of June 30, 2012, we had installed 

surveillance cameras in 3,001 branches across India. 
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THE ISSUE 

 

The following is a summary of the Issue. This summary should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its 

entirety by the information provided in the section titled ñTerms of the Issueò at page 157. 

 

Common Terms of the NCDs 

 
Issuer Muthoot Finance Limited 

Issue Public issue by our Company of NCDs aggregating upto `  2,500.0 million with an option to 

retain over-subscription upto ̀  2,500.0 million for issuance of additional NCDs, 

aggregating to a total of upto `  5,000.0 million. 

Stock exchanges proposed 

for listing of the NCDs 

BSE and NSE.  

Issuance and trading The NCDs will be issued in both physical as well as dematerialised form. Trading in the NCDs 

will however take place compulsorily in dematerialised form. 

Trading lot 1 (one) NCD  

Depositories NSDL and CDSL 

Security The security for the NCDs for the purpose of this Issue will be created in accordance with the 

terms of the Debenture Trust Deed. For further details see the section titled ñIssue Structureò at 

page 161. 

Rating  The NCDs proposed to be issued under the Issue have been rated ñ[ICRA ] AA -ò by 

ICRA for an amount of upto ` 5,000.0 million vide its letter dated August 23, 2012, and 

ñCRISIL AA-/Stableò by CRISIL for an amount of upto  ̀5,000.0 million vide its letter 

dated August 14, 2012. The rating of the NCDs by ICRA indicates a high degree of safety 

regarding timely servicing of financial obligations. The rating of NCDs by CRISIL 

indicates a high degree of safety regarding timely servicing of financial obligations. The 

ratings provided by ICRA and/or CRISIL may be suspended, withdrawn or revised at any 

time by the assigning rating agency and should be evaluated independently of any other 

rating. These ratings are not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold the NCDs and 

investors should take their own decisions. For further details, please refer to Annexure B 

at page 276 for the rationale for the above ratings. 

Issue Programme  

 

The Issue shall be open from [ǒ], 2012 to [ǒ], 2012 with an option to close earlier and/or extend 

upto a period as may be determined by the Board or the NCD Public Issue Committee. 

Pay-in date 3 (Three) Business Days from the date of upload of the Application on the electronic 

platform of the Stock Exchanges or the date of realisation of the cheques/demand drafts, 

whichever is later. 

Deemed Date of Allotment The Deemed Date of Allotment shall be the date as decided by the Board, or the NCD Public 

Issue Committee, and as mentioned on the Allotment Advice. 

Day count basis Actual/ Actual. 
* * The Issue shall remain open for subscription during banking hours for the period indicated above, except that the Issue may close on such earlier 
date or extended date as may be decided by the Board or the NCD Public Issue Committee, subject to necessary approvals. In the event of an early 
closure or extension of the Issue, our Company shall ensure that notice of the same is provided to the prospective investors through an advertisement in 

a reputed daily national newspaper on or before such earlier or extended date of Issue closure. 

 

The specific terms of each instrument are set out below: 

 
Options I  II  III  IV  V 

Frequency of 

interest payment 

 [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 

Minimum 

application 

`  [ǒ] ([ǒ] NCDs) (for all options of NCDs, namely Option I, Option II, Option III, Option IV and Option V 

either taken individually or collectively) 

In multiples of `  [ǒ] ([ǒ] NCD) `  [ǒ] ([ǒ] NCD) `  [ǒ] ([ǒ] NCD) `  [ǒ] ([ǒ] NCD) `  [ǒ] ([ǒ] NCD) 

Face value of 

NCDs 

(`  / NCD) 

`  1,000 `  1,000 `  1,000 `  1,000 `  1,000 

Issue Price (̀  / 

NCD) 

`  1,000 `  1,000 `  1,000 `  1,000 `  1,000 

Mode of interest 

payment 

Through various 

options available 

Through various 

options available 

Through various 

options available 

Through various 

options available 

Through various 

options available 

Coupon Rate (%) 

for NCD Holders 

in Category I 

 [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 

Coupon Rate (%) 

for NCD Holders 

 [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 
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Options I  II  III  IV  V 

in Category II  

Coupon Rate (%) 

for NCD Holders 

in Category III  

 [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 

Effective yield 

(per annum) for 

NCD Holders in 

Category I 

 [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 

Effective yield 

(per annum) for 

NCD Holders in 

Category II  

 [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 

Effective yield 

(per annum) for 

NCD Holders in 

Category III  

 [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 

Tenor  [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 

Redemption date  [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 

Redemption 

amount (per 

NCD) 

Repayment of the 

face value plus any 

interest that may 

have accrued at the 

redemption date. 

Repayment of the 

face value plus any 

interest that may 

have accrued at the 

redemption date. 

Repayment of the 

face value plus 

any interest that 

may have accrued 

at the redemption 

date. 

Repayment of the 

face value plus any 

interest that may 

have accrued at the 

redemption date. 

Repayment of the 

face value plus any 

interest that may have 

accrued at the 

redemption date. 

Nature of 

indebtedness 

Pari passu with other secured creditors and priority over unsecured creditors. 

 

Credit rating The NCDs proposed to be issued under the Issue have been rated ñ[ICRA] AA -/ Stableò by ICRA for an 

amount of upto ̀ 5,000.0 million vide its letter dated August 23, 2012, and ñCRISIL AA-/Stableò by 

CRISIL for an amount of upto ̀ 5,000.0 million vide its letter dated August 14, 2012. The rating of the 

NCDs by ICRA indicates a high degree of safety regarding timely servicing of financial obligations. The 

rating of NCDs by CRISIL indicates a high degree of safety regarding timely servicing of financial 

obligations. The ratings provided by ICRA and/or CRISIL may be suspended, withdrawn or revised at any 

time by the assigning rating agency and should be evaluated independently of any other rating. These ratings 

are not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold the NCDs and investors should take their own decisions. For 

further details, please refer to Annexure B at page 276 for the rationale for the above ratings. 

Deemed Date of 

Allotment  

The Deemed Date of Allotment shall be the date as decided by the Board or the NCD Public Issue 

Committee, and as mentioned on the Allotment Advice. 

Security First pari passu charge on the identified immovable property and a first pari passu charge on current assets, 

book debts, loans and advances, and receivables including gold loan receivables, both present and future, of 

our Company.*  

 

* We have applied to our lenders and debenture trustees in respect of our previous issues of debt securities for 

their consent for the creation of a first pari passu charge over the identified immovable property and the current 

assets, book debts, loans and advances, and receivables including gold loan receivables to secure the NCDs. Such 

consents shall be obtained from our lenders and debenture trustees prior to filing of the Prospectus with the RoC. 

 

Please see the sections titled ñIssue Procedure ï How to apply ï Who can applyò and ñIssue Procedure ï Basis 

of Allotmentò at pages 173 and 191, respectively for details of category wise eligibility and allotment in the 

Issue. 
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION  

 

The following tables present an extract of Reformatted Summary Financial Statements. The Reformatted 

Summary Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the examination report thereon issued by our 

Statutory Auditors and statement of significant accounting policies and notes to accounts on the Reformatted 

Summary Financial Statements contained in the section titled ñFinancial Informationò at page 102. 

 

REFORMATTED SUMMARY STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES  

                                                                                                                                                             

  Rs. In Millions       

  

Particulars 

 

Note 

As at 

March 31, 

2012 

As at 

March 31, 

2011 

As at 

March 

31, 2010 

As at 

March 

31, 2009 

As at 

March 

31, 2008 

 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES        

I  Shareholdersô funds       

(a) Share capital 1 3,717.13 3,202.13 3,010.00 490.00 50.00 

(b) Reserves and surplus 2 25,540.19 10,142.00 2,835.46 3,212.27 2,173.58 

   29,257.32 13,344.13 5,845.46 3,702.27 2,223.58 

II  Non-current liabilities        

(a) Long-term borrowings 3 62,416.53 26,692.18 11,208.20 6,638.74 5,017.95 

(b) Other Long term liabilities 4 2,686.94 1,258.61 749.82 443.94 251.28 

   65,103.47 27,950.79 11,958.02 7,082.68 5,269.23 

III  Current liabilities        

(a) Short-term borrowings 3 92,386.82 72,414.08 22,315.07 11,468.93 6,264.75 

(b) Trade Payables & Other current liabilities 5 44,227.65 22,899.69 23,056.51 14,909.89 8,843.96 

(c) Short-term provisions 6 2,746.76 601.31 180.44 43.90 36.38 

   139,361.23 95,915.08 45,552.02 26,422.72 15,145.09 

        
 Total Equity and Liabilities (I+II+III)   233,722.02 137,210.00 63,355.50 37,207.67 22,637.90 

 ASSETS       

IV  Non-current assets       

(a) Fixed assets 7      

 Tangible assets  2,621.06 1,835.57 1,242.05 1,161.91 992.51 

 Intangible assets  5.84 2.21 3.54 87.80 92.51 

 Capital work-in-progress  38.95 47.97 83.37 34.01 63.63 

 Intangible assets under development  16.42 - - - - 

        
(b) Non-current investments 8 75.05 75.05 75.05 75.31 55.31 

(c) Deferred tax assets (net)  3.90 (24.74) (24.83) (37.87) (41.73) 

(d) Long-term loans and advances 9 1,098.70 903.86 429.71 233.42 121.81 

(e) Other non-current assets 10 0.51 - - - - 

   3,860.43 2,839.92 1,808.89 1,554.58 1,284.04 

V Current Assets       

(a) Current investments 11 900.00 - - 10.00 128.13 

(b) Trade receivables 12 7,340.23 3,468.66 1,392.02 1,196.73 689.34 

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 13 7,950.39 13,754.95 5,759.92 8,825.32 2,580.38 

(d) Short-term loans and advances 14 213,600.22 117,057.22 54,390.16 25,599.29 17,954.79 

(e) Other current assets 15 70.75 89.25 4.51 21.75 1.22 

   229,861.59 134,370.08 61,546.61 35,653.09 21,353.86 

        
 Total Assets (IV+V)  233,722.02 137,210.00 63,355.50 37,207.67 22,637.90 

 

 

 Note As at 

March 31, 

2012 

As at 

March 31, 

2011 

As at 

March 

31, 2010 

As at 

March 

31, 2009 

As at 

March 

31, 2008 

 Net Worth Represented by       

 Share Capital  3,717.13 3,202.13 3,010.00 490.00 50.00 

 Reserves and Surplus  25,540.19 10,142.00 2,835.46 3,212.27 2,173.58 

 NET WORTH   29,257.32 13,344.13 5,845.46 3,702.27 2,223.58 

 

Note:        

 

The accompanying statement of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts on Financial statements 

are integral part of this Statement 
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REFORMATTED SUMMARY STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS  

          

Rs. In Millions 
 Particulars Note For the year 

Ended 

March 31, 

2012 

For the 

year 

Ended 

March 31, 

2011 

For the 

year 

Ended 

March 31, 

2010 

For the 

year 

ended 

March 31, 

2009 

For the 

year 

ended 

March 31, 

2008 

A  INCOME        

i Revenue from Operations 16 45,366.72 23,015.05 10,804.94 6,120.66 3,662.49 

ii  Other income 17 123.84 143.62 88.86 83.36 23.89 

         

 Total Revenue   45,490.56 23,158.67 10,893.80 6,204.02 3,686.38 

         

B EXPENSES       

i Employee benefits expense 18 4,144.77 2,209.49 1,169.44 677.01 405.35 

ii  Finance costs 19 23,698.99 10,382.87 4,745.36 3,109.28 1,797.99 

iii  Other expenses 20 3,393.18 2,239.47 1,146.57 698.59 380.68 

iv Directors Remuneration  192.00 192.00 192.23 120.90 48.90 

v Depreciation and amortization 

 Expense 

7 329.18 180.98 157.51 109.69 76.77 

vi Provisions and Write Offs 21 419.97 341.75 27.16 6.85 6.91 

         

 Total expenses  32,178.09 15,546.56 7,438.27 4,722.32 2,716.60 

         

C Profit Before Tax (A-B)  13,312.47 7,612.11 3,455.53 1,481.70 969.78 

         

D Tax expense       

i Current tax  4,420.86 2,670.46 1,192.81 508.36 339.39 

ii  Deferred tax  (28.63) (0.11) (13.03) (3.86) (5.58) 

 Total tax expenses  4,392.23 2,670.35 1,179.78 504.50 333.81 

         

E Profit for the year  8,920.24 4,941.76 2,275.75 977.20 635.97 

         

 Adjustments of earlier year 

 Income Tax Interest paid in  

2009-10 reclassified to the 

 respective years 

ANN  

VI 

- - 9.41 (4.46) (5.32) 

 Adjustment of excess 

provision  

of income tax, for earlier 

years 

 written back 

ANN  

VI 

- - - 5.96 - 

 Net Adjustments 

 (Refer note C of Annexure 

VI)  

 - - 9.41 1.50 (5.32) 

        
 Net Profit/(Loss) as 

Restated 

 8,920.24 4,941.76 2,285.16 978.70 630.65 

 

Note: 
 

The accompanying statement of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts on Financial statements 

are integral part of this Statement. 
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REFORMATTED SUMMARY OF CASH FLOW STATEMENT  

          

Rs. In Millions 

 Particulars For the 

year 

Ended 

March 31, 

2012 

For the 

year 

Ended 

March 31, 

2011 

For the 

year 

Ended 

March 31, 

2010 

For the 

year 

Ended 

March 

31, 2009 

For the 

year 

Ended 

March 

31, 2008 

A  Cash Flow From Operating Activities       

 Net Profit Before Taxation 13,312.47 7,612.11 3,455.53 1,481.70 969.78 

 Adjustments for:-      

 Add: Provision for Non-Performing Assets and Standard  

 assets 

350.74 323.46 20.98 6.85 6.91 

 Add: Finance Cost 23,698.99 10,382.87 4,745.36 3,109.28 1,797.99 

 Add: Income Tax Paid - 32.27 - - - 

 Add: Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets - 0.13 - - - 

 Add: Depreciation and amortisation 329.17 180.98 157.51 109.69 76.76 

 Less: Profit on sale of Fixed Assets (0.40) - (4.60) (0.18) (0.08) 

 Less: Interest received on Bank Deposits (122.57) (142.92) (83.71) (72.26) (22.28) 

 Operating profit before working capital changes 37,568.40 18,388.90 8,291.07 4,635.08 2,829.08 

       
 Adjustments for:-      

 (Increase) / Decrease in Loans and Advances (96,737.84

) 

(63,061.72

) 

(29,023.70

) 

(7,817.05

) 

(4,016.39

) 

 (Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables (3,871.57) (2,076.64) (195.29) (409.79) (652.66) 

 (Increase) / Decrease in other receivables (0.52) - -  - 

 Increase / (Decrease) in Current liabilities 200.12 170.62 1,800.74 69.02 965.57 

 Increase / (Decrease) in Other Liabilities 16.62 2.08 40.37 (0.54) 20.28 

 Cash generated from operations (62,824.79

) 

(46,576.76

) 

(19,086.81

) 

(3,523.28

) 

(854.13) 

 Finance cost paid (19,909.08

) 

(11,201.22

) 

(3,867.68) (2,597.08

) 

(2,018.06

) 

 Direct tax paid (4,354.21) (2,605.32) (1,067.84) (506.19) (318.52) 

 Net cash from operating activities (A) (87,088.08

) 

(60,383.30

) 

(24,022.33

) 

(6,626.55

) 

(3,190.71

) 

       
B Cash Flow From Investing Activities      

 Purchase of Fixed Assets (1,118.78) (773.86) (326.88) (274.81) (664.58) 

 Sale of Fixed Assets 0.89 0.58 50.48 0.62 0.67 

 (Increase) / Decrease in Capital Work in Progress (7.39) (44.08) (49.36) 63.63 (50.48) 

 (Investments in Bonds)/ Sale of Bonds (900.00) - 10.00 (20.00) - 

 Interest received on Bank Deposits 141.07 58.18 123.38 99.19 595.72 

 Net Cash from Investing Activities (B) (1,884.21) (759.18) (192.38) (131.37) (118.67) 

       
C Cash From Financing Activities      

 Net Proceeds from Issue of Debentures 34,646.13 16,289.75 8,672.68 6,616.54 3,571.15 

 Increase / (Decrease) in Loan from Directors / Relatives 

of 

 Directors 

(559.54) 246.99 103.49 114.24 44.97 

 Increase / (Decrease) in Borrowings from Bank 

/Financial 

 Institutions 

31,790.84 39,250.59 10,211.09 5,070.71 1,711.53 

 Increase / (Decrease) in Inter Corporate Loan  127.40 (13.70) 14.53 2.22 (1.10) 

 Increase / (Decrease) in Subordinated debt 7,695.24 3,859.18 2,147.53 699.15 - 

 Increase / (Decrease) in Commercial Papers 746.67 6,947.81 - - - 

 Issue of Equity Shares 9,012.50 2,556.90 - 500.00 - 

 Expenses for Initial Public Offer (291.49) - - - - 

 (Increase)/ Decrease in bank deposits held for greater 

than 

 3 months 

127.01 (1,737.69) 309.41 (500.04) (789.20) 

 Net Cash from Financing Activities (C ) 83,294.76 67,399.83 21,458.73 12,502.82 4,537.35 

       
 Net Increase In Cash And Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (5,677.53) 6,257.35 (2,755.98) 5,744.90 1,227.97 

 Cash And Cash Equivalent At The Beginning of The 

Year 

10,989.18 4,731.83 7,487.81 1,742.91 514.94 

 Cash And Cash Equivalent At The End of The Year 5,311.65 10,989.18 4,731.83 7,487.81 1,742.91 
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 Particulars For the 

year 

Ended 

March 31, 

2012 

For the 

year 

Ended 

March 31, 

2011 

For the 

year 

Ended 

March 31, 

2010 

For the 

year 

Ended 

March 

31, 2009 

For the 

year 

Ended 

March 

31, 2008 

       
 Components of  Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end 

 of the year 

     

 Current Account with Banks 2,989.30 9,329.38 3,552.13 1,475.80 311.26 

 Deposit with Banks 50.00 309.71 100.21 5,543.50 1,160.01 

 Cash on Hand 2,272.35 1,350.09 1,079.49 468.51 271.64 

 Total 5,311.65 10,989.18 4,731.83 7,487.81 1,742.91 
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE  
Details of share capital 

 

The Equity Share capital of our Company as at date of this Draft Prospectus is set forth below: 

 

Particulars Amount in `  

A Authorised share capital  

 450,000,000 Equity Shares 4,500,000,000 

 5,000,000 redeemable preference shares of ̀ 1,000 each 5,000,000,000 

 TOTAL  9,500,000,000 

B Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital  

 371,712,768 Equity Shares 3,717,127,680 

 

Details of changes in the authorised capital of our Company as on the date of this Draft Prospectus 

 
S.No. Particulars of increase Date of 

shareholdersô 

meeting 

AGM/EGM  

1. Increase in the authorised share capital from `  6,000,000 divided into 

600,000 Equity Shares to `  26,000,000 divided into 2,600,000 Equity 

Shares. 

November 20, 

2001 

EGM 

2. Increase in authorised share capital from `  26,000,000 divided into 

2,600,000 Equity Shares to `  86,000,000 divided into 8,600,000 Equity 

Shares.* 

August 21, 2004 Court convened 

general meeting 

3. Increase in authorised share capital from `  86,000,000 divided into 

8,600,000 Equity Shares to `  500,000,000 divided into 50,000,000 Equity 

Shares. 

September 10, 

2008 

AGM 

4. Increase in authorised share capital from `  500,000,000 divided into 

50,000,000 Equity Shares to `  3,500,000,000 divided into 350,000,000 

Equity Shares. 

August 24, 2009 EGM 

5. Increase in authorised share capital from `  3,500,000,000 divided into 

350,000,000 Equity Shares to `  4,500,000,000 divided into 450,000,000 

Equity Shares. 

September 21, 

2010 

EGM 

6. Increase in authorised share capital from `  4,500,000,000 divided into 

450,000,000 Equity Shares to `  9,500,000,000 divided into 450,000,000 

Equity Shares and 5,000,000 redeemable preference shares of `  1,000 each. 

March 07, 2011 EGM 

*This increase in authorised share capital was pursuant to the order of the High Court of Kerala, Ernakulam dated January 31, 2005 approving the 
scheme of arrangement and amalgamation of Muthoot Enterprises Private Limited with our Company. For further details regarding the scheme of 

arrangement and amalgamation, see the section titled ñHistory and Main Objectsò at page 80. 

 

Notes to capital structure 
 

1. Share capital history of our Company 

 

(a) Equity Share capital history of our Company 

 

The Equity Share capital history of our Company is as follows. 

 
Date of 

allotment 

No. of 

Equity 

Shares 

Face 

value 

(` ) 

Issue 

price 

(` ) 

Nature of 

consideration 

Reasons for 

allotment 

Cumulative 

no. of 

Equity 

Shares 

Cumulative 

paid-up 

share capital 

(` ) 

Cumulative 

share 

premium (` ) 

March 14, 

1997 

4,000 10 10 Cash Subscription to 

the 

Memorandum(1) 

4,000 40,000 - 

March 30, 

1998 

250,000 10 10 Cash Preferential 

Allotment(2) 

254,000 2,540,000 - 

March 06, 
2002 

1,750,000 10 30 Cash Preferential 
Allotment(3) 

2,004,000 20,040,000 35,000,000 

March 21, 

2005 

1,993,230 10 - Consideration 

other than cash, 
pursuant to 

scheme of 

amalgamation 

Allotment 

pursuant to 
scheme of 

amalgamation.(4) 

3,997,230 39,972,300 35,000,000 

October 

31, 2006 

1,000,000 10 250 Cash Preferential 

Allotment(5) 

4,997,230 49,972,300 275,000,000 

February 2,770 10 10 Cash Preferential 5,000,000 50,000,000 275,000,000 
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Date of 

allotment 

No. of 

Equity 

Shares 

Face 

value 

(` ) 

Issue 

price 

(` ) 

Nature of 

consideration 

Reasons for 

allotment 

Cumulative 

no. of 

Equity 

Shares 

Cumulative 

paid-up 

share capital 

(` ) 

Cumulative 

share 

premium (` ) 

27, 2007 Allotment(6) 

July 31, 

2008 

1,000,000 10 250 Cash Preferential 

Allotment(7) 

6,000,000 60,000,000 515,000,000 

October 

21, 2008 

42,000,000 10 - N.A. Bonus issue in 

the ratio 7:1(8) 

48,000,000 480,000,000 515,000,000 

December 
31, 2008 

1,000,000 10 250 Cash Preferential 
Allotment(9) 

49,000,000 490,000,000 755,000,000 

August 

29, 2009 

252,000,000 10 - N.A. Bonus issue in 

the ratio 36:7(10) 

301,000,000 3,010,000,000 0 

July 23, 

2010 

6,404,256 10 123 Cash Preferential 

allotment to 

Matrix Partners 
India 

Investments, 

LLC pursuant to 
an investment 

agreement. 

307,404,256 3,074,042,560 723,680,928 

July 23, 
2010 

6,404,256 10 123 Cash Preferential 
allotment to 

Baring India 

Private Equity 
Fund III Limited 

pursuant to an 

investment 
agreement. 

313,808,512 3,138,085,120 1,447,361,856 

September 

08, 2010 

3,042,022 10 133 Cash Preferential 

allotment to 

Kotak India 
Private Equity 

Fund pursuant to 
an investment 

agreement. 

316,850,534 3,168,505,340 1,821,530,562 

September 

08, 2010 

160,106 10 133 Cash Preferential 

allotment to 
Kotak 

Investment 

Advisors 
Limited 

pursuant to an 

investment 
agreement. 

317,010,640 3,170,106,400 1,841,223,600 

September 

23, 2010 

1,440,922 10 173.50 Cash Preferential 

allotment to 
Matrix Partners 

India 

Investments, 
LLC pursuant to 

an investment 

agreement. 

318,451,562 3,184,515,620 2,076,814,380 

September 

23, 2010 

1,761,206 10 173.50 Cash Preferential 

allotment to The 

Wellcome Trust 
Limited (as 

trustee of The 

Wellcome Trust, 
United 

Kingdom) 

pursuant to an 
investment 

agreement. 

320,212,768 3,202,127,680 2,364,771,561 

May 03, 
2011 

51,500,000 10 175 Cash Allotment 
pursuant to 

initial public 

offering. 

371,712,768 3,717,127,680 10,862,271,561 

 
(1)At the time of incorporation, upon subscription to the Memorandum, allotment of 1, 000 Equity Shares to each of M.G. George Muthoot, George 

Thomas Muthoot, George Jacob Muthoot and George Alexander Muthoot. 
 
(2)Allotment of 62, 500 Equity Shares to each of M.G. George Muthoot, George Thomas Muthoot, George Jacob Muthoot and George 

Alexander Muthoot. 
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(3)Allotment of Equity Shares to M.G. George Muthoot (200, 000), George Thomas Muthoot (200, 000), George Jacob Muthoot (200, 000), 

George Alexander Muthoot (250, 000), Georgie Kurien (150, 000), Valsa Kurien (150, 000), Sara George (150, 000), Susan Thomas (150, 
000), Elizabeth Jacob (150, 000), and Anna Alexander (150, 000). 

 
(4)Allotment of Equity Shares to M.G George Muthoot (684, 700), George Thomas Muthoot (234, 366), George Alexander Muthoot (587, 
866), Susan Thomas (58, 733), George Jacob Muthoot (340, 900), Elizabeth Jacob (38, 133), Anna Alexander (48, 433), Paul M. George 

(33), George M. George (33) and George M. Alexander (33) pursuant to order of the High Court of Kerala, Ernakulam dated January 31, 

2005 approving the scheme of arrangement and amalgamation of Muthoot Enterprises Private Limited with our Company whereby every 
shareholder of Muthoot Enterprises Private Limited is entitled to shares of our Company in the ratio of 3:1. For further details regarding 

the scheme of arrangement and amalgamation, see ñHistory and Main Objectsò on page 80. 

 
(5)Allotment of Equity Shares to M.G. George Muthoot (228, 700), George Alexander Muthoot (228, 700), George Thomas Muthoot (228, 

700), George Jacob Muthoot (228, 700), Anna Alexander (30, 000), Georgie Kurien (2, 400), Sara George (4, 800), Susan Thomas (4, 800), 

Elizabeth Jacob (30, 000), George M. George (10, 000), Paul M. George (800), Alexander M. George (800), George M. Jacob (800) and 
George M. Alexander (800). 

 
(6)Allotment of Equity Shares to George Alexander Muthoot. 
 
(7)Allotment of Equity Shares to M.G. George Muthoot (120, 000), George Alexander Muthoot (120, 000), George Thomas Muthoot (120, 

000), George Jacob Muthoot (120, 000), Anna Alexander (52, 000), Sara George (52, 000), Susan Thomas (52, 000), Elizabeth Jacob (52, 
000), George M. George (52, 000), Paul M George (52, 000), Alexander M. George (52, 000), George M. Jacob (52, 000), George M. 

Alexander (52, 000) and Eapen Alexander (52, 000). 

 
(8)Allotment of Equity Shares to M.G. George Muthoot (10, 828, 300), George Alexander Muthoot (10, 519, 852), George Thomas Muthoot 

(4, 525, 962), George Jacob Muthoot (5, 264, 700), Anna Alexander (1, 963, 031), Sara George (1, 447, 600), Susan Thomas (1, 508, 731), 

Elizabeth Jacob (1, 540, 931), George M. George (434, 931), Paul M. George (370, 531), Alexander M. George (370, 300), George M. 
Jacob (370, 300), George M. Alexander (370, 531), Eapen Alexander (365, 400), Susan Kurien (700), Reshma Susan Jacob (700), Anna 

Thomas (700), Valsa Kurien (1, 050, 000 ) and Georgie Kurien (1, 066, 800). 
 
(9)Allotment of Equity Shares to M.G. George Muthoot (120, 000), George Alexander Muthoot (120, 000), George Thomas Muthoot (120, 

000), George Jacob Muthoot (120, 000), Anna Alexander (52, 000), Sara George (52, 000), Susan Thomas (52, 000), Elizabeth Jacob (52, 
000), George M. George (52, 000), Paul M George (52, 000), Alexander M. George (52, 000), George M. Jacob (52, 000), George M. 

Alexander (52, 000) and Eapen Alexander (52, 000). 

 
(10)Allotment of Equity Shares to M.G. George Muthoot (37, 800, 000), George Alexander Muthoot (37, 800, 000), George Thomas Muthoot 

(37, 800, 000), George Jacob Muthoot (37, 800, 000), Anna Alexander (12, 600, 000), Sara George (11, 414, 736), Susan Thomas (25, 200, 

000), Elizabeth Jacob (12, 600, 000), George M. George (5, 670, 000), Paul M. George (2, 445, 264), Alexander M. George (5, 670, 000), 
George M. Jacob (12, 600, 000), George M. Alexander (6, 300, 000), Eapen Alexander (6, 300, 000). 

 

(b) Equity Shares issued for consideration other than cash. 

 

Except as disclosed below, our Company has not issued any Equity Shares for consideration other than cash. 

 
Date of 

allotment 

No. of Equity 

Shares 

Issue price 

(` ) 

Reasons for allotment Benefits accruing to our 

Company 

March 21, 2005 1, 993, 230 - Pursuant to scheme of 

amalgamation(1) 

Allotment pursuant to a scheme 

of amalgamation. 

TOTAL  1, 993, 230    
(1)Allotment of Equity Shares to M.G George Muthoot (684, 700), George Thomas Muthoot (234, 366), George Alexander Muthoot (587, 

866), Susan Thomas (58, 733), George Jacob Muthoot (340, 900), Elizabeth Jacob (38, 133), Anna Alexander (48, 433), Paul M. George 

(33), George M. George (33) and George M. Alexander (33) pursuant to order of the High Court of Kerala, Ernakulam dated January 31, 
2005 approving the scheme of arrangement and amalgamation of Muthoot Enterprises Private Limited with our Company whereby every 

shareholder of Muthoot Enterprises Private Limited is entitled to shares of our Company in the ratio of 3:1. For further details regarding 

the scheme of arrangement and amalgamation, see the section titled ñHistory and Main Objectsò at page 80. 

 

2. Share holding pattern of our Company 

 

The shareholding pattern of our Company as on August 17, 2012, is as follows. 
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Category of shareholder Number 

of 

shareholders 

Total number  

of Equity 

Shares 

Number of 

shares held in 

dematerialized 

form 

Total 

shareholding 

as a % of 

total number 

of Equity 

Shares (A+B) 

Shares pledge or 

otherwise 

encumbered 

Total 

shareholding 

as 

a % of total 

number of 

Equity 

Shares 

(A+B+C) 

Number 

of shares 

As a % 

Shareholding of Promoter and 

Promoter Group (A) 

       

Indian        

Individuals/ Hindu Undivided 
Family 

13 297,797,872 297,797,872 80.12 - - 80.12 

Central Government/ State 

Government(s) 

- - - - - - - 

Bodies Corporate - - - - - - - 

Financial Institutions/ Banks - - - - - - - 

Any Other - - - - - - - 

Foreign        

Individuals (Non-Resident 

Individuals/ Foreign Individuals) 

- - - - - - - 

Bodies Corporate (OCB) - - - - - - - 

Institutions/ FII - - - - - - - 

Any Other - - - - - - - 

Total Shareholding of 

Promoter and Promoter 

Group (A) 

13 297,797,872 297,797,872 80.12 - - 80.12 

Public shareholding (B)        

Institutions (B1)        

Mutual Funds/  UTI 10 15,493,778 15,493,778 4.17 - - 4.17 

Financial Institutions/  Banks 2 7,900 7,900 0.00 400 5.06 0.00 

Central Government/ -State 

Government(s) 

- - - - - - - 

Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - 

Insurance Companies - - - - - - - 

Foreign Institutional Investors 39 21,065,256 21,065,256 5.67 - - 5.67 

Foreign Venture Capital Investor - - - - - - - 

Qualified Foreign Investors 

(Individuals) 

- - - - - - - 

Qualified Foreign Investors 
(Corporations) 

- - - - - - - 

Sub-Total (B)(1) 51 36,566,934 36566934 9.84 400 0.00 9.84 

Non-institutions (B2)        

Bodies Corporate 425 4,092,936 4,092,936 1.10 787,25
7 

19.23 1.10 

Individual shareholders holding 

nominal share capital upto ̀  1 

lakh 

62,372 6,740,955 6,737,887 1.81 15,356 0.23 1.81 

Individual shareholders holding 
nominal share capital in excess 

of `  1 lakh 

48 2,560,853 2,560,853 0.69 324,23
0 

12.66 0.69 

Qualified Foreign Investors 

(Individuals) 

- - - - - - - 

Qualified Foreign Investors 
(Corporations) 

- - - - - - - 

Trusts 6 1,416 1,416 0.00 - - 0.00 

Clearing members 216 1,057,709 1,057,709 0.28 15,064 1.42 0.28 

Foreign nationals - - - - - - - 

Non Resident Indians 
(Repatriation basis) 

798 566,449 566,449 0.15 - - 0.15 

Non Resident Indians (Non-

repatriation basis) 

220 72,854 72,854 0.02 - - 0.02 

Foreign Companies 4 2,2254,790 22,254,790 5.99 - - 5.99 

Others  - - - - - - - 

Market Makers - - - - - - - 

Office Bearers - - - - - - - 

Sub-Total (B)(2) 64,089 37,347,962 37,344,894 10.05 1,141,9

07 

3.06 10.05 

Total Public Shareholding (B) 

= (B)(1)+(B)(2) 

64,140 73,914,896 73,911,828 19.88 1,142,3

07 

1.55 19.88 

Total (A)+(B) 64,153 371,712,768 371,709,700 100.00 1,142,3
07 

0.307
3 

100.00 
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Category of shareholder Number 

of 

shareholders 

Total number  

of Equity 

Shares 

Number of 

shares held in 

dematerialized 

form 

Total 

shareholding 

as a % of 

total number 

of Equity 

Shares (A+B) 

Shares pledge or 

otherwise 

encumbered 

Total 

shareholding 

as 

a % of total 

number of 

Equity 

Shares 

(A+B+C) 

Number 

of shares 

As a % 

Shares held by custodians and against which Depository receipts have been issued (C)  

(1) Promoter and Promoter 

Group 

- - - - - - - 

(2) Public - - - - - - - 

GRAND TOTAL (A)+(B)+(C)  64,153 371,712,768 371,709,700 100 1,142,

307 

0.31 100 

 

3. Top ten shareholders of our Company 

 
Our top ten shareholders and the number of Equity Shares held by them as on as on August 17, 2012 is as follows.  

 
Sr. No. Name No. of Equity Shares 

(face value of ̀  10 each) 

As % of total number of shares 

1. M G George Muthoot 47,385,132 12.75 
2. George Thomas Muthoot 44,464,400 11.96 
3. George Jacob Muthoot 44,464,400 11.96 
4. George Alexander Muthoot 44,464,400 11.96 
5. Susan Thomas 29,985068 8.07 
6. George M Jacob 15,050,000 4.05 
7. Elizabeth Jacob 14,935,068 4.02 
8. Anna Alexander 14,935,068 4.02 
9. Sara George 13,519,336 3.64 
10. Matrix Partners India Investments LLC 7,845,178 2.11 

 TOTAL  277,048,050 74.53 

 

4. Top ten holders of debt instruments as on July 31, 2011 
 

For details of the top ten holders of debt instruments of our Company as on July 31, 2011, please see ñAnnexure 

A ï Top ten holders of our debt instrumentsò at page 247. 

 

5. Debt to equity ratio 
 

The debt to equity ratio prior to this Issue is based on a total outstanding debt of `  193,833.0 million and shareholder 

funds amounting to ̀ 29,257.0 mill ion as on March 31, 2012. The debt equity ratio post the Issue, (assuming 

subscription of NCDs aggregating to `  5,000.0 million) would be 6.80 times, based on a total outstanding debt of `  

198,833.0 million and shareholdersô funds of `  29,257.0 million as on March 31, 2012.  

 
(in `  million)  

Particulars Prior to the Issue Post the Issue# 

Secured loans as on March 31, 2012 170,949.0 175,949.0 

Unsecured loans as on March 31, 2012 22,884.0 22,884.0 

Total debt 193,833.0 198,833.0 

Share capital as on March 31, 2012 3,717.0 3,717.0 

Reserves as on March 31, 2012 25,540.0 25,540.0 

Less: Miscellaneous Expenditure (to the extent not written off or adjusted) as on 

March 31, 2012 

Nil  Nil  

Total Shareholdersô Funds 29,257.0 29,257.0 

Debt Equity Ratio (No. of Times)# 6.63 6.80 
# 

The debt-equity ratio post the Issue is indicative and is on account of assumed inflow of `  5,000.0 million from the Issue and does not include 

contingent and off-balance sheet liabilities. The actual debt-equity ratio post the Issue would depend upon the actual position of debt and equity on the 

date of Allotment. 
  

For details on the total outstanding debt of our Company, see the section titled ñDisclosures on Existing Financial 

Indebtednessò at page 142. 
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OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE 
 

Issue proceeds 
 

Our Company has filed this Draft Prospectus for a public issue of NCDs aggregating upto `  2,500.0 million with an 

option to retain over-subscription upto `  2,500.0 million for issuance of additional NCDs, aggregating to a total of upto 

`  5,000.0 milli on. The funds raised through this Issue will be utilised for our various financing activities including 

lending and investments, to repay our existing liabilities or loans and towards our business operations including for our 

capital expenditure and working capital requirements and general corporate purposes, after meeting the expenditures of 

and related to the Issue and subject to applicable statutory/regulatory requirements 

 

The main objects clause of the Memorandum of Association of our Company permits our Company to undertake its 

existing activities as well as the activities for which the funds are being raised through this Issue. 

 

Monitoring of utilisation of funds  
 

There is no requirement for appointment of a monitoring agency in terms of the SEBI Debt Regulations. The Board of 

Directors shall monitor the utilisation of the proceeds of the Issue. Our Company will disclose in our Companyôs 

financial statements for the relevant financial year commencing from the financial year ended March 31, 2013, the 

utilisation of the proceeds of the Issue under a separate head along with details, if any, in relation to all such proceeds of 

the Issue that have not been utilised thereby also indicating investments, if any, of such unutilised proceeds of the Issue. 

 

Inter im use of proceeds 

 

The management of our Company, in accordance with the policies formulated by it from time to time, will have 

flexibility in deploying the proceeds received from the Issue. Pending utilisation for the purposes described above, 

we intend to temporarily invest the funds in interest bearing liquid instruments including deposits with banks 

and investments in liquid (not equity) mutual funds, as may be approved by the Board, and/or any duly constituted 

committee of Directors of our Company, as the case may be. Such investments would be in accordance with the 

investment policies approved by our Board from time to time.  

 

Other confirmations 
 

In accordance with the SEBI Debt Regulations, our Company will not utilise the proceeds of the Issue for providing 

loans to or acquisition of shares of any person who is a part of the same group as our Company or who is under the 

same management as our Company or any subsidiary of our Company. The Issue proceeds shall not be utilised towards 

full or part consideration for the purchase or any other acquisition, inter alia by way of a lease, of any property. 

 

No part of the proceeds from this Issue will be paid by us as consideration to our Promoter, our Directors, any key 

managerial personnel, or companies promoted by our Promoters except in the usual course of business. 

 

Further, our Company undertakes that proceeds from the Issue from the NCDs allotted to banks shall not be 

used for any purpose which may be in contravention of the RBI guidelines on bank financing to NBFCs 

including those relating to classification as capital market exposure or any other sectors that are prohibited under 

extant RBI regulations. 
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STATEMENT OF TAX BENEFITS  

 

STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE DEBENTURE HOLDERS  
 
Under the current tax laws, the following tax benefits, interalia, will be available to the Debenture Holders. The tax benefits 

are given as per the prevailing tax laws and may vary from time to time in accordance with amendments to the law or 

enactments thereto. The Debenture Holder is advised to consider in his own case the tax implications in respect of 

subscription to the Debentures after consulting his tax advisor as alternate views are possible. We are not liable to the 

Debenture Holder in any manner for placing reliance upon the contents of this statement of tax benefits.  

 

A.  IMPLICATIONS UNDER THE INCOME-TAX ACT, 1961 (óI.T. ACTô)  

 

I. To the Resident Debenture Holder  

 

1. Interest on NCD received by Debenture Holders would be subject to tax at the normal rates of tax in accordance with and 

subject to the provisions of the I.T. Act and such tax would need to be withheld at the time of credit/payment as per the 

provisions of Section 193 of the I.T. Act. However, no income tax is deductible at source in respect of the following:  

 

a. In case the payment of interest on debentures to a resident individual or a Hindu Undivided Family (óHUFô) Debenture 

Holder does not or is not likely to exceed Rs. 5,000 in the aggregate during the Financial year and the interest is paid by an 

account payee cheque.  

 

b. On any security issued by a company in a dematerialized form and is listed on recognized stock exchange in India in 

accordance with the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder. (w.e.f. 01.06.2008).  

 

c. When the Assessing Officer issues a certificate on an application by a Debenture Holder on satisfaction that the total 

income of the Debenture holder justifies no/lower deduction of tax at source as per the provisions of Section 197(1) of the 

I.T. Act; and that certificate is filed with the Company before the prescribed date of closure of books for payment of 

debenture interest  

 

d. (i) When the resident Debenture Holder with Permanent Account Number (óPANô) (not being a company or a firm) 

submits a declaration as per the provisions of section 197A(1A) of the I.T. Act in the prescribed Form 15G verified in the 

prescribed manner to the effect that the tax on his estimated total income of the financial year in which such income is to be 

included in computing his total income will be NIL. However under section 197A(1B) of the I.T. Act, Form 15G cannot be 

submitted nor considered for exemption from tax deduction at source if the aggregate of interest income credited or paid or 

likely to be credited or paid during the Financial year in which such income is to be included exceeds the maximum amount 

which is not chargeable to tax, as may be prescribed in each yearôs Finance Act.  

 

To illustrate, as on 01.04.2012,the maximum amount of income not chargeable to tax in case of individuals (other than 

senior citizens and super senior citizens) and HUFs is Rs. 2,00,000; ; in the case of every individual being a resident in India, 

who is of the age of 60 years or more but less than 80 years at any time during the Financial year (Senior Citizen) is Rs. 

2,50,000; and in the case of every individual being a resident in India, who is of the age of 80 years or more at any time 

during the Financial year (Super Senior Citizen) is Rs. 5,00,000 for Financial Year 2012-13.  

 

(ii) Senior citizens, who are 60 or more years of age at any time during the financial year, enjoy the special privilege to 

submit a self-declaration in the prescribed Form 15H for non deduction of tax at source in accordance with the provisions of 

section 197A(1C) of the I.T. Act even if the aggregate income credited or paid or likely to be credited or paid exceeds the 

maximum amount not chargeable to tax, provided that the tax due on total income of the person is NIL.  

 

(iii) In all other situations, tax would be deducted at source as per prevailing provisions of the I.T. Act. Form No.15G with 

PAN / Form No.15H with PAN / Certificate issued u/s 197(1) has to be filed with the Company before the prescribed date of 

closure of books for payment of debenture interest without any tax withholding.  

 

2. In case where tax has to be deducted at source while paying debenture interest, the Company is not required to deduct 

surcharge, education cess and secondary and higher education cess.  

 

3. Under section 2(29A) of the IT Act, read with section 2(42A) of the I.T. Act, a listed debenture is treated as a long term 

capital asset if the same is held for more than 12 months immediately preceding the date of its transfer. Under section 112 of 

the I.T. Act, capital gains arising on the transfer of long term capital assets being listed securities are subject to tax at the rate 

of 20% of capital gains calculated after reducing indexed cost of acquisition or 10% of capital gains without indexation of 

the cost of acquisition. The capital gains will be computed by deducting expenditure incurred in connection with such 

transfer and cost of acquisition/indexed cost of acquisition of the debentures from the sale consideration.  

 

However as per the third proviso to section 48 of I.T. Act, benefit of indexation of cost of acquisition under second proviso 

of section 48 of I.T. Act, is not available in case of bonds and debenture, except capital indexed bonds. Thus, long term 

capital gains arising out of listed debentures would be subject to tax at the rate of 10 % computed without indexation.  
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In case of an individual or HUF, being a resident, where the total income as reduced by such long-term capital gains is below 

the maximum amount which is not chargeable to income-tax, then, such long-term capital gains shall be reduced by the 

amount by which the total income as so reduced falls short of the maximum amount which is not chargeable to income-tax 

and the tax on the balance of such long-term capital gains shall be computed at the rate mentioned above.  

 

4. Short-term capital gains on the transfer of listed debentures, where debentures are held for a period of not more than 12 

months would be taxed at the normal rates of tax in accordance with and subject to the provisions of the I.T. Act. The 

provisions relating to maximum amount not chargeable to tax described at para 2 above would also apply to such short term 

capital gains.  

 

 

5. In case the debentures are held as stock in trade, the income on transfer of debentures would be taxed as business income 

or loss in accordance with and subject to the provisions of the I.T. Act.  

 

II. To the Non Resident Debenture Holder  

 

1. A non-resident Indian has an option to be governed by Chapter XII-A of the I.T. Act, subject to the provisions contained 

therein which are given in brief as under:  

 

a. Under section 115E of the I.T. Act, interest income from debentures acquired or purchased with or subscribed to in 

convertible foreign exchange will be taxable at 20%, whereas, long term capital gains on transfer of such Debentures will be 

taxable at 10% of such capital gains without indexation of cost of acquisition. Short-term capital gains will be taxable at the 

normal rates of tax in accordance with and subject to the provisions contained therein.  

 

b. Under section 115F of the I.T. Act, long term capital gains arising to a non-resident Indian from transfer of debentures 

acquired or purchased with or subscribed to in convertible foreign exchange will be exempt from capital gain tax if the net 

consideration is invested within six months after the date of transfer of the debentures in any specified asset or in any saving 

certificates referred to in section 10(4B) of the I.T. Act in accordance with and subject to the provisions contained therein.  

 

c. Under section 115G of the I.T. Act, it shall not be necessary for a non-resident Indian to file a return of income under 

section 139(1) of the I.T. Act, if his total income consists only of investment income as defined under section 115C and/or 

long term capital gains earned on transfer of such investment acquired out of convertible foreign exchange, and the tax has 

been deducted at source from such income under the provisions of Chapter XVII-B of the I.T. Act in accordance with and 

subject to the provisions contained therein.  

 

d. Under section 115H of the I.T. Act, where a non-resident Indian becomes a resident in India in any subsequent year, he 

may furnish to the Assessing Officer a declaration in writing along with return of income under section 139 for the 

assessment year for which he is assessable as a resident, to the effect that the provisions of Chapter XII-A shall continue to 

apply to him in relation to the investment income (other than on shares in an Indian Company) derived from any foreign 

exchange assets in accordance with and subject to the provisions contained therein. On doing so, the provisions of Chapter 

XII -A shall continue to apply to him in relation to such income for that assessment year and for every subsequent assessment 

year until the transfer or conversion (otherwise than by transfer) into money of such assets.  

 

2. In accordance with and subject to the provisions of section 115I of the I.T. Act, a Non-Resident Indian may opt not to be 

governed by the provisions of Chapter XII -A of the I.T. Act. In that case,  

 

a. Long term capital gains on transfer of listed debentures would be subject to tax at the rate of 10% computed without 

indexation  

 

b. Short-term capital gains on the transfer of listed debentures, where debentures are held for a period of not more than 12 

months preceding the date of transfer, would be taxed at the normal rates of tax in accordance with and subject to the 

provisions of the I.T. Act  

 

c. Where, debentures are held as stock in trade, the income on transfer of debentures would be taxed as business income or 

loss in accordance with and subject to the provisions of the I.T. Act.  

 

3. Under Section 195 of the I.T. Act, the company is required to deduct the applicable tax at source ie. 20% on investment 

income and 10% on any long-term capital gains as per section 115E, and at the normal rates for Short Term Capital Gains if 

the payee Debenture Holder is a Non Resident Indian.  

 

4. In case of foreign companies, where the income paid or likely to be paid exceeds Rs. 1,00,00,000 a surcharge of 2% of 

such tax liability is payable. 2% education cess and 1% secondary and higher education cess on the total income tax 

(including surcharge) is also deductible.  

 

5. The Finance Act, 2012 (by way of insertion of a new section 194LC in the I.T. Act) provides for lower rate of withholding 

tax at the rate of 5% (as against 20%) on payment by way of interest paid by an Indian company to a non-resident (including 
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a foreign company) in respect of borrowing made in foreign currency from sources outside India between July 1, 2012 and 

July 1, 2015, under a loan agreement approved by Central Government.  

 

6. As per section 90(2) of the I.T. Act read with the Circular no. 728 dated October 30, 1995 issued by the Central Board of 

Direct Taxes, in the case of a remittance to a country with which a Double Tax Avoidance Agreement (DTAA) is in force, 

the tax should be deducted at the rate provided in the Finance Act of the relevant year or at the rate provided in the DTAA, 

whichever is more beneficial to the assessee. However, submission of tax residency certificate, containing prescribed 

particulars is a mandatory condition for availing benefits under any DTAA.  

 

7. Alternatively, to ensure non deduction or lower deduction of tax at source, as the case may be, the Debenture Holder 

should furnish a certificate under section 197(1) of the I.T. Act, from the Assessing Officer before the prescribed date of 

closure of books for payment of debenture interest. However, an application for the issuance of such certificate would not be 

entertained in the absence of PAN as per the provisions of section 206AA.  

 

III. To the Foreign Institutional Investors (FIIs)  

 

1. In accordance with and subject to the provisions of section 115AD of the I.T. Act, long term capital gains on transfer of 

debentures by FIIs are taxable at 10% (plus applicable surcharge and education and secondary and higher education cess) 

and short-term capital gains are taxable at 30% (plus applicable surcharge and education and secondary and higher education 

cess). The benefit of cost indexation will not be available. Further, benefit of provisions of the first proviso of section 48 of 

the I.T. Act will not apply.  

 

2. Income other than capital gains arising out of debentures is taxable at 20% in accordance with and subject to the 

provisions of Section 115AD. In addition to the aforesaid tax, in case of foreign corporate FIIs where the income exceeds Rs. 

1,00,00,000 a surcharge of 2% of such tax liability is also payable. A 2% education cess and 1% secondary and higher 

education cess on the total income tax (including surcharge) is payable by all categories of FIIôs.  

 

3. In accordance with and subject to the provisions of section 196D(2) of the I.T. Act, no deduction of tax at source is 

applicable in respect of capital gains arising on the transfer of debentures by FIIs.  

 

4. The provisions at para II (6 and 7) above would also apply to FIIs.  

 

IV. To the Other Eligible Institutions  

 

All mutual funds registered under Securities and Exchange Board of India or set up by public sector banks or public 

financial institutions or authorised by the Reserve Bank of India are exempt from tax on all their income, including income 

from investment in Debentures under the provisions of Section 10(23D) of the I.T. Act subject to and in accordance with the 

provisions contained therein.  

 

V. Exemption under Sections 54EC and 54F of the I.T. Act  

 

1. Under section 54EC of the I.T .Act, long term capital gains arising to the debenture holders on transfer of their debentures 

in the company shall not be chargeable to tax to the extent such capital gains are invested in certain notified bonds within six 

months after the date of transfer. If only part of the capital gain is so invested, the exemption shall be proportionately 

reduced. However, if the said notified bonds are transferred or converted into money within a period of three years from 

their date of acquisition, the amount of capital gains exempted earlier would become chargeable to tax as long term capital 

gains in the year in which the bonds are transferred or converted into money. However, the exemption is subject to a limit of 

investment of Rs 50 Lakhs during any financial year in the notified bonds. Where the benefit of section 54EC of the Act has 

been availed of on investments in the notified bonds, a deduction from the income with reference to such cost shall not be 

allowed under section 80C of the Act.  

 

2. As per the provisions of section 54F of the I.T. Act, any long-term capital gains on transfer of a long term capital asset 

(not being residential house) arising to a Debenture Holder who is an individual or Hindu Undivided Family, is exempt from 

tax if the entire net sales consideration is utilized, within a period of one year before, or two years after the date of transfer, 

in purchase of a new residential house, or for construction of residential house within three years from the date of transfer. If 

part of such net sales consideration is invested within the prescribed period in a residential house, then such gains would be 

chargeable to tax on a proportionate basis. This exemption is available, subject to the condition that the Debenture Holder 

does not own more than one residential house at the time of such transfer. If the residential house in which the investment 

has been made is ransferred within a period of three years from the date of its purchase or construction, the amount of capital 

gains tax exempted earlier would become chargeable to tax as long term capital gains in the year in which such residential 

house is transferred. Similarly, if the Debenture Holder purchases within a period of two years or constructs within a period 

of three years after the date of transfer of capital asset, another residential house (other than the new residential house 

referred above), then the original exemption will be taxed as capital gains in the year in which the additional residential 

house is acquired.  

 

VI. Requirement to furnish PAN under the I.T. Act  
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1. Sec.139A(5A)  

 

a. Section 139A(5A) requires every person from whose income tax has been deducted at source under chapter XVII-B of the 

I.T. Act to furnish his PAN to the person responsible for deduction of tax at source.  

 

2. Sec.206AA:  

 

a. Section 206AA of the I.T. Act requires every person entitled to receive any sum, on which tax is deductible under Chapter 

XVIIB (ódeducteeô) to furnish his PAN to the deductor, failing which attracts tax shall be deducted at the higher of the 

following rates:  

 

(i) at the rate specified in the relevant provision of the I.T. Act; or  

(ii) at the rate or rates in force; or  

(iii) at the rate of twenty per cent.  

 

b. A declaration under Section 197A(1) or 197A(1A) 197A(1C) shall not be valid unless the person furnishes his PAN in 

such declaration and the deductor is required to deduct tax as per Para (a) above in such a case  

 

c. Where a wrong PAN is provided, it will be regarded as non furnishing of PAN and Para (a) above will apply  

 

VII. Taxability of Gifts received for nil or inadequate consideration  

As per section 56(2)(vii) of the I.T. Act, where an individual or Hindu Undivided Family receives debentures from any 

person on or after 1st October, 2009:  

 

(i) without any consideration, aggregate fair market value of which exceeds fifty thousand rupees, then the whole of the 

aggregate fair market value of such debentures or;  

(ii) for a consideration which is less than the aggregate fair market value of the debenture by an amount exceeding fifty 

thousand rupees, then the aggregate fair market value of such debentures as exceeds such consideration;  

 

shall be taxable as the income of the recipient at the normal rates of tax  

 

However, this provision would not apply to any receipt:  

 

(a) from any relative; or  

(b) on the occasion of the marriage of the individual; or  

(c) under a will or by way of inheritance; or  

(d) in contemplation of death of the payer or donor, as the case may be; or  

(e) from any local authority as defined in Section 10(20) of the I.T. Act  

(f) from any fund or foundation or university or other educational institution or hospital or other medical institution or any 

trust or institution referred to in Section 10(23C)  

(g) from any trust or institution registered under section 12AA.  

 

B. IMPLICATIONS UNDER THE WEALTH TAX ACT, 1957  

 

Wealth-tax is not levied on investment in debentures under section 2(ea) of the Wealth-tax Act, 1957.  

 

1. The above Statement sets out the provisions of law in a summary manner only and is not a complete analysis or listing of 

all potential tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposal of shares.  

 

2. The above statement covers only certain relevant benefits under the Income-tax Act, 1961 and Wealth Tax Act, 

1957(collectively referred to as ódirect tax lawsô) and does not cover benefits under any other law.  

 

3. The above statement of possible tax benefits are as per the current direct tax laws relevant for the assessment year 2013-

14. Several of these benefits are dependent on the Debenture Holder fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the relevant 

provisions.  

 

4. This statement is intended only to provide general information to the Debenture Holders and is neither designed nor 

intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature of tax consequences, each Debenture 

Holder is advised to consult his/her/its own tax advisor with respect to specific tax consequences of his/her/its holding in the 

debentures of the Company.  

 

5. The stated benefits will be available only to the sole/ first named holder in case the debenture is held by joint holders.  

 

6. In respect of non-residents, the tax rates and consequent taxation mentioned above will be further subject to any benefits 

available under the relevant tax treaty, if any, between India and the country in which the non resident has fiscal domicile.  
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7. In respect of non-residents, taxes paid in India could be claimed as a credit in accordance with the provisions of the 

relevant tax treaty.  

 

8. No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein. Our views are based 

on the existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to changes from time to time. We do not assume 

responsibility to update the views consequent to such changes. We shall not be liable to any claims, liabilities or expenses 

relating to this assignment except to the extent of fees relating to this assignment, as finally judicially determined to have 

resulted primarily from bad faith or intentional misconduct. We will not be liable to any other person in respect of this 

statement.  
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SECTION IV: ABOUT THE ISSUER AND INDUSTRY OVERVIEW  
 

The following information includes extracts from publicly available information, data and statistics derived from 

reports prepared by third party consultants, including the IMaCS Industry Report 2009 and the IMaCS Industry 

Report (2010 Update), private publications, and industry reports prepared by various trade associations, as 

well as other sources, which have not been prepared or independently verified by our Company and the Lead 

Managers or any of their respective affiliates or advisors. Such information, data and statistics may be 

approximations or may use rounded numbers. Certain data has been reclassified for the purpose of presentation 

and much of the available information is based on best estimates and should therefore be regarded as indicative 

only and treated with appropriate caution. 
 

Overview of the Indian Economy 

 

India is the fourth largest economy in the world after the European Union, the United States and China with an 

estimated GDP of approximately US$ 4.515 trillion in 2011, on a purchasing power parity ("PPP") basis, (Source: 

CIA World Factbook). India is also one of the fastest growing economies in the world. According to the Central 

Statistical Organization, India's GDP grew at a rate of 6.50% in the financial year ended March 31, 2012.  

 

According to India Brand Equity Foundation, India is one of the largest bullion markets in the world. India accounts 

for nearly one third of the total world demand for gold and is also the largest consumer of gold jewellery in the world 

(approximately 20.00% of global gold consumption), and the largest importer of gold in the world. (Source: IBEF, 

http://www.ibef.org/industry/gemsjewellery.aspx) According to the ASSOCHAM India, gold imports accounted for 

9.60% of Indiaôs total imports in the year 2011 and was the second most imported commodity during this period. 

(Source: http://www.assocham.org/arb/general/Indias_Gold_Rush_Its_Impact_and_Sustainability.pdf) 

 

Overview of the Indian Consumer Credit Market  

 
The consumer credit market in India has undergone a significant transformation over the last decade and 

experienced rapid growth due to consumer credit becoming cheaper, more widely available and increasingly a 

more acceptable avenue of funding for consumers. The consumer credit market has developed in India due to 

the following factors: 

 

 increased focus by banks and financial institutions on consumer credit resulting in a market shift 

towards regulated lenders from unregulated moneylenders/financiers; 

 increasing trend of Indian consumers to acquire assets such as cars, goods and houses on credit; 

 fast emerging middle class and growing number of households in our target segment; 

 improved terms of credit as interest rates in India fall in line with global interest rates; 

 legislative changes that offer greater protection to lenders against fraud and potential default increasing 

the incentive to lend; 

 growth in assignment and securitisation arrangements for consumer loans has enabled non deposit 

based entities to access wholesale funding and compete solely on their ability to originate, underwrite 

and service consumer loans. 

 

Credit availability, affordability and consumer confidence are the key drivers for consumer loan growth. 

 

A variety of financial intermediaries in the public and private sectors participate in India's consumer lending 

sector, including the following:  

 

 commercial banks; 

 cooperative banks;  

 long-term lending institutions;  

 NBFCs, including housing finance companies;  

 other specialized financial institutions and state-level financial institutions; and 

 lenders in the unorganized sector. 

 

Commercial Banks  

 

As of December 31, 2011, there were 167 scheduled commercial banks ("SCBs"), (including regional rural 

banks ("RRBs") in India (Source: RBI, Quarterly Statistics on Deposits and Credit of Scheduled Commercial 
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Banks, December 2011).  As on December 31, 2011, the number of banked centres served by SCBs was 35,582 

of which 27,964 were single office centres and 70 centres had 100 or more bank offices (Source: RBI, Quarterly 

Statistics on Deposits and Credit of Scheduled Commercial Banks, December 2011). Scheduled commercial 

banks are banks that are listed in a schedule to the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, and may be further 

categorised as public sector banks, private sector banks and foreign banks.  

 

Non-Banking Finance Companies 

 

An NBFC is a company registered under the Companies Act and is engaged in the business of loans and 

advances, acquisition of shares/stock/bonds/debentures/securities issued by Government or local authority or 

other securities of like marketable nature, leasing, hire-purchase, insurance business, chit business but does not 

include any institution whose principal business is that of agriculture activity, industrial activity, 

sale/purchase/construction of immovable property. A non-banking institution which is a company and which has 

its principal business of receiving deposits under any scheme or arrangement or any other manner, or lending in 

any manner is also a non-banking financial company (Residuary non-banking company). It is mandatory that 

every NBFC should be registered with RBI to commence or carry on any business of non-banking financial 

institution as defined in clause (a) of section 45 I of the RBI Act. All NBFCs are not entitled to accept public 

deposits. Only those NBFCs holding a valid Certificate of Registration with authorisation to accept public 

deposits can accept/hold public deposits. NBFCs authorised to accept/hold public deposits besides having 

minimum stipulated net owned fund should also comply with the directions such as investing part of the funds 

in liquid assets, maintain reserves, rating etc. issued by the Bank (Source: RBI, FAQ_NBFC 

http://www.rbi.org.in/scripts/FAQView.aspx?Id=71 ). As of May 31, 2012, there were 271 NBFCs in India 

permitted to accept public deposits (Source: http://rbidocs.rbi.org.in/rdocs/Publications/PDFs/59260.pdf). 

Further, according to the RBI there were 11,440 NBFCs in India that are not permitted to accept public deposits 

(Source: http://www.rbi.org.in/scripts/nbfcpublication_new.aspx) and as of October 15, 2011 there were 774 

NBFCs in India (new) that are not permitted to accept public deposits. (Source: 

http://www.rbi.org.in/scripts/bs_nbfclist.aspx)  

 

Gold Finance Industry in India 

 

India is one of the largest markets for gold and as of fiscal 2010, accounts for approximately 10.00% of the total 

world gold stock with an annual demand of approximately 700 tonnes (Source: IMaCS Industry Report (2010 

Update)). Several gold based financial products have been made available to retail consumers in the Indian 

market from time to time with a view to bring the gold holdings to the core financial market.  

 

Lending against gold has been one of the most popular instruments based on gold, and it works well with the 

Indian rural population, which typically views gold as an important savings instrument that is li quid and can be 

converted into cash instantly to meet their urgent cash requirements. Moreover, traditionally gold owners in 

southern India are more open than elsewhere in the country to accept and exercise the option of pledging gold to 

borrow money (Source: IMaCS Industry Report 2009).  

 

The following chart illustrates gold demand trends in India 
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(Source: IMaCS Industry Report (2010 Update) 

 

Indian consumers have an affinity for gold that emanates from various social and cultural factors. Furthermore, 

the low level of financial inclusion and poor access to financial products and services make gold a safe and 

attractive investment proposition. In an effort to tap the market for gold related investment and services, 

companies in the financial sector have launched several products such as gold coins and bars, exchange traded 

gold funds and lending against gold. Gold Loans in India, have largely been concentrated in southern India, 

which holds the largest proportion of India's gold portfolio, and is typically more open to borrowing 

against gold as compared to consumers in the northern and western regions of India (Source: IMaCS 

Industry Report 2009). 

 

Gold Loans have emerged as key gold based financial products, and in the year ended March 31, 2010, the 

organized Gold Loans market in India was estimated at between ̀  350.0 billion and ̀  400.0 billion with a 

CAGR of approximately 40.00% during fiscal 2002 to fiscal 2010. Notwithstanding the above, the organized 

Gold Loans portfolio accounted for merely 1.20% of the value of total gold stock in India. The Gold Loans 

market is significantly under-penetrated and is expected to continue growing at the rate of 35.00-40.00% in the 

future. (Source: IMaCS Industry Report (2010 Update). 

 

Gold Demand in India 

 

 Demand is relatively pr ice in-elastic: Demand for gold has not been adversely impacted by rising 

prices. Despite increases in gold prices from `  15,026.00 to `  51,150.00 per ounce during the period 

from 2002 to 2009, the demand for gold has risen from 580 tonnes in 2002 to 620 tonnes in 2009. 

(Source: IMaCS Industry Report (2010 Update)). 

 

 South India constitutes the largest market  for gold: Southern India has been the largest market 

accounting for approximately 40.00% of the gold demand, followed by the western region at 

approximately 25.00%, the northern region at 20.00-25.00%, and the eastern region at approximately 

10.00-10.05% of India's annual gold demand. (Source: IMaCS Industry Report 2009) 

 

 Demand is fur ther concentrated in ru ral pockets of Ind ia: Rural India is estimated to hold around 

65.00% of total gold stock as this section of the population views gold as a secure and easily accessible 

savings vehicle along with its consumption purpose.(Source: IMaCS Industry Report 2009) 

 

In addition to a growing organized Gold Loans market in India, there is, a, large long-operated, unorganised 

Gold Loans market which includes numerous pawn brokers, money lenders and cooperative societies, operating 

primarily in rural areas of India, and providing loans against jewellery to famili es at interest rates in excess of 

30.00%.  These operators have a strong understanding of the local customer base and offer an advantage of 

immediate liquidity to customers in need, without requiring elaborate formali ties and documentation. 

 

Trend of market size of gold loans demand and gold stock value 
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Source: IMaCS Industry Report (2010 Update)  

 

The southern region of India accounts for 85.00-90.00% of the Gold Loans market in India. Recently, large 

specialized NBFCs such as Muthoot Finance Limited and Manappuram Finance Limited have started 

expanding their businesses in northern and western India, and it is expected that there will be a gradual increase 

in the acceptability of Gold Loans product in these regions due to the concentrated marketing efforts of large 

NBFCs.  (Source: IMaCS Industry Report 2009). 

 

Drivers of Growth in Gold Loans Market in India  

 

i. Regulatory incentives to lenders: The prescribed risk weight on Gold Loans has been approximately 

50.00% for commercial banks, further reducing the associated capital costs (Source: IMaCS Industry 

Report 2009). 

 

ii.  Policy focus: The Government of India views Gold Loans as an effective means to meet the potential 

micro- finance demand in India. In fiscal 2007, the Government of the state of Tamil Nadu set a 

jewellery loans target of `  60.0 billion (75.00% of the total loan disbursement target) for co-operatives 

in Tamil Nadu (Source: IMaCS Industry Report 2009). 

 

iii.  Increasing interest of the lenders in the segment: Considering the recent rise in default rates 

(expected to vary from 8.00-10.00% in fiscal 2009) in personal loans, banks have started focusing on 

the Gold Loans segment because it offers attractive returns (although lower than personal loans) with 

very low levels of defaults. Several private sector banks have started participating in the segment by 

getting into bilateral sale agreements with NBFCs that specialize in Gold Loan. A few private sector 

banks have also initiated efforts to tap into such segments (Source: IMaCS Industry Report 2009). 

 

iv. High levels of indebtedness: The National Sample Survey Organisation (NSSO) 2003 survey on 

situational assessment of farmersô indebtedness in the country has estimated that 60.40% of rural 

households in India were farmer households, out of which 48.60% were indebted. The incidence of 

indebtedness was highest in the state of Andhra Pradesh (82.00%) followed by Tamil Nadu (74.50%), 

Punjab (65.40%), Kerala (64.40%), Karnataka (61.60%) and Maharashtra (54.80%) (Source: IMaCS 

Industry Report 2009). 

 

v. Changing customer attitudes and preferences: Indian customers have demonstrated a change in 

their traditionally debt-averse psychology, promoting the creation of assets through growth in financial 

liabilities which has been reflected in an annual growth of more than 30.00-35.00% in retail credit 

between fiscal 2002 and fiscal 2009. (Source: IMaCS Industry Report 2009). 

 

Economics of the gold finance industry in India 

 

NBFCs and banks operate with different underlying objectives in the Gold Loans segment which has been 

reflected in the margins and profitability for different category of lenders. NBFCs view Gold Loans as their 

primary business and have invested significantly in building their service offerings and typically command 

premium yields and attractive profitability. Historically banks viewed Gold Loans for agriculture as a safer 

means to meet their priority lending targets which typically offer low returns with high defaults. However, 

recent changes in regulatory norms have precluded gold loans from being classified under the agriculture 

sector, thereby making such loans ineligible to meet banks' priority lending targets. Despite this banks usually 

are unable to offer the level of flexibility and rapid disbursals as compared to the specialised NBFCs.  
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Economics of Gold Loans business for NBFCs and Banks 

 

 
*Risk Weightage of 100.00%, Capital Adequacy Ratio of 12.00% 

** Risk Weightage of 50.00%, Capital Adequacy Ratio of 10.00% 
*** Risk Weightage of 100.00%, Capital Adequacy Ratio of 10.00% 

 

Source: IMaCS Industry Report 2009 

 

Competition 

 

The Gold Loans market has been dominated by SCBs focused on southern India, and NBFCs with market shares 

of approximately 58.00% and 32.00%, respectively in fiscal 2010, while the remaining market share has been 

held by small co-operative banks. In addition, there has been a rapid expansion in the market Gold Loans 

between fiscal 2002 and fiscal 2010 (Source: IMaCS Industry Report (2010 Update)).  

 

NBFCs offer flexibility, quick disbursal and an informal environment to their customers in return for a premium 

on the rates of interest offered. The loan-to-value ratio for 22 carat jewellery piece typically varies from 55.00-

65.00% by banks while it varies from 70.00-80.00% by NBFCs, which may be further adjusted subject to the 

purity of gold. Further, the interest rates charged by the banks varied from 8.00-10.00% in case of loans for 

agricultural purposes and approximately 12.00-13.00% on loans for non-agricultural purposes while NBFCs 

charge interest rates between 22.00% and 26.00% (Source: IMaCS Industry Report 2009). However, recent 

changes in regulatory norms have precluded gold loans from being classified under the agriculture sector, 

thereby increasing the cost of funds of gold loan companies, including our Company. 

 

Market share of Gold Loan lenders and respective growth rates 

 
Source: IMaCS Industry Report (2010 Update)  
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The estimated Gold Loan portfolio and the market share of key gold finance companies for fiscal 2007, fiscal 

2009 and fiscal 2010 are set out below: 

 

 

 
Source: IMaCS Industry Report (2010 Update) 

 

Role of NBFC's in the competitive landscape of the gold finance industry in India 

 

A typical Gold Loan customer expects high loan-to-value ratios, easy access, low levels of documentation and 

formali ties, quick approval and disbursal of loans, lockers to ensure safety of their pledged gold and a team of 

expert valuers. Specialized NBFCs have created a niche in the Gold Loans capabilities by meeting these 

requirements of the typical Gold Loan customers, who require Gold Loans primarily to meet their urgent cash 

requirements(Source: IMaCS Industry Report 2009). 

 

NBFCs specializing in Gold Loans continue to perform strongly in the Gold Loans market and the overall 

statistics demonstrate that the relative share of traditional gold finance NBFCs in the market has not changed 

significantly over the last three years. In fiscal 2010, the Gold Loans market was largely concentrated between 

two categories of lenders: south India based SCBs and NBFCs specializing in Gold Loans which held 

approximately 58.00%and 32.00%, respectively, of the total market. The rest of the Gold Loans portfolio was 

held by several small co-operative banks. (Source: IMaCS Industry Report 2009). 

 

Outlook of the Gold Loans Market in India 

 
Since the gold loans market is currently under-penetrated, it is expected that the Gold Loans market will offer 

enough opportunities for portfolio expansion and retain attractive margins for all existing specialised NBFCs, 

banks and new entrants (Source: IMaCS Industry Report 2009).  

 

The branch expansion and marketing initiatives of various specialized NBFCs are anticipated to give a strong boost 

to the acceptability of Gold Loans and lead to further growth in the Gold Loans market. 

 

NBFCs in the Indian Gold Loans market 
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Source: IMaCS Industry Report 2009 

 

In addition, it is anticipated that the large public sector banks in southern India will continue to be amongst the 

leading lenders, but considering the various regulatory and operational processes, it would be challenging for 

the banks to match the flexible service regime of the specialised NBFCs (Source: IMaCS Industry Report 2009). 

 

New NBFC entrants in the market are currently in a cautious preparatory mode to enter the Gold Loans market 

but it will take some time for these NBFCs to emerge as formidable competitors to specialized existing NBFCs. 

This is because it will take time for these new NBFCs to build the requisite focus, infrastructure (valuers, 

lockers, etc,) and branch network (Source: IMaCS Industry Report 2009). 

 

Specialized NBFCs are expected to continue to hold their share of the Gold Loans market with their ability to 

provide superior and niche servicing capabilities to their existing and future customers. The following factors 

will be crucial in contributing to the continued growth of specialized NBFCs: 

 

 Ability to maintain their strong hold in the southern India markets in terms of reach and customer 

services; 

 

 Strengthening brand image in the target customer segments with a special emphasis on markets beyond 

the southern region in India; 

 

 Developing related products such as education loans and offering fee based services such as money 

transfers or financial products distribution; and 

 

 Capturing a strong market position in other regions of India, including in the northern and western 

regions (Source: IMaCS Industry Report 2009). 
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OUR BUSINESS 

 

Overview 
 

We are the largest gold financing company in India in terms of loan portfolio, according to the 2010 update to 

the IMaCS Research & Analytics Industry Reports, Gold Loans Market in India, 2009 (ñIMaCS Industry 

Report (2010 Update)ò). We provide personal and business loans secured by gold jewellery, or Gold Loans, 

primarily to individuals who possess gold jewellery but could not access formal credit within a reasonable time, 

or to whom credit may not be available at all, to meet unanticipated or other short-term liquidity requirements. 

According to the IMaCS Industry Report (2010 update), as of March 31, 2010 our branch network was the 

largest among gold loan NBFCs in India. Our Gold Loan portfolio as of March 31, 2012 comprised 

approximately six million loan accounts in India that we serviced through 3,678 branches across 20 states, the 

national capital territory of Delhi and four union territories in India. We have since increased our branch 

network to 3,780 branches as of June 30, 2012. As of June 30, 2012, we employed 25,103 persons in our 

operations. 

 

We are a ñSystemically Important Non-deposit taking NBFCò headquartered in the south Indian state of Kerala. 

Our operating history has evolved over a period of 73 years since M George Muthoot (the father of our 

Promoters) founded a gold loan business in 1939 under the heritage of a trading business established by his 

father, Ninan Mathai Muthoot, in 1887. Since our formation, we have broadened the scale and geographic scope 

of our retail lending operations so that, as of March 31, 2010, we were Indiaôs largest provider of Gold Loans. 

For the years ended March 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, revenues from our Gold Loan business 

constituted 95.97%, 96.71%, 98.08%, 98.75% and 99.12%, respectively, of our total income. In addition to our 

Gold Loans business, we provide money transfer services through our branches as sub-agents of various 

registered money transfer agencies, and recently have commenced providing collection agency services. We 

also operate three windmills in the state of Tamil Nadu.  

 

We issue secured non-convertible debentures called ñMuthoot Gold Bondsò on a private placement basis. 

Proceeds from our issuance of Muthoot Gold Bonds form a significant source of funds for our Gold Loan 

business. We also rely on bank loans and subordinated debt instruments as our sources of funds. As of March 

31, 2012 we had `  66,102.0 million in outstanding Muthoot Gold Bonds and ̀  127,730.0 million in other 

borrowings. We also raise capital by issuing commercial paper and listed and credit rated non-convertible 

debentures under private placement mode to various institutional investors. 

 

Our customers are typically small businessmen, vendors, traders, farmers and salaried individuals, who for 

reasons of convenience, accessibility or necessity, avail of our credit facilities by pledging their gold jewellery 

with us rather than by taking loans from banks and other financial institutions. We provide retail loan products, 

primarily comprising Gold Loans. We also disburse other loans, including those secured by Muthoot Gold 

Bonds. Our Gold Loans have a maximum 12 month term. Our average disbursed Gold Loan amount outstanding 

was ̀  40,611 per loan account as of March 31, 2012. For the year ended March 31, 2012, our retail loan 

portfolio earned, on an average, interest of 1.86% per month, or 22.34% per annum. 

 

As of March 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, our portfolio of outstanding gross Gold Loans under 

management was `  21,790.1 million, ̀  33,000.7 million,̀  73,417.3 million, ̀  157,280.7 million and `  244173.0 

million, respectively, and approximately 30.1 tons, 38.9 tons, 65.5 tons, 112.0 tons and 137.1 tons, respectively, 

of gold jewellery was held by us as security for our Gold Loans. Gross non-performing assets ("NPAs") were at 

0.42%, 0.48%, 0.46%, 0.29% and 0.56% of our gross retail loan portfolio under management as of March 31, 

2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively.  

 

For the years ended March 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, our total income was `  3,686.4 million, 

`  6,204.0 million, ̀  10,893.8 million, ̀  23,158.7 million and `  45,490.6 million, respectively, demonstrating an 

annual growth rate of 57.56%, 68.29%, 75.59%, 112.59% and 96.42%, respectively. For the years ended March 

31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 our profit after tax was `  630.6 million, ̀  978.7 million, ̀  2,285.2 million, 

`  4,941.8 million and ̀ 8,920.2 million, respectively, demonstrating an annual growth rate of 43.80%, 55.20%, 

133.49%, 116.25% and 80.51%, respectively. As of March 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, our net worth 

was `  2,223.6 million, `  3,702.3 million, `  5,845.5 million, `  13,344.1 million, and ̀  29,257.3 million, 

respectively. 

 

Competitive Strengths 
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We believe that the following competitive strengths position us well for continued growth:  

 

Market leading position in the Gold Loan business with a strong presence in under-served rural and semi-

urban markets 
 

Gold loans are the core products in our asset portfolio. We believe that our experience, through our Promoters, 

has enabled us to have a leading position in the Gold Loan business in India. Highlights of our market leading 

position include the following:  

 

 We are the largest gold financing company in India in terms of loan portfolio, according to the IMaCS 

Industry Report (2010 Update). Our loan portfolio as of March 31, 2012 comprised approximately six 

million loan accounts, in India with Gold Loans outstanding of `  244,173.0 million. 

 

 We have the largest branch network among gold loan NBFCs, according to the IMaCS Industry Report 

(2010 update). Our branch network has expanded significantly in recent years from 373 branches as of 

March 31, 2005 to 3,780 branches as of June 30, 2012, comprising 657 branches in northern India, 2,435 

branches in southern India, 500 branches in western India and 188 branches in eastern India covering 20 

states, the national capital territory of Delhi and four union territories in India. 

 

 We believe that due to our early entry we have built a recognizable brand in the rural and semi-urban 

markets of India, particularly in the south Indian states of Tamil Nadu, Kerala, Andhra Pradesh and 

Karnataka. As of March 31, 2012, the south Indian states of Tamil Nadu, Kerala, Andhra Pradesh, 

Karnataka and the Union Territory of Pondicherry constituted 68.40% of our total Gold Loan portfolio.  

 

 We have a strong presence in under-served rural and semi-urban markets. A large portion of the rural 

population has limited access to credit either because of their inability to meet the eligibility requirements 

of banks and financial institutions because credit is not available in a timely manner, or at all. We have 

positioned ourselves to provide loans targeted at this market. 

 

 We offer products with varying loan amounts, advance rates (per gram of gold) and interest rates. The 

principal loan amounts we disburse usually range from `  2,000.0 to ̀  200,000.0 while interest rates on our 

Gold Loans usually range between 12.00% and 26.00% per annum. 

 

Strong brand name, track record, management expertise and Promoter support 

 

Our operating history has evolved over a period of 73 years since M George Muthoot (the father of our 

Promoters) founded a gold loan business in 1939. We believe that the experience, skills and goodwill acquired 

by our Promoters over these years cannot be easily replicated by competitors. We have a highly experienced and 

motivated management team that capitalizes on this heritage at both the corporate and operational levels. Our 

senior management team has extensive experience in the Gold Loan industry and has demonstrated the ability to 

grow our business through their operational leadership, strategic vision and ability to raise capital. Under the 

current management team, our retail loan portfolio has grown from `  22,262.8 million as of March 31, 2008 to ̀  

246,736.0 million as of March 31, 2012. Our business is also well supported by our high net-worth Promoters, 

who are members of the Muthoot family. We believe that our track record, management expertise and Promoter 

support have established a strong brand name for us in the markets we serve. A strong brand name has 

contributed to our ability to earn the trust of individuals who entrust us with their gold jewellery, and will be a 

key in allowing us to expand our growth and consolidate this fragmented industry across India.  

 

High-quality customer service and short response time 
 

We adhere to a strict set of market survey and location guidelines when selecting branch sites to ensure that our 

branches are set up close to our customers. We believe that our customers appreciate this convenience, as well 

as extended operating hours that we typically offer, which are often more compatible with our customersô work 

schedules. We provide our customers a clean, attractive and secure environment to transact their business with 

us. In addition to the physical environment, it is equally important to have professional and attentive staff at 

both the branch level and at our centralized customer support centers. Each of our branches across India is 

staffed with persons who possess local knowledge and understanding of customers' needs and who are 

adequately trained to appraise collateral and disburse loans within a few minutes. Although disbursement time 

may vary depending on the loan ticket size and the number of items pledged, we can generally disburse an 

average loan ticket size of `  20,000.0 within five minutes from the time the gold is tendered to the appraiser, 
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except in case of first time customer where it may take upto half an hour for carrying out one-time-compliance 

with the KYC norms. Furthermore, since our loans are all over-collateralized by gold jewellery, there are 

minimal documentary and credit assessment requirements, thereby shortening our turnaround time. We believe 

our high quality customer service and short response time are significant competitive strengths that differentiate 

our services and products from those provided by commercial banks. 

 

Strong capital raising ability  

 

We have a track record of successfully raising capital from various sources. We regularly issue secured 

redeemable non-convertible debentures to retail investors on a private placement basis as a means to access 

capital for our Gold Loan business. We have also issued Equity Shares in three tranches to institutional investors 

and completed an initial public offer of our Equity Shares in the month of May 2011 and made three public 

issue of secured non-convertible debentures in September 2011 raising ̀  6,932.8 million, in January 2012 

raising ̀  4,593.1 million and in April 2012 raising ` 2,597.5 million. For further information, see the sections 

titled ñHistory and Main Objectsò and ñCapital Structureò at pages 80 and 48, respectively. As of 

March 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, aggregate outstanding amount of our Muthoot Gold Bonds 

portfolio was ̀  12,403.3 million, ̀  19,019.8 million, ̀  27,192.5 million, ̀  39,832.3 million and ̀ 66,102.4 

million, respectively. We have diversified our resource pool by supplementing our proceeds from the issuance 

of Muthoot Gold Bonds with borrowings from banks and other financial institutions. As of March 31, 2008, 

2009, 2010 2011 and 2012, our outstanding borrowings from banks were `  5,884.9 million, `  11,067.6 million, 

`  21,278.7 million ̀  60,529.1 million and ̀ 86,470.1 million, respectively. We also issue subordinated debt 

which is considered as Tier II capital of our Company under private placement mode to mainly retail investors 

through our branch network. For details in relation to our credit rating of our debt instruments, see sub-section 

titled ñOur Strategies - Access low-cost and diversified sources of fundsò at page 41. 

 

In-house training capabilities to meet our branch expansion requirements 

 

Our ability to timely appraise the quality of the gold jewellery collateral is critical to the business. We do not 

engage third parties to assess the collateral for our Gold Loans, but instead employ in-house staff for this 

purpose. Assessing gold jewellery quickly is a specialized skill that requires assessing jewellery for gold content 

and quality manually without damaging the jewellery. We have two staff training colleges, one each in Kochi 

and in New Delhi, and regional training centers at each of our regional offices. We use our staff training 

colleges and regional training centers to train new employees in appraisal skills, customer relations and 

communication skills. We believe that our in-house training has built up a talent pool that enables us to staff 

new branches with qualified and skilled personnel as we seek to grow our branch network. Our in-house training 

capabilities also enable us to improve the skill sets of our existing personnel.  

 

Our Strategies 
 

Our business strategy is designed to capitalize on our competitive strengths and enhance our leading market 

position. Key elements of our strategy include:  

 

Expand branch network and visibility to maintain our market leadership position  
 

We intend to continue to grow our loan portfolio by expanding our network through the addition of new 

branches. In order to optimize our expansion, we carefully assess potential markets by analyzing demographic, 

competitive and regulatory factors, site selection and availability, and growth potential. We have a long-standing 

presence in southern India, and are among the first organized Gold Loan providers in northern and western 

India. Our strategy for branch expansion includes further strengthening our market leading position in south 

Indian states by providing higher accessibility to customers as well as leveraging our expertise and presence in 

southern India to enhance our presence in other regions of India, particularly in northern India, where we intend 

to open branches in most states. We have added 945 branches in the last fiscal year and 102 branches between 

April  1, 2012 and June 30, 2012, and expect this growth trend to continue in the future. At the core of our 

branch expansion strategy, we expect to penetrate new markets and expand our customer base to include 

customers who otherwise would rely on the unorganized sector. Moreover, our ethics, values and goodwill, 

which have established our strong brand, will continue to be important factors in our expansion. In addition to 

increasing the visibility of our brand by sponsoring events and publicity, we will continue to build trust among 

our customers and enhance our brand with quality services and safety and security of our customers' collateral. 

 

Target new customer segments 
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The market for our loan products was traditionally confined to lower and middle income groups, who viewed 

Gold Loans as an option of the last resort in case of emergency. We intend to undertake sustained marketing 

efforts to diminish the stigma attached to pledging gold jewellery in India. We plan to work to position Gold 

Loans as a ñlifestyle productò and expand our customer base to include upper-middle income and upper income 

groups. We intend to emphasize our Gold Loan products' key advantages of expediency and minimal 

documentation, and alter the image of Gold Loans from an option of the last resort to an option of convenience. 

 

Access low-cost and diversified sources of funds 

 

We source our funds for our Gold Loan business primarily from the proceeds of private placements of 

debentures in India and from secured and unsecured credit facilities from banks and other financial institutions. 

We have been assigned a long-term rating of ñAA-/Stableò and a short-term rating of ñ[ICRA] A1+ò by ICRA 

for our ̀  10,428.0 million line of credit. We intend to increase our efforts to access low-cost funds through rated 

debt instruments. In this regard, we have been assigned an ñA1+ò rating by CRISIL for short term debt 

instruments of ̀  40,000 million. As of March 31, 2012, the outstanding amount issued under commercial paper 

and rated short-term non-convertible debentures was `  7,694.5 million. We also intend to raise long-term 

institutional funding through long-term debt instruments. We have been assigned an ñCRISIL AA-/Stableò 

rating by CRISIL for our ̀ 4,000.0 million and ̀ 1,000.0 million non-convertible debentures and our `  1,000.0 

million subordinated debt. ICRA has assigned ñ[ICRA] AA-/Stableò rating for our `  2,000.0 million non-

convertible debentures and our `  1,000.0 million subordinated debt. We intend to increase the levels of our 

capital adequacy ratios in excess of regulatory requirements and strengthen our balance sheet with a view to 

have access to other sources of low-cost funds. Furthermore, we also intend to seek strong investments in our 

Company as another source of funding to expand our business.  

 

Strengthen our operating processes and risk management systems 

 

Risk management forms an integral part of our business as we are exposed to various risks relating to the Gold 

Loan business. The objective of our risk management systems is to measure and monitor the various risks we 

are subject to and to implement policies and procedures to address such risks. We intend to continue to improve 

our operating processes and risk management systems that will further enhance our ability to manage the risks 

inherent to our business. For example, we have commenced installing offsite surveillance cameras in our 

branches, and intend to implement this across our branch network. As of June 30, 2012, we had installed 

surveillance cameras in 3,001 branches across India. 

 

Gold Loan Business 
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Our core business is disbursement of Gold Loans, which are typically small ticket loans collateralized by gold 

jewellery. As of March 31, 2012, we had approximately six million loan accounts, respectively, representing an 

aggregate principal balance of `  244,173.0 million. For the year ended March 31, 2012, our retail loan portfolio 

earned, on average, interest of 1.86% per month, or 22.34% per annum. For the years ended March 31, 2008, 

2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, income from interest earned on our Gold Loans constituted 95.97%, 96.71%, 

98.08%, 98.75% and 99.12%, respectively, of our total income.  

 

Loan disbursement process 

 

The principal form of collateral accepted by us is gold jewellery. The amount that we finance against the 

security of gold jewellery is typically based on the value of the jewellery. We value the gold jewellery brought 

by our Gold Loan customers based on our centralized policies and guidelines, including policy on interest rate 

fixation. We currently lend upto 60.00% of the value of the jewellery. We appraise the jewellery collateral 
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solely based on the weight of its gold content, excluding weight and value of the stone studded in the jewellery. 

Our Gold Loans are therefore well collateralized because the actual value of the collateral in all cases will be 

higher than our appraised value. 

 

The amount we lend against an item and the total value of the collaterals we hold fluctuates according to the 

gold prices. However, an increase in gold price will not result automatically in an increase in our Gold Loan 

portfolio unless the per gram rate are revised by our corporate office. Similarly, since adequate margins are kept 

at the time of disbursement of loan, a decrease in the price of gold has little impact on our interest income. 

However, a sustained decrease in the market price of gold can cause a decrease in the size of our loan portfolio 

and our interest income.  

 

We rely on the disposition of collateral to recover the principal amount of an overdue Gold Loan and the interest 

due thereon. We also have recourse against the customer for the loan. Since the disbursement of loans is 

primarily based on the value of collateral, the customerôs creditworthiness is not a factor in the loan decision. 

However, we comply with óknow your customerô norms adopted by the Board and require proof of 

identification and address proof. We also photograph customers with web-cameras installed in our branches. 

 

All our Gold Loans have terms of 12 months. However, customers may redeem the loan at any time, and our 

Gold Loans are generally redeemed between 90 and 180 days. Interest is paid only when the principal is repaid. 

In the event that a loan is not repaid on time and after providing due notice to the customer, the unredeemed 

collateral is disposed of on behalf of the customer in satisfaction of the principal and all interest charges. In 

general, a collateral is disposed of only when the recoverable amount is equal to or more than the realizable 

value of the collateral. 

 

Loan appraisal process 

 
Our Gold Loan approval process is generally linked with the appraisal of gold jewellery that serves as collateral, 

which takes only a few minutes. Each of our branches is staffed with persons who have been trained and have 

experience in appraising the gold content of jewellery. The appraisal process begins with weighing the jewellery 

using calibrated weighing machines. Jewellery is then subject to prescribed primary tests for the quality of gold, 

including stone tests and acid tests, followed by additional tests, if required, such as salt tests, sound tests, 

weight tests, pointed scratching tests, flexibility tests, color tests, smell tests, usability tests, magnifying glass 

tests and finishing tests. Once the jewellery passes these tests, loans are disbursed based on the rates per gram of 

gold approved by the corporate office. Although disbursement time may vary depending on the loan ticket size 

and the number of items pledged, we can generally disburse an average loan ticket size of `  20,000.0 in five 

minutes from the time the gold is tendered to the appraiser, except in case of first time customer where it may 

take upto half an hour for carrying out one-time-compliance with the KYC norms. While our customers are 

provided the option to accept loan disbursements in cash or by cheque, almost all of our customers prefer 

disbursements in cash. 

 

At the time of disbursement, an undertaking is signed by the customer. It states the name and address of our 

Company's relevant branch office and the customer, a detailed description of the gold jewellery provided as 

collateral, the amount of the loan, the interest rate, the date of the loan, and other terms and conditions. 

 

Where the responsibility for compliance with applicable law relating to loan appraisal and disbursement lies 

with us, we are in compliance with the IT Act and other related provisions. 

 

Post-disbursement process  

 

Custody of gold collateral 

 

The pledged gold jewellery are separately packed by staff of the branch, and then placed in a polythene pouch 

with the relevant documents on the loan and the customer and stored in the safe or strong room of the branch.  

 

The safes and strong rooms in which the gold jewellery is kept are built per industry standards and practices. 

The strong rooms are vaults with reinforced concrete cement structures. Currently, almost all of our branches 

are using strong rooms.  

 

Inventory control 
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The pledged gold jewellery packed in pouches is identified by loan details marked on the cover. Tamper proof 

stickers are affixed on the jewellery packets to ensure inventory control. Additional stickers are used to seal 

packets by persons examining packages subsequently, including our internal auditors 

 

Branch security and safety measures 

 

Ensuring the safety and security of the branch premises is vital to our business since our cash reserves and gold 

inventory are stored in each branch. Our branch security measures mainly comprise the following: 

 

Burglar alarms: Burglar alarms are installed in all branches. 

 

Security guards: Security guards are deployed in branches where management perceived there to be heightened 

security risks.  

 

Release of the pledge  
 

We monitor our loan accounts and recovery of dues on an ongoing basis. Once a loan is fully repaid, the 

pledged gold jewellery is returned to the customer. When a customer does not repay a loan on or before its 

maturity, we initiate the recovery process and dispose of the collateral to satisfy the amount owed to us, 

including both the principal and the accrued interests. Before starting the recovery process, we inform the 

customer through registered letters or legal notices.  

 

When a loan is repaid, we give the customer an option to pledge the security again and obtain another loan. The 

procedure of re-pledging entails the same procedure as that of a pledge and is accompanied by the same mode of 

documentation that a pledge entails. If the loan is not repaid when the loan falls due, we are able to sell the gold 

collateral in satisfaction of the amount due to us.  

 

We also reserve the right to sell the collateral even before a loan becomes past due in the event the market value 

of the underlying collateral is less than amounts outstanding on the loan, after serving notice to the customer. 

 

Other Business Initiatives  

 

Money transfer services 

 

We provide fee based services including money transfer and foreign exchange services. For the years ended 

March 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, our money transfer services business generated `  51.1 million, 

`  62.9 million, ̀  64.1 million, ̀  66.0 million and ̀  123.8 million, respectively, or 1.39%, 1.01%, 0.59%, 0.28% 

and 0.27%, respectively, of our total income. We act as sub-agents to Indian representatives and enter into 

representation agreements for inward money transfer remittance. Under these agreements, we are entitled to 

receive a commission for the services provided depending on the number of transactions or the amount of 

money transferred and the location from which the money is transferred to us. In terms of applicable law 

governing the provision of money transfer services in India, as a sub-agent, our Company is not required to 

obtain any regulatory approvals for engaging in such business. 

 

Collection services 
 

We recently commenced providing collection agency services to clients. We act as collection agents by 

receiving money for and on behalf of our clients who issue invoices to their customers for goods sold or service 

rendered. We receive commissions for each invoice for which remittance by a customer is made and money is 

collected by us. We commenced our collection services business in the fiscal year 2011, and accordingly have 

not generated any revenues in prior fiscal years. For the year ended March 31, 2011 and 2012, we generated 

`  4.7 million and `  4.8 million, respectively, from our collection services business. 

 

Wind mills business 
 

We operate three windmills of 1.25 MW each in the south Indian state of Tamil Nadu. For the years ended 

March 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, income from our wind mills was `  17.4 million, ̀  22.1 million, 

`  25.1 million, ̀  22.1 million and ̀  17.7 million, respectively, or 0.47%, 0.36%, 0.23%, 0.10% and 0.04%, 

respectively, of total income. 

 



 

 

 
72 

Branch Network and Customer Service 

 

As of June 30, 2012, we had 3,780 branches located in 20 states, the national capital territory of Delhi and four 

union territories in India. The distribution of branches across India by region as of March 31, 2009, 2010, 2011, 

2012 and as of June 30, 2012 is as set out in the following table: 

 
 As of March 31, 

As of  

June 30, 2012 

 

2009 

 

2010 

 

2011 2012 

      

Northern 

India 

100 266 488 645 657 

Southern 

India 

796 1,119 1,814 2,381 2,435 

Western 
India 

71 166 324 473 500 

Eastern 

India 

18 54 107 179 188 

Total 

Branches 

985 1,605 2,733 3,678 3,780 

 

A diagrammatic representation of the branch network across India, as of June 30, 2012 is as set out below:  

 

 
 

In addition to our branches, we have more than 1,613 customer relation executives in charge of carrying out 

customer loyalty programs and a customer relations department which provides support over the phone 

servicing the needs of our customers.  

 

Marketing, Sales and Customer Care 

 
Our marketing and sales efforts centers around promoting our brand and positioning Gold Loans as a ñlifestyle 

product.ò In promoting our brand, our campaigns focus on the concept of ñgold powerò to differentiate our 

products from other financial institutions and stress the convenience, accessibility and expediency of Gold 

Loans. We also work to position Gold Loans as a ñlifestyle productò because the market for Gold Loans was 

traditionally confined to lower and middle income groups, who viewed such loans as an option of the last resort 
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in case of emergency. We have implemented aggressive marketing strategies to diminish the stigma attached to 

pledging gold jewellery. Furthermore, we target our efforts at small businessmen, vendors, traders and farmers, 

who may require credit on a regular basis. 

 

Our sales and marketing efforts are led by a team of 50 managers who guide the marketing and sales efforts of 

their respective regions and who are supported by more than 211 marketing executives and more than 1,613 

customer relation executives. Marketing executives make personal visits and direct their sales efforts at high 

net-worth clients. Customer relation executives are responsible for product promotion and telemarketing. In 

addition, we carry out advertising campaigns with TV ads, print ads and road shows to increase the visibility of 

our brand and our Gold Loans products. 

 

Future Expansion 
 

We have expanded by establishing new locations, and our business strategy is to continue expanding our lending 

business within our existing geographic markets and into other markets that meet our risk/reward considerations. 

We have added 945 branches in the last fiscal year and 102 branches between April 1, 2012 and June 30, 2012. 

Our Board believes that such expansion will continue to provide economies of scale in supervision, 

administration and marketing by decreasing the overall average cost of such functions per branch. By 

concentrating on multiple lending units in regional and local markets, we seek to expand market penetration, 

enhance brand recognition and reinforce marketing programs.  

 

A new branch can be ready for business within four to six weeks. The construction of a new location involves 

construction of secured counters and installation of strong rooms or safe and security systems. Our branches are 

generally established on leased premises, thus requiring a lower set-up cost. The set-up cost required for 

furnishing the premises and purchasing equipment generally ranges between `  0.5 million to ̀  1.5 million 

 

Regional Credit Exposure 

 

The table below sets forth an analysis of our Gold Loan portfolio by region as of March 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 

2011 and 2012: 

(`  in millions) 
 As of March 31, 

 2008 2009 2010  2011 2012 

      

Northern India 2,912.4 4,494.6 10,664.2 23,037.8 41,525.9 

Southern India 17,778.5 26,393.2 55,340.6 1,15,788.4 167,035.3 

Western India 933.7 1,647.4 5,736.7 13,640.4 25,185.6 

Eastern India 165.5 465.4 1,675.8 4,814.2 10,426.3 

Total Credit 

Exposure 

21,790.1 33,000.7 73,417.3 1,57,280.7 244,173.0 

 

Average Gold Loan Outstanding Per Branch 

 

The average gold loan outstanding per branch has increased from `  30.8 million as of March 31, 2008 to ̀  33.5 

million as of March 31, 2009, ̀  45.7 million as of March 31, 2010, ̀  57.5 million as of March 31, 2011 and 

`  66.4 million as of March 31, 2012. 

 

Profitability Ratios  

 

The table below sets forth an analysis of yield, interest expense, operating expense, return on retail loan assets, 

return on equity and earnings per share for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012: 

 
 Years ended March 31, 

 2008 2009 2010  2011 2012 

      

Interest income to 

average retail loans 19.47% 21.67% 19.94% 19.72% 22.34%   

Interest expense to 
average retail loans 9.78% 11.11% 8.78% 8.91% 11.69%   

Net Interest Margin 9.69% 10.56% 11.16% 10.81% 10.65%   

Operating expenses to 

average retail loans 4.59% 5.41% 4.71% 4.28% 4.02%   

Profit Before Tax to 

average retail loans 5.27% 5.30% 6.40% 6.53% 6.57%     
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 Years ended March 31, 

 2008 2009 2010  2011 2012 

Profit After Tax to 
average retail loans 3.43% 3.50% 4.23% 4.24% 4.40% 

Return on Average Equity 33.00% 33.03% 47.87% 51.50% 41.88% 

Earnings Per Share(`) 
(Basic and Diluted) 2.6 3.5 7.6 15.8 24.3 

 

Non-performing Assets (NPAs) 

 

Based on the existing RBI guidelines for asset classification, details of the classification of our gross NPAs as of 

March 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012: 

 
(`  in millions) 

Asset Type As of March 31, 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

      

Sub-standard 1 92.6 161.1 324.6 433.8 1,356.4 

Doubtful 2 - - 18.9 26.3 33.1 

Loss 3 - - - - - 

Gross NPA 92.6 161.1 343.6 460.1 1,389.5 

 

1. Sub-standard assets are assets which have been classified as an NPA for a period of 18 months or less, or 

where the terms of the agreement regarding interest and/or principal have been renegotiated or rescheduled 

or restructured after commencement of operations until the expiry of one year of satisfactory performance 

under the renegotiated or rescheduled or restructured terms. 

 

2. Doubtful assets are assets which have been classified as an NPA for a period exceeding 18 months. 

 

3. Loss assets mean (a) assets which have been identified as a loss asset by us or our internal or external 

auditor or by the RBI to the extent that they are not written-off by us; and (b) assets which are adversely 

affected by a potential threat of non-recoverability due to either erosion in the value of security or non-

availability of security, or due to any fraudulent act or omission on the part of the customer. 

 

Provisioning policy 

 

Our provisioning in respect of our NPA accounts is in accordance with the norms prescribed by the RBI, with 

emphasis on the realizable value of the security and the period of overdue payments.  

 

Statutory provisions are required to be made in respect of standard, sub-standard, doubtful and loss assets as per 

RBI directives. Set out below is a brief description of applicable RBI guidelines on provisioning and write-offs 

for loans, advances and other credit facilities including bills purchased and discounted: 

 

Standard assets: A general provision of 0.25% of the total outstanding assets classified as standard assets is 

required to be made. 

 

Sub-standard assets: A general provision of 10.00% of the total outstanding assets classified as sub-standard 

assets is required to be made. 

 

Doubtful assets: 100.00% provision to the extent to which the advance is not covered by the realizable value of 

the security to which the NBFC has a valid recourse is required to be made. The realizable value is to be 

estimated on a realistic basis. In addition to the foregoing, depending upon the period for which the asset has 

remained doubtful, provision is required to be made as follows: 

 

 if the asset has been considered doubtful for up to one year, provision to the extent of 20.00% of the 

secured portion is required to be made; 

 

 if the asset has been considered doubtful for one to three years, provision to the extent of 30.00% of the 

secured portion is required to be made; and 

 

 if the asset has been considered doubtful for more than three years, provision to the extent of 50.00% of 

the secured portion is required to be made. 
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Loss assets: The entire asset is required to be written off. If the assets are permitted to remain in the books for 

any reason, 100.00% of the outstanding assets classified as Loss assets should be provided for.  

 

For further information on RBI guidelines on provisioning and write-offs, see the section titled ñRegulations 

and Policiesò at page 206. 

 

No specific provisions in respect of our NPAs were made as at March 31, 2012. However, we have written-off 

`  69.2 million as of March 31, 2012. As per the provisioning norms prescribed by RBI, as of March 31, 2012, 

we have made a total provision of `  181.3 million, which constituted 13.04% of our NPAs. Details of provisions 

and amounts written off as of March 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 are set out in the table below: 

 
(`  in millions) 

 As of March 31, 

 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

      

Gross NPAs 92.6 161.1 343.6 460.1 1389.5 

Provisions 9.3 16.1 37.1 69.6 181.3 

Net NPAs 83.3 145.0 306.4 390.5 1208.2 

Net Retail loans 17,921.8 25,559.8 54,298.3 116,820.6 213383.9 

Net NPAs/Net 

Retail loans (%) 

0.46% 0.57% 0.56% 0.33% 0.57% 

Gross Retail Loans 22,262.8 33,690.1 74,381.5 158,684.5 246736.0 

Gross NPAs/Gross 
Retail Loans (%) 

0.42% 0.48% 0.46% 0.29% 0.56% 

Amounts Written-

off 

- - 6.2 18.3 69.2 

 

NPA Recovery 

 

Our credit department assigns interest collection targets for each branch, reviews performance against targets, 

makes visits to the branches, and advises on timely corrective measures and repossession action. We also have 

procedures in place to penalize branches for loans overdue beyond three months. We maintain strict control over 

recovery procedures followed in our various branches by linking employee compensation to the performance of 

the branch (loans disbursed, NPA levels, etc.,) in which the employee is working. Once repossession is advised 

by our credit department, we conduct public auctions of the jewellery collateral after serving requisite legal 

notices. 

 

The following table sets forth information relating to recovery from NPA accounts, written-off accounts and 

other overdue accounts for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012: 

 
(`  in millions) 

 Year ended March 31, 

Recoveries From 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

      

NPA, overdue and written 

off accounts 

221.2 521.2 911.9 551.3 1,994.5 

 

Capital Adequacy Ratio 

 

We are subject to the capital adequacy requirements of the RBI. With effect from April 1, 2010, RBI has 

increased the minimum capital adequacy ratio to 12.00% and to 15.00% from March 31, 2011. We maintain a 

capital adequacy ratio above the minimum levels prescribed by the RBI and had a capital adequacy ratio of 

12.56%, 16.30% 14.79%, 15.82% and 18.29% as of March 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively. 

 

Treasury Operations  

 

Our treasury department undertakes liquidity management by seeking to maintain an optimum level of liquidity 

and monitors cash and bank balances. The objective is to ensure the sufficient cash reserves at all our branches 

while at the same time avoid holding cash in excess of what may be required in the ordinary course. Since 

almost all disbursements are made in cash, we maintain an average of ̀  0.5 million in cash across our branches. 

Each regional office has the primary responsibility for directing branches within the region to move surplus 

funds to deficit branches. If there is a surplus of funds in the region as a whole, such surpluses are deposited in 

cash credit/overdraft accounts at the corporate level. Deficits at a region level are managed by cash transfers 
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from our treasury department. We monitor cash and balances on daily basis using our management information 

systems, and have arrangements with various banks for the transfer of bank balances between locations. Cost of 

movement of cash also is taken into consideration while deciding optimum cash levels in each location. We use 

a real time gross settlement ("RTGS") facility if t he remitting and receiving banks are different, or through 

internal transfer if both the branches belong to the same bank.  

 

Risk Management 

 

Risk management forms an integral element of our business strategy. As a lending institution, we are exposed to 

various risks that are related to our gold lending business and operating environment. Our objective in our risk 

management processes is to appreciate, measure and monitor the various risks we are subject to and to follow 

the policies and procedures to address these risks.The major types of risk we face are credit risk, operational 

risk, liquidity risk and market risk (which includes interest rate risk). 

 

Collateral risk 
 

Collateral risk arises from the decline in the value of the gold collateral due to fluctuation in gold prices.This 

risk is in part mitigated by the 40.00% margin retained on the value of jewellery for the purpose of calculation 

of the loan amount. Further, we appraise the jewellery collateral solely based on the weight of its gold content, 

excluding weight and value of the stone studded in the jewellery. In addition, the sentimental value of the gold 

jewellery to the customers may induce repayment and redemption of the collateral even if the value of the 

collateral falls below the value of the repayment amount. 

 

Credit risk 

 

Credit risk is the possibility of loss due to the failure of any counterparty to abide by the terms and conditions of 

any financial contract with us. We aim to reduce credit risk through a rigorous loan approval and collateral 

appraisal process, as well as a strong NPA monitoring and collection strategy. This risk is diminished because 

the gold jewellery used as a collateral for our loans can be readily liquidated, and there is only a remote 

possibility of recovering less than the amounts due to us. 

 

Operational risk 
 

Operational risk is broadly defined as the risk of direct or indirect loss due to the failure of systems, people or 

processes, or due to external events.  

 

We have instituted a series of checks and balances, including an operating manual, and both internal and 

external audit reviews. Although we disburse loans in very short periods of time, we have clearly defined 

appraisal methods as well as 'know your customer' compliance procedures in place to mitigate operational risks. 

Any loss on account of failure by employees to comply with defined appraisal mechanism is recovered out of 

their variable incentive. We also have detailed guidelines on movement of cash or gold. We have also 

introduced centralized software which automates inter-branch transactions, enabling branches to be monitored 

centrally and thus reducing the risk of un-reconciled entries. In addition, we are in the process of installing 

surveillance cameras across our various branches, and subscribe insurance covers employee theft or fraud and 

burglary. Our internal audit department and our centralized monitoring systems assist in the management of 

operational risk. 

 

Market risk 

 

Market risk refers to potential losses arising from the movement in market values of interest rates in our 

business. The objective of market risk management is to avoid excessive exposure of our earnings and equity to 

loss and to reduce our exposure to the volatility inherent in financial instruments. The majority of our 

borrowings, and all the loans and advances we make, are at fixed rates of interest. Our interest rate risk is 

therefore minimal at present. 

 

Liquidity risk 

 

Liquidity risk is the risk of being unable to raise necessary funds from the market to meet operational and debt 

servicing requirements. The purpose of liquidity management is to ensure sufficient cash flow to meet all 

financial commitments and to capitalize on opportunities for business expansion. An Asset and Liabilities 



 

 

 
77 

Committee ("ALCO ") meeting is held regularly to review the liquidity position based on future cashflow. In 

addition, we also track the potential impact of prepayment of loans at a realistic estimate of our near to medium-

term liquidity position. We have developed and implemented comprehensive policies and procedures to identify, 

monitor and manage liquidity risks. The nature of our business is such that our source of funds (proceeds from 

the issue of debentures of term loans) has longer maturities than the loans and advances we make, resulting in 

low liquidity risk in our operations.  

 

Business cycle risk 

 
Business cycle risk is the risk associated with the seasonal or cyclical nature of a business. As our customers 

include both individuals and business and our loan products are used by customers in various industries, trade 

cycles have limited impact on our business. Furthermore, the geographic spread of our branches will allow us to 

mitigate the cyclical pressures in the economic development of different regions. 

 

Funding Sources 

 

We have depended on term loans from banks and issuance of redeemable non-convertible debentures as the 

primary sources of our funding. The following table sets forth the principal components of our secured loans as 

of the periods indicated: 
(`  in millions) 

Secured loans As of March 31 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

      

Redeemable non-

convertible debentures 

12,403.3 19,019.8 27,192.5 39,832.3 66,102.4 

Redeemable non-

convertible debentures 

(Listed) 

- - - 2,150.0 12,526.0 

Term loans from banks 385.0 468.0 451.0 433.6 4,416.3 

Cash credit from banks 

including working capital 

demand loans 

5,499.9 10,599.6 17,827.7 59,695.6 82,053.8 

Collateralised Borrowing 

and Lending Obligation 

from Banks 

112.0 - - - - 

Total 18,400.2 30,087.5 45,471.2 102,111.5 165,098.5 

 

We have developed stable long-term relationships with our lenders, and established a track record of timely 

servicing our debts. 

 

Since our inception, we have relied on the proceeds of secured non-convertible debentures called ñMuthoot 

Gold Bondsò placed through our branches. These debentures are issued on a private placement basis and are 

subscribed to, mainly by retail investors. We believe that mobilization through this mode is possible on account 

of our leadership, goodwill, trust, reputation, track record, performance, stability in our business and strong 

quality asset portfolio. We have been able to mobilize these bonds in the newer geographies that we have 

entered. 

 

We have been assigned an ñ[ICRA] A1+ò rating by ICRA for commercial paper and for short-term non-

convertible debentures of `  2,000.0 million and an ñA1+ò rating by CRISIL for short term debt instruments of 

`  40,000.0 million. Further, CRISIL has assigned ñAA-/Stableò to our `  5,000.0 million non-convertible 

debentures and to our `  1,000.0 million subordinated debt. ICRA has assigned ñ[ICRA] AA-/Stableò rating for 

our `  2,000.0 million non-convertible debentures and our `  1,000.0 million subordinated debt. Further, ICRA 

has assigned a long term rating of ñ[ICRA] AA-/Stableò and a short term rating of ñ[ICRA] A1+ò to our ̀   

10,428.0 million line of credit. 

 

We also raise capital by issuing shares from time to time, particularly to various institutional investors. 

 

Asset and Liability Management 
 

ALCO monitors and manages our asset and liability mix. Most of our liabilities are short-to-medium-term and 

assets are short-term. We may in the future decide to pursue loan products with longer term maturities. We have 

a structural liquidity management system which measures our liquidity positions on an ongoing basis and also 

scrutinizes the reasons behind liquidity requirements evolving under different assumptions. For measuring net 
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funding requirements, we prepare regular maturity gap analyses and use a maturity ladder to calculate the 

cumulative surplus or deficit of funds at selected maturity dates. Based on this analysis we re-price its assets and 

liabilities. 

 

Technology 
 

We use information technology as a strategic tool for our business operations to improve our overall 

productivity and efficiency. We believe that through our information systems currently in place, we are able to 

manage our nationwide operations efficiently, market effectively to our target customers, and effectively 

monitor and control risks. We believe that this system has improved customer service by reducing transaction 

time and has allowed us to manage loan-collection efforts better and to comply with regulatory record-keeping 

and reporting requirements. 

 

As of June 30, 2012, all our branches are computerised. Our business does not require a real time connection to 

a central server since a customer must necessarily return to the same branch to redeem the gold jewellery 

collateral. At the close of each Working Day, all our branches send records of transactions to a central server 

through file transfer protocols for branch data to be consolidated. In the case of inter-branch reconciliation, 

branches connect to our central server from time to time, and relevant data is transferred between the branches. 

At the branch level, we have automated systems to backup data in all client machines in the branch. In addition, 

we back-up our central database.  

 

Security threats and measures 
 

The security threats we face can be broadly classified as external and internal threats. The principal security 

risks to our operations are robbery (external threat) and employee theft or fraud (internal threat). We have 

extensive security and surveillance systems and dedicated security personnel to counter external security threats. 

To mitigate internal threats, we undertake careful pre-employment screening, including obtaining references 

before appointment. We also have installed management information systems to minimize the scope for 

employee theft or fraud. We also have started installing offsite surveillance cameras across our branches, which 

will be connected to a centrally located database and allow the corporate office to remotely monitor the 

branches.  

 

To protect against robbery, all branch employees work behind wooden, glass and steel counters, and the back 

office, strong-room and computer areas are locked and closed to customers. Each branchôs security measures 

include strong rooms with concrete walls, strong room door made of iron bars, burglary alarm systems, 

controlled entry to teller areas, and the tracking of employee movement in and out of secured areas. While we 

provide around the clock armed security guards for risk prone branches, the majority of our branches do not 

require security guards as the gold jewellery are stored securely in strong rooms. 

 

Since we handle high volumes of cash and gold jewellery at our locations, daily monitoring, spot audits and 

immediate responses to irregularities are critical to our operations. We have an internal auditing program that 

includes unannounced branch audits and cash counts at randomly selected branches. We have an internal audit 

team of 974 persons who conduct audits on branches either weekly or fortnightly or monthly depending on the 

size of the branch. 

 

Competition 
 

Although the business of making loans secured by gold is a time-honored industry (unorganized pawn-broking 

shops being the main participants), the Gold Loan industry in India remains very fragmented. Our Board 

believes that we can achieve economies of scale and increased operating efficiencies by increasing the number 

of branches under operation and utilizing modern point-of-sale systems and proven operating methods. We 

operate in largely un-tapped markets in various regions in India where banks operate actively in the Gold Loan 

business. We compete with pawnshops and financial institutions, such as consumer finance companies. Other 

lenders may lend money on an unsecured basis, at interest rates that may be lower than our service charges and 

on other terms that may be more favorable than ours. We believe that the primary elements of competition are 

the quality of customer service and relationship management, branch location and the ability to loan competitive 

amounts at competitive rates. In addition, we believe the ability to compete effectively will be based 

increasingly on strong general management, regional market focus, automated management information systems 

and access to capital. 
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Our main competition is from Manappuram Finance Limited, various Kerala based banks, including Federal 

Bank, South Indian Bank and Catholic Syrian Bank, and from other Gold Loan NBFCs, including deposit 

accepting NBFCs.  

 

Insurance Coverage 
 

We maintain insurance coverage on all our assets located at our head office and on all our movable assets in 

branch premises owned by us against fire, earthquake and related perils. We also maintain insurance against 

burglaries at our head office and at our branches, and against loss by riots, strikes or terrorist activities, cash in 

transit and employee theft. We maintain special contingency insurance covering gold in transit, gold in branches 

and cash in transit against burglary. Our insurance policies are generally annual policies that we renew 

regularly. 

 

Employees 
 

As of June 30, 2012 we employed 25,103 persons in our operations. Our employee strength has grown to its 

present size from 3,999 persons as of March 31, 2008, 5,979 persons as of March 31, 2009, 9,745 persons as of 

March 31, 2010, 16,688 persons as of March 31, 2011 and 25,351 persons as of March 31, 2012. None of our 

employees is represented by a labour union, and we believe that our relations with our employees are good. 

 

Remuneration to our employees comprises a fixed component as well as variable pay. Variable pay consists of 

direct incentives and shared incentives. Our direct and shared incentives are linked to performance targets being 

achieved by employees and branches. We have an annual performance appraisal system for all employees. 

Annual increments are awarded only for employees who meet minimum performance standards in their job.  

 

Training  

 

Our ability to timely appraise the quality of the gold jewellery collateral is critical to the business, and requires 

us to employ persons possessing specialized skill sets in our various branches. We provide extensive training to 

our branch employees through training programs that are tailored to appraising the gold content in gold 

jewellery. A new employee is introduced to the business through an orientation program and through training 

programs covering job-appropriate topics. The experienced branch employee receives additional training and an 

introduction to the fundamentals of management to acquire the skills necessary to move into management 

positions within the organization. Manager training involves a program that includes additional management 

principles and more extensive training in topics such as income maximization, business development, staff 

motivation, customer relations and cost efficiency. We have two staff training colleges, one each in Kochi and 

in New Delhi, and regional training centers at each of our regional offices. 

 

Litigation  

 

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this Draft Prospectus, we have no material litigation pending against us or our 

Directors. For details, see the section titled ñPending Proceedings and Statutory Defaultsò at page 151.  

 

Intellectual Property Rights 

 

The brand and trademark ñMuthootò, as also related marks and associated logos (ñMuthoot Trademarksò) are 

currently registered in the name of our Company. Our Company proposes to register the Muthoot Trademarks 

jointly in the name of our Promoters through a rectification process or an assignment (or irrevocably grant 

ownership rights by alternate, legally compliant means). For further details see the section titled ñRisk Factorsò 

at page 9. 

 

Property  

 

Our registered and corporate office is located in Ernakulam, Kerala, is owned by us. We acquired land in New 

Delhi, and constructed an office building to serve as an administrative base for our operations in the northern, 

eastern and western states of India. Except for 14 branch offices, which are owned by us, all our other branch 

offices are located at premises leased or licensed to us. We also own 31 guest houses all across India for use by 

our employees. We also hold 14 other properties used for various purposes by our Company. 
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HISTORY AND MAIN OBJECTS  

 
Brief background of our Company  

 

Our Company was originally incorporated as a private limited company on March 14, 1997 under the name The 

Muthoot Finance Private Limited under the Companies Act. Subsequently, by fresh certificate of incorporation dated 

May 16, 2007, our name was changed to Muthoot Finance Private Limited. Our Company was converted into a public 

limited company on November 18, 2008 with the name Muthoot Finance Limited and received a fresh certificate of 

incorporation consequent upon change in status on December 2, 2008 from the RoC. 

 

Our Company has obtained a certificate of registration dated December 12, 2008 bearing registration no. N. 16.00167 

issued by the RBI to carry on the activities of a systematically important non-banking financial company without 

accepting public deposits under section 45 IA of the RBI Act, 1934. 

 

Registered office 

 

The registered office of our Company is located at Muthoot Chambers, 2nd Floor, Opposite Saritha Theatre Complex, 

Banerji Road, Kochi 682 018, India. 

 

Amalgamation of Muthoot Enterprises Private Limited with our Company 

 

Our Company, along with Muthoot Enterprises Private Limited, filed a composite scheme of arrangement bearing C.P. 

Nos. 48 and 50 of 2004 under the Companies Act before the High Court of Kerala (ñScheme of Amalgamationò). The 

Scheme of Amalgamation was approved by the Board of Directors through the board resolution dated April 28, 2004. 

 

Pursuant to the approval of the Scheme of Amalgamation by the High Court of Kerala by an order dated 

January 31, 2005, Muthoot Enterprises Private Limited was merged with our Company, with effect from April 1, 2004 

and the High Court of Kerala had instructed all the parties to comply with the statutory and other legal requirements to 

make the Scheme of Amalgamation effective. 

 

Our Company on March 22, 2005 filed a certified copy of the order of the High Court of Kerala with the RoC. With 

the successful implementation of the Scheme of Amalgamation, the undertaking of Muthoot Enterprises Private 

Limited along with its assets and liabilities was transferred to and vested in our Company. 

 

Demerger of Radio Business 

 

Our Company filed a scheme of de-merger dated March 17, 2010 under sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 

with the High Court of Kerala at Ernakulam for the demerger of the radio business of our Company to Muthoot 

Broadcasting Private Limited. By an order dated April 9, 2010, the High Court of Kerala sanctioned the scheme of 

demerger in terms of the scheme of demerger, all existing properties, rights, powers, liabilities and assets as detailed in 

the scheme, duties of the radio business of our Company, have been transferred to Muthoot Broadcasting Private 

Limited with effect from January 1, 2010, which was the appointed date as per the scheme of demerger. Further, in 

terms of the order, all proceedings pending by or against our Company relating to radio business will be continued by 

or against Muthoot Broadcasting Private Limited. Thereafter, pursuant to order of the Ministry of Information and 

Broadcasting dated July 20, 2010, our Company obtained approval for the transfer of the FM radio license to Muthoot 

Broadcasting Private Limited, subject to certain conditions. 

 

Change in registered office of our Company 

 

At the time of incorporation, the registered office of our Company was situated at Supremo Complex, Toll Junction, 

Edapally, Kochi 682 024. With effect from November 20, 2001, the registered office of our Company was shifted to its 

present registered office, at Muthoot Chambers, 2nd Floor, Opposite Saritha Theatre Complex, Banerji Road, 

Kochi 682 018, India, for administrative convenience. 

 

Key events, milestones and achievements 

 
Year Particulars 

2000-2001 RBI license obtained to function as an NBFC. 

2003-2004 Obtained highest rating of F1 from Fitch Ratings for short term debt of `  200.0 million. 

2004-2005 Á Retail loan and debenture portfolio of our Company exceeds `  5.0 billion. 
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Year Particulars 

Á Merger of Muthoot Enterprises Private Limited with our Company. 

Á F1 rating obtained from Fitch Ratings affirmed with an enhanced short term debt of `  400.0 million. 

2005-2006 Á Retail loan and debenture portfolio crosses `  7.0 billion and ̀  6.0 billion respectively. 

Á Overall credit limits from banks crosses `  1.0 billion.  

2006-2007 Á Retail loan portfolio of our Company crosses `  14.0 billion  

Á RBI accords status of Systemically Important ND-NBFC. 

Á Branch network of our Company crosses 500 branches. 

Á Net owned funds of our Company crosses `  1.0 billion.  

2007-2008 Á Retail loan and debenture portfolio crosses `  21.0 billion and ̀  12.0 billion respectively.  

Á Net owned funds of our Company crosses `  2.0 billion. 

Á F1 rating obtained from Fitch Ratings affirmed with an enhanced short term debt of `  800.0 million. 

Á Overall credit limits from lending banks crosses `  5.0 billion. 

2008-2009 Á Conversion of our Company into a public limited company.  

Á Fresh RBI license obtained to function as an NBFC without accepting public deposits, consequent 

to change in name  

Á Retail loan and debenture portfolio crosses `  33.0 billion and ̀  19.0 billion respectively.  

Á Net owned funds of our Company crosses `  3.0 billion.  

Á Gross annual income crosses `  6.0 billion.   

Á Overall credit limits from lending banks crosses `  10.0 billion. 

Á Branch network of our Company crosses 900 branches.  

2009-2010 Á Retail loan and debenture portfolio crosses `  74.0 billion and ̀  27.0 billion respectively. 

Á Net owned funds of our Company crosses `  5.0 billion. 

Á Overall credit limits from lending banks crosses `  17.0 billi on.  

Á ICRA assigns óA1+ô rating for short term debt of `  2.0 billion.  

Á CRISIL assigns óP1+ô rating for short term debt of `  4.0 billion.  

Á Branch network of our Company crosses 1,600 branches.  

Á Demerger of the FM radio business into Muthoot Broadcasting Private Limited. 

Á Gross annual income crossed `  10.0 billion.  

2010-2011 Á Retail loan and debenture portfolio crosses `  158.0 billion and ̀  39.0 billion respectively. 

Á CRISIL assigns ñAA-/Stableò rating for `  4.0 billion non convertible debenture issue. 

Á CRISIL assigns ñAA-/Stableò rating for `  1.0 billion subordinated debts issue. 

Á ICRA assigns long term rating of ñAA-/Stableò   for the ` 1 billion subordinated debt issue and for ` 
2.0 billion Non-convertible Debenture issue respectively.  

Á Branch network crossed 2,700 branches. 

Á Overall credit limits from lending banks crosses `  60.0 billion.   

Á Net owned funds crossed ` 13.0 billion.  

Á Gross annual income crossed `  23.0 billion.  

Á Private equity investment of an aggregate of `  2,556.9 million from Matrix Partners India 

Investments, LLC, The Wellcome Trust, Kotak PE, Kotak Investments and Baring India PE .  

2011-2012 Á Successful IPO of `  9,012.5 million in April 2011. 

Á Listing of Equity Shares in BSE and NSE. 

Á Retail loan portfolio crosses `  246.0 billion.   

Á Retail debenture portfolio crosses ` 66 billion.   

Á ICRA assigns long term rating of AA- Stable and short term rating of A1+ for the ` 93,530.0 

million line of credit. 

Á Raised ̀ 6.93 billion through a public issue of secured non-convertible debentures under Series I. 

Á Raised ̀  4.6 billion through a public issue of secured non-convertible debentures under Series II. 

Á Received the Golden Peacock Award, 2012 for corporate social responsibility.  

Á Net owned funds crossed `  29.0 billion . 

Á Gross annual income crossed `  45.0 billion.  

Á Bank credit limit crosses `  92.0 billion.  

Á Branch network crosses 3600 branches. 

2012-2013 Raised ̀  2.6 billion through a public issue of 2.6 million secured non-convertible debentures under 

Series III. 

 

Main objects of our Company  

 

The main objects of our Company as contained in our Memorandum of Association are: 

 

Á To carry on the business of money lending and financing, whether by making loans or advances or by 

purchasing, discounting or accepting bills of exchange, promissory notes or other negotiable instruments or by 

giving guarantees or otherwise, for any industrial, trade, commercial, agricultural or economic activities of 

individuals, firms, companies, associations of persons or bodies of individuals, whether incorporated or not. 

 



 

 

 
82 

Á To carry on the business as acceptance houses, confirming houses, venture capital funds, merchant bankers, 

underwriters or investors. However, our Company shall not carry on the business of banking as defined under 

the Banking Regulation Act, 1949. 

 

Á To carry on the business of marketing and dealing of financial products. 

 

Á To engage in micro finance activities and thereby provide financial assistance to that segment of the 

population belonging to the rural and urban poor so as to enable them to engage themselves in productive 

ventures and thus uplift their overall well being. 



 

 

 
83 

OUR MANAGEMENT  
Board of Directors 

 

The general superintendence, direction and management of our affairs and business are vested in our Board of 

Directors. Under the Articles of Association, we are required to have not less than three Directors and not more than 

twelve Directors. We currently have eight Directors on the Board out of which four Directors, i.e. 50.00 % of the total 

strength of Directors are Independent Directors.  

 

Details of Directors  

 

Name, Age, 

Designation, and 

DIN 

Nationality  Date of 

Appointment 

Address Other Directorships  

M. G. George 

Muthoot  

 

Age: 62 

 

Whole Time Director 

and Chairman 

 

Director Identification 

Number: 00018201 

 

 

Indian April  1, 2010 Muthoot House 

G 74, East of Kailash, 

New Delhi, India- 

110 065 

 

1. Muthoot Gold Funds Limited 

2. M.G.M Muthoot Medical Centre 

Private Limited 

3. Muthoot Farms India Private Limited 

4. Muthoot Vehicle & Asset Finance 

Limited 

5. Muthoot Broadcasting Private 

Limited 

6. Emgee Board and Paper Mills Private 

Limited 

7. Muthoot M George Chits (India) 

Limited 

8. Marari Beach Resorts Private Limited 

9. Muthoot Securities Limited 

10. Muthoot Commodities Limited 

11. Muthoot M George Institute of 

Technology  

12. Dukanvadi Plantations Private Limited 

13. Kunkeshwar Plantations Private 

Limited 

14. Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited 

15. Muthoot Precious Metals Limited 

16. Emgee Properties and Investments 

Private Limited  

17. Muthoot Anchor House Hotels Private 

Limited 

George Thomas 

Muthoot  

 

Age: 61  

 

Whole Time Director 

 

Director Identification 

Number: 00018281 

Indian  April  1, 2010 Muthoot House 

House No. 9/324 A, 

Miss East Lane, Baker 

Junction, Kottayam 

Kerala, India- 686 

001 

 

1. Emgee Muthoot Benefit Fund (India) 

Limited 

2. Muthoot Leisure and Hospitality 

Services Private Limited 

3. M.G.M Muthoot Medical Centre 

Private Limited 

4. Muthoot Holiday Homes and Resorts 

Private Limited 

5. Muthoot Vehicle & Asset Finance 

Limited 

6. Unisom Rubber and Plantations 

Private Limited 

7. Muthoot Broadcasting Private 

Limited 

8. Muthoot M George Chits (India) 

Limited 

9. Muthoot Travelsmart Private Limited 

10. Muthoot Investment Advisory 

Services Private Limited 
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Name, Age, 

Designation, and 

DIN 

Nationality  Date of 

Appointment 

Address Other Directorships  

11. Marari Beach Resorts Private Limited 

12. Venus Diagnostics Limited 

13. Adams Properties Private Limited 

14. Muthoot M George Institute of 

Technology  

15. Avalegaon Plantations Private 

Limited 

16. Juyathi Plantations Private Limited 

17. Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited 

18. Muthoot Precious Metals Limited 

19. Emgee Properties and Investments 

Private Limited 

20. Muthoot Anchor House Hotels 

Private Limited  

George Jacob 

Muthoot  

 

Age: 59 

 

Whole Time Director 

 

Director 

Identification 

Number: 00018235 

Indian  April  1, 2010 Muthoot House 

House No. TC/4/25154 

Marappalam, Pattom P. 

O. 

Thiruvananthapuram 

Kerala, India- 695 004 

 

1. Geo Bros Muthoot Funds (India) 

Limited 

2. Muthoot Leisure and Hospitality 

Services Private Limited 

3. Muthoot Infotech Private Limited 

4. Muthoot Insurance Brokers Private 

Limited 

5. Muthoot Exchange Company Private 

Limited 

6. M.G.M Muthoot Medical Centre 

Private Limited 

7. Muthoot Holiday Homes and Resorts 

Private Limited 

8. Muthoot Marketing Services Private 

Limited 

9. Muthoot Vehicle & Asset Finance 

Limited 

10. Muthoot Broadcasting Private 

Limited 

11. Muthoot Systems and Technologies 

Private Limited 

12. Emgee Board and Paper Mills Private 

Limited 

13. Muthoot M George Chits (India) 

Limited 

14. Marari Beach Resorts Private Limited 

15. Muthoot Developers Private Limited 

16. Udeli Rubber and Plantations Private 

Limited 

17. Venus Diagnostics Limited 

18. Muthoot Securities Limited 

19. Muthoot Commodities Limited 

20. Adams Properties Private Limited 

21. Oxbow Properties Private Limited 

22. Muthoot Global Money Transfers 

Private Limted 

23. Muthoot M George Institute of 

Technology 

24. Kanedi Plantations Private Limited 

25. Kharepaten Plantations Private 

Limited 
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Name, Age, 

Designation, and 

DIN 

Nationality  Date of 

Appointment 

Address Other Directorships  

26. Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited 

27. Muthoot Precious Metals Limited 

28. Muthoot Anchor House Hotels 

Private Limited.  

29. Emgee Properties and Investments 

Private Limited.  

George Alexander 

Muthoot  

 

Age: 56 

 

Managing Director 

 

Director Identification 

Number: 00016787 

Indian April  1, 2010 Muthoot House 

G 343, Panampilly 

Nagar, Ernakulam 

Kerala, India- 682 036 

1. Muthoot M George Permanent Fund 

Limited 

2. Muthoot Infotech Private Limited 

3. Muthoot Exchange Company Private 

Limited 

4. M.G.M Muthoot Medical Centre 

Private Limited 

5. Muthoot Insurance Brokers Private 

Limited 

6. Muthoot Vehicle & Asset Finance 

Limited 

7. Muthoot Broadcasting Private 

Limited 

8. Muthoot Systems and Technologies 

Private Limited 

9. Muthoot M George Chits (India) 

Limited 

10. Marari Beach Resorts Private Limited 

11. Adams Properties Private Limited 

12. Rangana Rubber and Plantations 

Private Limited 

13. Maneri Rubber and Plantations 

Private Limited 

14. Amboli Rubber and Plantations 

Private Limited 

15. Unix Properties Private Limited 

16. Oxbow Properties Private Limited 

17. Muthoot Developers Private Limited 

18. Venus Diagnostics Limited 

19. Muthoot Securities Limited 

20. Muthoot Commodities Limited 

21. Sawanthavadi Rubber And Plantation 

Private Limited 

22. Muthoot Marketing Services Private 

Limited 

23. Muthoot M George Institute of 

Technology  

24. Moroshi Plantations Private Limited 

25. Varavade Plantations Private Limited 

26. Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited 

27. Muthoot Precious Metals Limited 

28. Muthoot Anchor House Hotels Private 

Limited 

29. Emgee Properties and Investments 

private Limited 

P. George Varghese 

 

Age: 64 

 

Independent Director 

Indian January 23, 200

8. 

9B, Amber Park, 

Canon Shed Road, 

Kochi, Kerala, India- 

682 011 

 

1. FCI OEN Connectors Limited 

2. FCI Technology Services Limited 

3. Geomaths Stocks & Shares Trading 

Private Limited 
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Name, Age, 

Designation, and 

DIN 

Nationality  Date of 

Appointment 

Address Other Directorships  

 

Director Identification 

Number: 00317319 

4. Yoj-Ujar Stocks & Shares Trading 

Private Limited 

5. Prima Components Limited 

6. Prime Business Private Limited 

7. Fina Corporate Solutions & 

Technologies Private Limited 

8. Centricus Consulting Private Limited 

K. John Mathew 

 

Age: 80 

 

Independent Director 

 

Director Identification 

Number: 00371128 

Indian  January 23, 200

8 

1445, Kattapurath 

41 Division, 

Veekshanam Road, 

Kochi Corporation, 

Ernakulam 

Kerala, India- 682 018 

 

 

Nil  

 

John K. Paul 

 

Age: 59 

 

Independent Director 

 

Director Identification 

Number: 00016513 

Indian July 21, 2010 Kuttukaran House 

St Benedict Road, 

Ernakulam 

Kerala, India- 682 018 

 

1. Popular Vehicles and Services 

Limited 

2. Popular Kuttukaran Cars Private 

Limited 

3. Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited 

4. Popular Auto Spares Private Limited 

5. Popular Autoworks Private Limited 

6. Prabal Motors Private Limited 

7. Keracon Equipments Private Limited 

George Joseph 

 

Age: 63 

 

Independent Director 

 

Director Identification 

Number: 00253754 

Indian July 21, 2010 1/362, Melazhakath 

House, Alanickal 

Estate Road, Arakulam 

P.O.,Idukki district 

Kerala, India- 685 591 

 

Wonderla Holiday Private Limited 

 

Profiles of our Directors  

 

M.G. George Muthoot 

 

M.G. George Muthoot is a graduate in engineering from Manipal University, and is a businessman by profession. He is 

the National Executive Committee Member of the Federation of Indian Chamber of Commerce and Industry 

(ñFICCIò) and the current Chairman of FICCI-Kerala State Council. He was conferred the Mahatma Gandhi National 

Award for social service for the year 2001 by the Mahatma Gandhi National Foundation. He is an active member of 

various social organisations including the Delhi Malayalee Association, Kerala Club, Rotary Club, National Sports 

Club and has been chosen for several awards by the Rotary International and the Yôs Mens International for community 

development and social service. He has been the member of the Managing Committee of Malankara Orthodox Syrian 

Church for over 31 years and is presently the lay trustee of the Malankara Orthodox Syrian Church and a member of 

the working committee of the Indian Orthodox Church. Recently, he was conferred the HH Baselios Mathew I Award 

by Catholicate of the Syrian Orthodox Church Mathews the First Foundation for the year 2008 for his services to the 

Church. He is also the recipient of Asian Business Man of The Year 2011 from UK- Kerala Business Forum and was 

also conferred with the Golden Peacock Award, 2012 for Business Leadership.  

 

George Thomas Muthoot 
 

George Thomas Muthoot is a businessman by profession. He is an undergraduate. He has over 30 years of experience 

in managing businesses operating in the field of financial services.  

 

George Jacob Muthoot 
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George Jacob Muthoot has a degree in civil engineering from Manipal University and is a businessman by profession. 

He is a member of the Trivandrum Management Association, the Confederation of Real Estate Developers Association 

of India (Trivandrum) and the Trivandrum Agenda Task Force. He is also a member of the Rotary Club, Trivandrum 

(South), governing body member of the Charitable and Educational Society of Trivandrum Orthodox Diocese, Ulloor, 

Trivandrum, Finance Committee Member, Mar Diocese College of Pharmacy, Althara, Trivandrum and Mar 

Gregorious Orthodox Christian Mercy Fellowship, Trivandrum. He has over 30 years of experience in managing 

businesses operating in the field of financial services.  

 

George Alexander Muthoot 
 

George Alexander Muthoot is a chartered accountant who qualified with a first rank in Kerala and ranked 20th overall 

in India, in 1978. He has a bachelor degree in Commerce from Kerala University where he was a rank holder and gold 

medalist. He was also awarded the Times of India group Business Excellence Award in customised Financial Services 

in March 2009. He served as the Chairman of the Kerala Non-banking Finance Companies Welfare Association from 

2004 to 2007 and is currently its Vice Chairman. He is also the Member Secretary of Finance Companies Association, 

Chennai. He is the founder member for The Indus Entrepreneurs International, Kochi Chapter and is now a member of 

the Core Committee of The Indus Entrepreneurs International Kochi Chapter. He has over 30 years of experience in 

managing businesses operating in the field of financial services. 

 

P. George Varghese 
 

P. George Varghese is a graduate in mechanical engineering from Kerala University and holds a masters degree in 

business administration from Cochin University of Science and Technology. He is a trustee of the IMA Blood Bank, 

Kochi and is a member of the governing council of DC School of Management and Technology. He has served as the 

vice-president of the Kerala Management Association from 2006 to 2007 and has been on the managing committee of 

the Indo American Chamber of Commerce from 1992 to 1999. He is also a member of the CII-Kerala. 

 

K. John Mathew 
 

K. John Mathew is a graduate in law from the Government Law College, Ernakulam and is a retired judge of the High 

Court of Kerala. He has served as the Chairman of the Cochin Stock Exchange and was a SEBI nominee director of the 

Cochin Stock Exchange from 2002 to 2007. He is currently the President of the Peoples Council for Social Justice, 

Kerala. 

 

John K Paul 
 

John K Paul is a graduate in engineering from the Regional Engineering College, Kozhikode and a businessman by 

profession. He is a director of Popular Vehicles & Services Limited. He is trustee of the Kuttukaran Institute for HRD, 

which is a leading institution offering professional courses. He was the president of the Kerala Chamber of Commerce 

and Industry from 2005 to 2006. He was also the president of both the Kerala Hockey Association from 2005 onwards 

and the Ernakulam District Hockey Association from 2004 onwards. 

 

George Joseph 
 

George Joseph is a first rank holder commerce graduate from Kerala University. He is also a certified associate of the 

Indian Institute of Banking and Finance. He is the former chairman and managing director of Syndicate Bank. He 

joined Syndicate Bank as an executive director on April 01, 2006 and was elevated to the post of Chairman and 

Managing Director on August 02, 2008 and subsequently retired from office on April 30, 2009. Before joining the 

Syndicate Bank, George Joseph was employed with Canara Bank for over 36 years. 

 

Remuneration of the Directors 

 

Terms and Conditions of Employment of Executive Directors 
 

M. G. George Muthoot has been appointed for a period of 5 years, with effect from April 1, 2010 as the chairman and 

Whole-Time Director of our Company by a resolution of the Board dated March 1, 2010, approval of the members 

dated July 21, 2010 and duly executed employment agreement with our Company dated March 31, 2010.  

 

The remuneration paid to M. G. George Muthoot for the financial year ended March 31, 2012 is `  48.0 million.   
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George Thomas Muthoot has been appointed for a period of 5 years, with effect from April 1, 2010 as the Whole-

Time Director of our Company by a resolution of the Board dated March 1, 2010, approval of the members dated 

July 21, 2010 and duly executed employment agreement with our Company dated March 31, 2010. 

 

The remuneration paid to George Thomas Muthoot for the financial year ended March 31, 2012 is `  48.0 million.  

 

George Jacob Muthoot has been appointed for a period of 5 years, with effect from April 1, 2010 as the Whole-Time 

Director of our Company by a resolution of the Board dated March 1, 2010, approval of the members dated 

July 21, 2010 and duly executed employment agreement with our Company dated March 31, 2010.  

 

The remuneration paid to George Jacob Muthoot for the financial year ended March 31, 2012 is `  48.0 million.   

 

George Alexander Muthoot has been appointed for a period of 5 years, with effect from April 1, 2010 as the 

Managing Director of our Company by a resolution of the Board dated March 1, 2010, approval of the members dated 

July 21, 2010 and duly executed employment agreement with our Company dated March 31, 2010. 

 

The remuneration paid to George Alexander Muthoot for the financial year ended March 31, 2012 is `  48.0 million.  

 

The general terms of the employment agreements executed by our Company with the Managing Director and each of 

the Whole-Time Directors are as under:  

 

S No. Category Description 

Remuneration 

1. Basic salary `  1,000,000 per month with such increments as may be decided by the Board from 

time to time, subject to a ceiling of 25.00% per annum. 

2. Special allowance ` 1,000,000 per month with such increments as may be decided by the Board from 

time to time, subject to a ceiling of 25.00% per annum. 

3. Annual performance 

incentive 
` 18,000,000 per annum or 1.00% of profit before tax before charging annual 

performance incentive whichever is higher, payable quarterly or at other intervals, 

subject to a maximum amount as may be decided by the Board from time to time. 

Perquisites 

1. Residential 

accommodation 

Companyôs owned / hired / leased accommodation or house rent allowance @ 50.00% 

of the basic salary in lieu of Company provided accommodation. 

2. Expenses relating to 

residential 

accommodation 

Reimbursement of expenses on actuals, pertaining to gas, fuel, water, electricity and 

telephones as also reasonable reimbursement of upkeep and maintenance expenses in 

respect of residential accommodation. 

3. Others Other perquisites such as furnishing of residential accommodation, security guards at 

residence, attendants at home, reimbursement of medical expenses for self and family, 

travelling expenses, leave travel allowance for self and family, club fees, personal 

accident insurance, provident fund contribution and superannuation fund, gratuity 

contribution, encashment of earned/privilege leave, cars and conveyance facilities, 

provision for driver or driver's salary and other policies and benefits that may be 

introduced from time to time by our Company shall be provided to the whole time 

Director and Managing Director as per the rules of our Company subject to approval of 

the Board. 

 

Terms and Conditions of Employment of Non-Executive Directors  

 
Subject to powers conferred under Article 105 and 106 of the Articles of Association and pursuant to a resolution 

passed at the meeting of the Board of Directors on July 23, 2010 a sitting fee of `  10,000 is payable to Non-Executive 

Directors for attending each meeting of the Board and a sitting fee of `  5,000 is payable to Non-Executive Directors for 

attending each meeting of a committee of Board of Directors. Further, if any Director is called upon to advice our 

Company as an expert or is called upon to perform certain services, the Board is entitled to pay the director such 

remuneration as it thinks fit. Except for the sitting fees and any remuneration payable for advising our Company as an 

expert or for performing certain services, our non-executive directors are not entitled to any other remuneration from 

our Company. 

 

In accordance with the resolution of the members dated July 21, 2010, the Directors (excluding the Managing Director 

and Whole Time Directors) are entitled to, as commission, an aggregate sum not exceeding 1.00% per annum of the net 

profits of our Company calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Act. Subject to the above, payments and 

distribution amongst the Directors shall be at the discretion of the Board and such payments are payable in respect of 

the profits of our Company for each year of the period of five years commencing from August 1, 2010.  
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Borrowing powers of the Board  

 

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders at the AGM held on September 28, 2011, in accordance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, our Board has been authorised to borrow sums of money for the business of our 

Company, whether unsecured or secured, in Indian or foreign currency, or by way of issue of debentures/bonds or any 

other securities, from time to time, from any banks/financial institutions or any other institutions(s), firms, body 

corporate(s) or other persons, in India or abroad, apart from temporary loans obtained/ to be obtained from our 

Companyôs bankers in the ordinary course of business, provided that the sum(s) so borrowed under this resolutions and 

remaining outstanding at any time shall not exceed the aggregate of `  500,000.0 million in excess of and in addition to 

the paid up capital and free reserves of our Company for the time being. 

 

Interest of the Directors 

 

All our Directors, including Independent Directors, may be deemed to be interested to the extent of fees, if any, payable 

to them for attending meetings of the Board or a committee thereof, to the extent of other remuneration and 

reimbursement of expenses payable to them pursuant to our Articles of Association. In addition, save for our 

Independent Directors, our Directors would be deemed to be interested to the extent of interest receivable on loans 

advanced by the Directors, rent received from our Company for lease of immovable properties owned by Directors and 

to the extent of remuneration paid to them for services rendered as officers of our Company. 

 

Our Directors may also be deemed to be interested to the extent of Equity Shares, if any, held by them and also to the 

extent of any dividend payable to them and other distributions in respect of the said Equity Shares. Our Directors, 

excluding independent directors, may also be regarded as interested in the Equity Shares, if any, held by the companies, 

firms and trusts, in which they are interested as directors, members, partners or trustees and promoters. 

 

Some of our Directors may be deemed to be interested to the extent of consideration received/paid or any loans or 

advances provided to any body corporate, including companies, firms, and trusts, in which they are interested as 

directors, members, partners or trustees. For details, see the section titled ñFinancial Informationò at page 102. 

 

Except as disclosed hereinabove and the section titled ñRisk Factorsò at page 9, the Directors do not have an interest in 

any venture that is involved in any activities similar to those conducted by our Company. 

 

Except as stated in the section titled óFinancial Informationô at page 102 and to the extent of compensation and 

commission if any, and their shareholding in our Company, our Directors do not have any other interest in our business. 

 

Our Directors have no interest in any property acquired or proposed to be acquired by our Company in the preceding 

two years of filing this Draft Prospectus with the Designated Stock Exchange nor do they have any interest in any 

transaction regarding the acquisition of land, construction of buildings and supply of machinery, etc. with respect to our 

Company.  

 

M.G. George Muthoot, George Thomas Muthoot, George Jacob Muthoot and George Alexander Muthoot, are our 

Promoters as well as Non-Independent, Executive Directors. 

 

Debenture/Subordinated Debt holding of Directors:  

 
Details of the debentures/subordinated debts held in our Company by our Directors, as on July 31, 2012 are provided 

below: 

 

The details of the secured non convertible debentures of the face value of ` 1,000 each held by the director of our 

Company is set out below: 

   
Name of Director Number of debentures Amount ( in `  Million)  

P George Varghese 6,478  6.5 

 

The details of subordinated debts of the face value of ` 1,000 each held by the directors of our Company is set out 

below: 

 

Name of Director Number of Subordinated Debts Amount ( in ` Million)  

P George Varghese 400 0.4 
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Name of Director Number of Subordinated Debts Amount ( in ` Million)  

George Thomas Muthoot 950 1.0 

George Jacob Muthoot 2,214 2.2 

George Alexander Muthooot 4,672 4.7 

 

The details of the subordinated debts of face value of `  1 each held by the directors of our Company is set out below: 

 

 
Name of Director Number of Subordinated Debts Amount (in `  Millions)  

M G George Muthoot 83,000,000 83.0 

George Thomas Muthoot 82,500,000 82.5 

George Jacob Muthoot 82,500,000 82.5 

George Alexander Muthoot 83,000,000 83.0 

 

Changes in the Directors during the last three years 

 

The changes in the Board of Directors in the three years preceding the date of this Draft Prospectus are as follows:  

 
Name of the Director Date of Change Reason 

Sara George July 21, 2010 Resignation 

Anna Alexander July 21, 2010 Resignation 

George M. Alexander July 25, 2009 Resignation 

George Alexander Muthoot April 01, 2010 Change in 

designation 

M G George Muthoot April 01, 2010 Change in 

designation 

George Jacob Muthoot April 01, 2010 Change in 

designation 

George Thomas Muthoot April 01, 2010 Change in 

designation 

George Joseph July 21, 2010 Appointment 

John K. Paul July 21, 2010 Appointment 

 

Shareholding of Directors 

 

As per our Articles of Association, our Directors are not required to hold any qualification Equity Shares in our 

Company. 

 

Details of the Equity Shares held by our Directors, as on August 17, 2012 are provided in the table given below:  

 
Sr. 

No. 

Name of Director No. of Shares Percentage 

Shareholding(%) in the 

total Share Capital 

1.  M.G. George Muthoot 47,385,132 12.80 

2.  George Thomas Muthoot 44,464,400 11.96 

3.  George Jacob Muthoot 44,464,400 11.96 

4.  George Alexander Muthoot 44,464,400 11.96 

5.  George Joseph 1,134 Negligible 

6.  P. George Varghese 135 Negligible 

Total  180,779,601 48.68 

 

Corporate Governance  

 

We are in compliance with the requirements of corporate governance as mandated in Clause 49 of the Listing 

Agreements entered into by our Company with the Stock Exchanges, particularly those in relation to the composition of 

the Board of Directors, constitution of committees such as audit committee, remuneration committee and 

investor/shareholders grievance committee. The Board has laid down a code of conduct for the Board of Directors and 

senior management of our Company and the same is posted on the web site of our Company in accordance with Clause 

49 of the Equity Listing Agreements. In addition, pursuant to a RBI Circular dated May 8, 2007, all NBFC-ND-SIs are 

required to adhere to certain corporate governance norms including constitution of an audit committee, a nomination 

committee, a risk management committee and certain other norms in connection with disclosure and transparency and 

connected lending. We have complied with these corporate governance requirements. 
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Currently our Board has eight Directors, and the Chairman of the Board is an Executive Director. In compliance with 

the requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, our Board has an optimum combination of Executive and 

Non-Executive Directors consisting of (i) 50.00% Non-Executive Directors and (ii) 50.00% Independent Directors. 

None of the Directors on the Board are members of more than ten committees or Chairman of more than five 

Committees across all companies in which they are directors as required under the Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. 

Our Board has constituted the following committees:  

 

(a) Audit Committee; 

 

(b) Shareholdersô/Investorsô Grievance Committee; 

 

(c) Remuneration Committee; 

 

(d) Asset Liability Management Committee; 

 

(e) Risk Management Committee; 

 

(f) Nomination Committee; and 

 

(g) NCD Public Issue Committee. 

 

Audit Committee  

 

The Audit Committee of our Board was reconstituted by our Directors by a board resolution dated July 23, 2010 

pursuant to section 292A of the Companies Act. The Audit Committee comprises of: 

 
Name of the Director Designation in the Committee Nature of Directorship  

George Joseph Chairman Independent Director 

John K Paul Member Independent Director 

George Alexander Muthoot Member Managing Director 

 
Terms of reference of the Audit Committee include: 

 

Á Oversight of our Companyôs financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to 

ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.  

 

Á Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of 

the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees.  

 

Á Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors. 

 

Á Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the board for 

approval, with particular reference to: 

 

Á Matters required to be included in the Directorôs Responsibility Statement to be included in the Boardôs report 

in terms of clause (2AA) of section 217 of the Companies Act. 

 

Á Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 

 

Á Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management. 

 

Á Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings. 

 

Á Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements. 

 

Á Disclosure of any related party transactions. 

 

Á Qualifications in the draft audit report.  
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Á Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for 

approval. 

 

Á Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public 

issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated 

in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the 

utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to 

take up steps in this matter. 

 

Á Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal 

control systems. 

 

Á Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and 

frequency of internal audit. 

 

Á Discussion with internal auditors on any significant findings and follow up there on. 

 

Á Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the 

matter to the board. 

 

Á Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as 

post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.  

 

Á To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the debenture holders, shareholders (in case 

of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.  

 

Á To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism, in case the same exists.  

 

Á To approve the appointment of Chief Financial Officer, if any. 

 

Á Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. 

 

Shareholdersô/Investorsô Grievance Committee  

 

The Shareholdersô/Investorsô Grievance Committee was constituted by our Directors by a board resolution dated 

July 23, 2010 and comprises of:  

 
Name of the Director Designation in the Committee Nature of Directorship  

K John Mathew Chairman Independent Director 

John K Paul Member Independent Director 

George Thomas Muthoot Member Whole Time Director 

 

Terms of reference of the Shareholdersô/Investorsô Grievance Committee includes the following: 

 

Á To approve or otherwise deal with applications for transfer, transmission, transposition and mutation of shares 

and certificates including duplicate, split, sub-division or consolidation of certificates and to deal with all 

related matters; and also to deal with all the matters related to de-materialisation or re-materialisation of 

shares, change in the beneficial holders of de-mat shares and granting of necessary approvals wherever 

required. 

 

Á To look into and redress shareholders / investors grievances relating to: 

 

Á Transfer/Transmission of shares 

 

Á Non-receipt of declared dividends 

 

Á Non-receipt of annual reports 
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Á All such complaints directly concerning the shareholders / investors as stakeholders of our Company 

 

Á Any such matters that may be considered necessary in relation to shareholders and investors of our Company. 

 

Remuneration Committee 

 

The Remuneration Committee was reconstituted by our Directors by a board resolution dated July 23, 2010 and 

comprises of:  

 
Name of the Director Designation in the Committee Nature of Directorship  

K John Mathew Chairman Independent Director 

P George Varghese Member Independent Director 

John K Paul Member Independent Director 

 

Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee include the following: 

 

Á Determine and agree with the Board the framework for broad policy for the remuneration of executive and 

non-executive directors of our Company. 

 

Á Review the on-going appropriateness and relevance of the remuneration policy. 

 

Á Ensure that contractual terms of the agreement that Company enters into with Directors as part of their 

employment in our Company are fair to the individual and our Company. 

 

Á Ensure that all provisions regarding disclosure of remuneration as required under the Companies Act or such 

other acts, rules, regulations or guidelines are complied with. 

 

Asset Liability Management Committee 

 

The Asset Liability Management Committee was reconstituted by a board resolution dated July 23, 2010 and comprises 

of:  

 
Name of the Director Designation in the Committee Nature of Directorship  

George Joseph Chairman Independent Director 

P George Varghese Member Independent Director 

George Alexander Muthoot Member Managing Director 

 

Terms of reference of the Asset Liability Management Committee includes the following: 

 

Á To ensure that the asset liability management strategy and Companyôs market risk management policies are 

implemented; 

 

Á To provide a strategic framework to identify, asses, quality and manage market risk, liquidity risk, interest rate 

risk, price risk etc. 

 

Á To ensure adherence to the risk limits; 

 

Á To articulate current interest rate view of our Company and base its decisions on future business strategy on 

this view; 

 

Á To decide product pricing, desired maturity profile of assets and liabilities and also the mix of incremental 

assets and liabilities such as fixed versus floating rate funds, domestic vs. foreign currency funds etc; 

 

Á To monitor the risk levels of our Company; 

 

Á To review the results of and progress in implementation of the decisions; 

 

Á To report to the Board of Directors on the adequacy of our Companyôs systems and controls for managing 

risk, and for recommending any changes or improvements, as necessary; 

 

Á To ensure that all activities are within the overall regulatory framework and government regulation; 
















































































































































































































































































































































































